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Financial Performance Response Evaluation Instrument

Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School Required for: Academic Intervention Schedule
Charter Holder Entity ID: 6374 Audit Year: 2014

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) staff completed the Financial Performance Response Evaluation Instrument for the Board in its
consideration of applicable requests made by the charter holder. “Not Acceptable” answers may adversely affect the Board’s decision regarding
a charter holder’s request.

Measure Reason(s) for “Not Acceptable” Rating

1a. Going Concern
Acceptable O
Not Acceptable [
Not Applicable

1b. Unrestricted Days Liquidity
Acceptable O
Not Acceptable [
Not Applicable

1c. Default
Acceptable O
Not Acceptable [
Not Applicable

2a. Net Income
Acceptable O
Not Acceptable [
Not Applicable
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Measure Reason(s) for “Not Acceptable” Rating
The charter holder projects cash flow of $100,939 and that it will meet the Board’s target for this measure. While
2b. Cash Flow the cash flow analysis submitted by the charter holder provides a reasonable estimate of cash at June 30, 2015
Acceptable O (assuming all of the receivables are realized, the $725,030 of expenses were paid in cash, and the loan refinancing

Not Acceptable
Not Applicable [

and net income identified in the fixed charge coverage ratio section are realized), it does not provide an estimate of
cash flow. Using $100,939 as total cash for 2015, the charter holder will have negative cash flow of $31,657 for 2015
and a negative three-year cumulative cash flow.

2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio
Acceptable O
Not Acceptable
Not Applicable [

The charter holder projects a change of net assets of $23,148 and interest expense of $36,512 at June 30, 2015, but
does not provide support for those figures. The charter holder states “Projected increase in revenues: $1,420,078
will adequately cover the revised projected expenses of $1,348,254 — Net Assets: $23,148.” Support was not
provided for the revenues or expenses. In addition, to project performance on this measure after refinancing with
the bank loan, the charter holder uses a change of net assets of $45,730. This figure is the same as the 2014 change
in net assets. Since the charter holder’s change in net assets varies from year to year, it is not supported that the
current or subsequent year will be the same as the audited fiscal year. Had the charter holder provided internal
management reports or interim financial statements ending June 30, 2015, these would have been considered in
Board staff’s evaluation.

The charter holder states that it has sufficient cash “to augment cash flow to fund fixed charges for the foreseeable
future. (Even without refinancing the mortgage loan).” The charter holder projects the amount of cash at the end of
fiscal year 2015 at approximately $41,000 without refinancing the mortgage loan. However, fixed charges for the
first half of 2015 include over $73,000 for facilities, equipment leases, and interest, not including principal payments
on the charter holder’s loans.

The response includes a printout of the charter holder’s annual budget. Please note that the adopted 2015 annual
budget provided with the response shows incorrect total revenues and expenses figures for fiscal year 2014.
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TUCSON PREPARATORY SCHOOL
CTD #1087-68

2b. Cash Flow

Response:

Itis our understanding that the School previously responded to this issue dated February 7, 2015 as item
a. This response is designed to supplement that previous response and does NOT replace that response.

Assumptions that the following transactions did NOT occur:
1. The School incurred unforeseen legal costs of $41,962 (Exhibit A - QuickBooks report) during the
year ended June 30, 2013.
2. The School was required to make a $70,000 (Exhibit B - QuickBooks report) balloon payment
against note payable during the year ended June 30, 2013.

Other assumption:
1. All other transactions reflected in the June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 audits occurred as reported.

The resulting Cash Flow Statement is included as Exhibit C showing a Net Change in Cash of $(9,301)
rather than $(119,301) as reported on the June 30, 2013 audit. Carrying that information forward into
the June 30, 2014 audit and making the necessary adjustments to the financial statements (included as
Exhibit D, E, and F) is the June 30, 2014 Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Activities, and
Statement of Cash Flows, which are utilized for this analysis.

Following are the pertinent adjusted numbers:
1. On Exhibit E, Purchased Professional Services changed from $124,341 (actual) to $84,341
(adjusted by $40,000 of unforeseen legal costs).
2. On Exhibit D, Notes Payable changed from $455,553 (actual) to $525,553 (adjusted by $70,000
balloon payment).

In conclusion, assuming that these two transactions did NOT occur, the three-year cumulative cash flow
is positive at $56,589 (2014 - $50,963, 2013 - $(9,301), and 2012 - $14,927), cash flow is positive in two
of three years, and cash flow in the most recent year is positive, which results in the School meeting the
standard.





TUCSON PREPARATORY SCHOOL
CTD #1087-68

2c. Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio

Response:

It is our understanding that the School previously responded to this issue dated February 7, 2015 as items
a through e. This response is designed to supplement that previous response and does NOT replace that
response.

a. The School amended the loan on July 11, 2014 (Exhibit G), which results in $323,514 (see
amortization schedule of balance due on June 30, 2015) no longer being part of current portion
of long-term debt at June 30, 2014 (Exhibit H). In addition, the School retroactively amended
the due date of the related party notes (Exhibit I), which resulted in the $109,790 being due in
full on June 30, 2017. That effectively reduced the current portion of long-term debt at June 30,
2014 to $91,201 (Exhibit H). The result of those two changes means that the fixed charge
coverage ratio at June 30, 2014 is 1.02, which is does not meet the standard, however it is much
improved from June 30, 2013.

b. The School is in the process of refinancing the mortgage loan with Wells Fargo Bank. The School
has met with the banker and the banker is very optimistic a deal will be done. The banker has
requested the past three audited financial statements along with other information, which the
School is in the process of completing. Should the School be able to accomplish its goal of
refinancing at the prevailing market rates, etc., the School would be able to reduce its current
portion of long-term debt from $91,201 at June 30, 2014 to approximately half of that at
$45,000 to $50,000, which assuming similar results to the year ended June 30, 2014, would
result in a fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.33.





9:36 AM Tucson Preparatory School

03/09/15 Transaction Detail By Account
Accrual Basis July 2012 through June 2013
Type ﬂDate Num ] Cir o Split - ) »Dﬁepi»t Credit Balance

6300 - Professional Services
6333 - Legal Services 2300

Bitl 07/12/2012 Legal Retainer 0201 - Accounts Payable 7.500.00 7,500.00
Bill 08/08/2012 Legal Retainer 0201 - Accounts Payable 7,500.00 15,000.00
Check 09/13/2012 9505 0102 - Wells Fargo - General Fund 6,433.20 21,433.20
Bill 09/20/2012 727341 0201 - Accounts Payable 3,558.50 24,991.70
Bill 09/27/2012 167636 0201 - Accounts Payabie 8,032.50 33,024.20
Bill 11/05/2012 Charter Renewal 0201 - Accounts Payable 3,166.72 36,190.92
Bill 12/05/2012 729449, 733036 0201 - Accounts Payable 6,301.92 42,492.84
Deposit 01/09/2013 81770 0102 - Welis Fargo - General Fund 530.59 41,962.25
Total 6333 - Legal Services 2300 42,492.84 530.59 41,962.25
Total 6300 - Professional Services 42 492.84 530,59 41,962.25
TOTAL 42,492.84 530.59 41,962.25
EXHIBIT A
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EXHIBIT B





Cash

Receivables

Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment
Security Deposits

Total Assets

Accounts Payable
Accrued payroll
Notes payable to related parties
Notes payable
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilitis and
Net Assets

TUCSON PREPARATORY SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
JUNE 30, 2013

2013/2012 2012/2011 Difference Description Operating Investing Financing Non-cash Cash
191,633 200,934 (9,301) (9,301)
36,482 27,598 (8,884) Decrease = inflow of cash (8,884)
7,530 - (7,530) Increase = outflow of cash (7,530)
1,075,069 1,125,581 50,512
850 600 (250) (250)
1,311,564 1,354,713 Depreciation 50,512
9,987 7.794 2,193 Decrease = outflow of cash 2,193
251 765 (514) Increase = inflow of cash (514)
110,498 98,498 12,000 Repayments 32,000
525,553 529,632 (4,079) Repayments (24,079)
646,289 636,689
665,275 718,024 (52,749) (52,749)
665,275 718,024 (17,222) 7,921 (9,301)
Interest paid 38,607
1,311,564 1,354,713

EXHIBIT C





EXHIBIT D





EXHIBIT E





EXHIBIT F





EXHIBIT G















EXHIBIT H
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Financial Performance Based on FY 2014 Audit
Tucson Preparatory School Response

Sustainability
Measures

Indicator

School Response - for Ratings “Does Not Meet” Financial
Performance Expectations

1. Fixed
Charge
Coverage
Ratio

.29

a. The charter holder’s 2014 “Current Portion of Long-Term
Debt” of $529,155 is no longer valid. The mortgage loan
was amended in July 2015 to change the balloon payout
from July 2014 to July 2015. ...There was also a principal
reduction payment of $35k applied to the loan on
7/28/14. Those transactions reduced the Current Portion
from $529k to $205,671, resulting in a ratio of .61...(refer
to attached excel spreadsheet)

b. Tucson Prep intends to refinance the mortgage loan with
Wells Fargo in Apr of 2015. The FMV of the property is
approx. $1.3m - The current outstanding loan in will be
approx. $330k in April. We intend to finance approx.
$500k - $330k to payoff current lender, which will
eliminate the annual $35- $70k balloon payments, which
have been a burden to cash flow. Another $110k to pay off
loans to “Related Parties” and $60k to put in savings to
build a solid cash reserve. Those changes, result in a
projected “Current Portion of Debt” of $40,440 - along
with a projected “Change in Net Assets “ @ 6/30/15 of
$23,148k, will result in a ratio of 1.25 at FYE.

c. Net Assets are projected to be $23k at FYE. (including
approx. $48k in depreciation expense).Our adopted
budget was based on an ADM of 142. - CHARSS5 report
show an current ADM of 147. Review of YTD financials and
consideration of monthly and projected revenue and
expenses for the FY demonstrate to us that we can
anticipate nets assets of approx. $23 at FYE.

d. Projected increase in revenues: $1,420,078 will adequately
cover the revised projected expenses of $1,348,254 — Net
Assets: 523,148

e. The charter holder has sufficient cash ($24,495 +
$126,705.30 AR), as well as monthly Equalization, Prop,
Pima County grants — and funding from the Title | & || ESEA
Grants - to augment cash flow to fund fixed charges for
the foreseeable future. (Even without refinancing the
mortgage loan).

2. Cash Flow —
3 Year
Cumulative

($53,411)

a. The 3 year cumulative is overstated due to an anomaly in
2013. The school recorded ($119,301) due to a $75k balloon
payment towards principal on mortgage and unforeseen
legal expenses with ADE. FY14=$50,963 Projected
FY15=5100,939, (540,939 + $60k from mortgage refi in April
2015
Projected cumulative at FYE: $32,601

—

/),

v (40) 33 637
79 460) 334 63777
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12:16 PM Tucson Preparatory School

01/07/15 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2014
Dec 31,14
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
0102 - Wells Fargo - General Fund 14,258.70
0103 - Revolving Fund 3,313.00
0104 - Savings-Wells Fargo 6,922.99
Total Checking/Savings 24,494.69
Accounts Receivable
0132 - Accounts Receivable
0136 - Grants Receivable 37,458.31
0138 - Equalization Receivable ] 89,246.99
Total 0132 - Accounts Receivable 126,705.30
Total Accounts Receivable B 126,705.30
Total Current Assets 151,199.99
Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation -311,387.79
Bldg & Improvements 1,292,305.27
Furniture & Equipment 48,078.87
Total Fixed Assets 1,028,996.35
TOTAL ASSETS 1,180,196.34
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
2100 - Payroll Liabilities 272.58
Total Other Current Liabilities 272.58
Total Current Liabilities 272.58
Long Term Liabilities
0204 - Prince Facilitiy Loan-B. Bement 368,244.27
0205 - Loan #1-J Sullivan to School 97,790.01
0206 - Loan #2-J Sullivan to School 12,000.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 478,034.28
Total Liabilities 478,306.86
Equity
0300 - Opening Bal Equity 130,922.28
0320 - Net Assets 540,082.49
Net Income 30,884.71
Total Equity 701,889.48
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,180,196.34
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11:59 AM Tucson Preparatory School

01/07/15
Accrual Basis

Income

1510 -
1990 -
2222 -
2223 -
3110 -
3111 -
3117 -

Profit & Loss

July through December 2014

Interest Earned
Miscellaneous Revenues
Pima County Grant - La Casita
Pima County-Casa Grant
State Aid

Prop 301

Student Success Fund

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense
6100 -
6200 -
6300 -
6400 -
6500 -
6600 -
6800 -
6910 -

Salaries

Payroll Expenses
Professional Services
Property Services
Other Services
Supplies

Other Expenses
Indirect Cost Expense

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul - Dec 14

6.52
3,5690.52
35,926.99
49,675.89
536,566.93
27,816.15
525.91

654,108.91

654,108.91

346,740.45
107,894.12
11,104.42
65,517.13
32,891.27
39,128.65
18,397.07
1,551.09

30,884.71
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11:59 AM Tucson Preparatory School

01/07/15 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis July through December 2014
Jul - Dec 14
Income
1510 - Interest Earned 6.52
1990 - Miscellaneous Revenues 3,580.52
2222 - Pima County Grant - La Casita 35,926.99
2223 - Pima County-Casa Grant 49,675.89
3110 - State Aid 536,566.93
3111 - Prop 301 27,816.15
3117 - Student Success Fund 525.91
Total Income 654,108.91
Gross Profit 654,108.91
Expense
6100 - Salaries
6101 - Salary Director 2400 13,881.98
6105 - Salary Business Manager 11,235.08
6110 - Sal-Enroliment Mngr 2100 15,103.80
6115 - Wages Admin Assistant 2400 16,578.48
6117 - Wages Office Clerk 2400 17,938.52
6118 - Grants Manager 2200 -1,551.09
6120 - Salary Teachers 1000 84,086.42
6122 - Salary Teacher/ Counselor 13,354.34
6124 - Wages Teacher Assist 1000 6,753.38
6126 - Spec Ed Coordinator 200-2100 27,971.92
6131 - Salary - Vice Principal 2400 22,716.42
6133 - Student Mentor 2100 13,352.16
6134 - Salary Case Mngr 2100 32,620.84
6136 - Salary - Student Svcs 2100 7,615.37
6140 - Computer Tech 2800 3,860.00
6143 - Wages-Custodial 2600 16,107.80
6190 - Wages-Retirement Stipend 12,285.00
6192 - Wages - Prop 301-Merit Pay 1000 20,000.00
6193 - Wages - Prop 301 Merit Pay 2100 9,000.00
6199 - Wages Sick/PTO Pay 3,730.03
Total 6100 - Salaries 346,740.45
6200 - Payroll Expenses
6210 - Health Insurance 43,325.95
6221 - FICA 21,574.99
6222 - Medicare 5,045.78
6231 - Retirement 34,636.08
6232 - LTD 359.24
6250 - Unemployment 1000 351.84
6260 - Workers Comp Ins - 1000 2,202.54
6200 - Payroll Expenses - Other 397.70
Total 6200 - Payroll Expenses 107,894.12
6300 - Professional Services
6321 - Misc Purchase Services 2100 42.83
6324 - Miscellaneous Purchase Ser 2400 4,006.00
6325 - Misc Purchase Services 2600 2,122.30
6327 - Counselors/Therapists 2100 575.00
6329 - Misc Purchase Services 1000 81.00
6335 - Security Services 2600 370.02
6341 - Student Attnedance System 2100 957.27
6350 - Audit Services 2500 2,950.00
Total 6300 - Professional Services 11,104.42
6400 - Property Services
6411 - Water/Sewage 2600 1,674.34
6424 - Custodial Services 2600 4,794.88
6436 - Repair and Maint Equipment 2600 2,008.51
6441 - Renting Land and Buildings 2600 52,177.54
6442 - Rental of Equipment 2600 2,010.66

6443 - Vehicle Lease 2700 2,851.20
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11:59 AM

01/07/15
Accrual Basis

Tucson Preparatory School

Profit & Loss

July through December 2014

Total 6400 - Property Services
6500 - Other Services

6510 -
6520 -
6521 -
6530 -
6531 -
6533 *
6581 -
6583 -

Student Bus Passes 2700

P/C Insurance 2600

P/C Insurance 2700

Internet Service 1000
Telephone 2400

Postage & Delivery 2400

Staff Development & Travel 2200
Travel & Training-Admin 2400

Total 6500 - Other Services

6600 - Supplies

6610 -
6611 -
6613 -
6616 -
6617 -
6622 -
6623 -
6626 -
6630 -
6631 -
6643

Instructional Supplies 1000
Student Services Supplies 2100
Supplies-School Admin 2400
Supplies-Operation & Maint 2600
F & E under $5000 2600
Electricity 2600

Bottled Gas 2600

Gasoline & Maintenance 2700
Food - Students 2100

Food - Admin/Meetings 2400
Instructional Aids 1000

Total 6600 - Supplies
6800 - Other Expenses

6813 -
6814 -
6840 -
6891 -

Dues & Fees-School Admin 2400
Transportation Dues & Fees 2700
Interest Paid 2500

Student Attendance Incentives

Total 6800 - Other Expenses

6910 - Indirect Cost Expense

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul - Dec 14

65,517.13

13,677.80
7,563.29
4,223.28

371.56
2,938.23
50.00
1,5682.07
2,485.04

32,891.27

6,431.54
6,827.79
3,606.91
3,874.67

536.68
7,818.27

156.38
3,357.59
5,926.70

263.89

39,128.65

1,902.90
78.85
16,265.32

18,397.07
1,551.09
623,224.20

30,884.71
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. TUCSCN PREPARATORY SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 3 - FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF EXPENSES

The School’s expenses by function for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized
as follows:

2014 2013

Program Services:

Charter school $ Q04,461 $ 977,178
Total Program Services 904,461 977,178
Support Services:

Management and general 326,171 315,867
Total Support Services 326,171 315,867
Total Expenses and Losses $ 1.230.632 $_ 1.293.045

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The School's property and equipment as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Property and equipment:
Building and improvements $ 1,289,701 $ 1,289,701
Equipment 48,079 48,079
Property and equipment, total 1,337,780 1,337,780
Accumulated depreciation and amortization {(311,388) (262,711}
Property and equipment, net $ 1.026392 $ 1.075.069

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $48,676 and $50,513, respectively, for the vears ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013.

NOTE 5 - NOTES PAYABLE

The School's notes payable outstanding as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Note payable to a individual with an original amount of
$647,500 an interest rate of 6.5% and payable in monthly
principal and interest payments of $4,093. The note has
a $70,000 payment due by July 30, 2012 and the unpaid
balance is due and payable on July 30, 2014. The note is N 5
secured by a Deed of Trust on the School's property. $ 419365 440,553
Y Properss /\b%&m@{
Note payable with an original amount of $20,000, payable i 8/80]F
in full on June 30, 2014, and non-interest bearing.
The note is urisecured. - 15,000
Total notes payable 3 419365 455,553

12
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AMENDMENT #2 TO PROMISSORY NOTE
PERTAINING TO ACCOUNT #0311713 OF PREMIER TITLE GROUP,
a division of TITLE SECURITY AGENCY OF ARIZONA

Date: July 11, 2014

WHEREAS, Tucson Preparatory School, Inc., an Arizona non-profit corporation (hereafter the
‘School’), signed a Promissory Note on July 30, 2007, in favor of Brigitta L. Bement, a widow
(hereafter ‘Payee’) to evidence a loan from Payee to the School for the purpose pf purchasing
school facilities located at 104 E. Prince Road, Tucson, Arizona 85705; and

WHEREAS, the original principal amount of the note was Six Hundred Forty Seven Thousand,
Five Hundred Dollars ($647,500); and

WHEREAS, a Sixty Five Thousand Dollars ($65,000) Principal Reduction payment was due and
paid prior to July 30, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the full outstanding balance of the loan was originally due and payable before July
30, 2012; and

WHEREAS, the original Promissory Note was extended for two years and becomes due and
payable in full on July 30, 2014; and

WHEREAS, a Principal Reduction payment in the amount of Seventy Thousand Dollars
(370,000) was due and paid prior to July 30, 2012; and '

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the existing Promissory Note as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED by the Payee and School that: \

~

1. In addition to payments, as state in the original note, a third Principal Reduction payment
of Thirty Five Thousand Dollars ($35,000) is due on or before July 30, 2014; and .

2. An additional payment of Tthty Five Thousand Dollars ($35,000) is due on or before
October 31, 2014; and .

3. The date of the final balloon payment is extended one year and is due and payable on oﬁ
before July 30, 2015; ’ %

4, All other terms of the July 30, 2007, Promissory Note remain in full force and effect and
are binding upon the parties; and

5. The School will submit executed copies of this Amendment to Title Security and request
updated amortization schedules for both parties.





Page Two
July 11,2014

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED:

Brigitta .. Bement
Payee

Y *?szu)’l#Q/ (zi?, IB&MM

Tucson Preparatory School, Inc., an
Arizona non-profit corporation
By JoAnn Davis Sullivan, Director
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AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

Principal Amount: $380,907.38 Term (Menths): 129
Interest Rate: 6.50 % Payment Frequency: Monthly Start Date:  09/01/2014
Payment Amount; $4,116.87 Loan Start Date: 08/01/2014 End Date:  08/01/2015

e
1 09/01114  $4,116.87 $2,063.25  1$2,053.62 $378,853.76 $378,863.76
2 10/01/14 4,116.87 205212 | 2,064.75 376,789.01 376,789.01
3 110114 4,116.87 2,040.04 207503 |  374713.08 374,713.08
0 11/01/14 35,000,00 339,713.08 338,713.08 Pm Reduction
4 12017114 4,116.87 184041 | 2,27676 |  337,436.32 337,436.32
Total Paid For Year $7,5996.42 $4/3,§_Z!3/.¥35“\
5  01/01/15 4,116.87 1,827.78 [ 2,289.00 335,147.23 335,147.23
6  02/01/115 4,116.87 1,815.38 ’/ 2,301.49 332,845.74 332,845.74
7 03/01/15 4,116.87 1,802.81 | 2,313.96 330,531.78 330,531.78
8 04/01/15 4,116.87 1,780.38 ’ 2,326.49 l 328,205.29 328,205.29
9 050115 4,116.87 1777.78 | 2,339.08 325,866.20 325,866.20
40 080115 411687 178571 | 235176 | 32351444 323,514.44
11 1 07/01115 4,116.87 1,752.37 2,364.50 ' 321,148.94 321,149.94
12 08/01/15  322,889.50 1,730.56  321,140.94
Total Paid For Year $14.271.27  $337.436.32
Total Pald for Loan $22,267.69  $380,507.33

: Y S )
G D S5 @ o 00l

amort2.mpt (03/22/01)
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Financial Calculators | Landings Credit Union Page 1 of 1

JOIN LANDINGS CU BRANCH LDCATIONS LOAN APPLICATIONS

i 0800

‘e
CU Mobile

| Compute Payment and ©

Simiply Complete These Four Columns:

i Campute Saving

i Reset Form 2

3,370

v T s | |
¢ 4044@ NC “G:S{QLML LL’(‘M;\“,L | rz";mf\, dgj %AL@} %{_ s o bl D / ((_]//
Onie Mgy s thew @ BAs o U B

=

Branch Hours

https://landingscu.org/Resources/Financial-Calculators.asp 1/7/2015





14t abeg 5L02/211
oY'26E920 L 6L°28E'T1E 12'9.9'8% £9'880'5/0'L 86 11292 97'¢15'06 1208L' 288 L S[ejo pueln N
(00"0} 18'8/0'8b 26991 16991 06 L16°LY <¢8'e00C 18°'8.0'8Y siejol dinb3 g wing
(ro0y /5°010'9 16'991 L 96'991 09°cr8's S5'e00¢ 9€ 95'010'9 PY 90Uld 3 ¥OL|  Odlloay s191eaQ 1andwo) |G| 10-d3HJONLLL 981 SV 104 (6) woishg 1enduion dopysaql| €810 vaAQH  |OYLE0
00’0 olL'Z00v 000 0 000 01200y 000 9g 01°£00'% Py 3dund 3 ¥0t|  O0f ADIyseD uonINy oIy 7| 20-d3HdONLG0 005284 Wey 96poq - ueA 1002} €810 0001  [80/0}/20
00’0 09'v12'9 000 0 000 09vLL9 000 9€ 09'vLL'9 PY #ouud 3 p0Li 00| D JuseD uonany oIny vy 10-d3ddONLG0 3 s1dx3 5e9 uea Arayo 2002| €810 000l |80/01/40
000 0¥'98s 000 [ 000 0v°98S 000 81 0v'985 Py 90uld T ¥OL]  OD|pIED UPsIDesnol uonony) Auedwon g ablen|  L2dIHANLL0 dowde] dH| €810 0z2i | 20/82/10
000 0€'120'6 Q00 0 000 0£'120'6 000 9¢ 0€'420'6 Py 90UNd 3 vOL|  Od|Ecoy aBueyax3 WeisAs 1BIsu){02- LOJIHIONL 0| S1oyuow/s swalsAg salndwog xeidido 119Q 08} £810 0001 [90/20/80
000 £v'LL0'E 000 0 000 €r'LL0'e 000 98 EVLL0'E PY @3ulid I VOL|  Od|bSiE siondwog 13a|  10dIHIONLS0 1oA195 WalsAS 1ouadwon| €810 | 000L | S0/54/90
000 65'Gv9 00°0 0 000 69°9v9 000 9¢ 89'5v9 PHl 99Uld 3 yOLHYOING|  pieD IPID XBWaAUHO|  2043HdONLV0 19w 100D €810 000% | ¥O/v2E/SO
| 000 $2'980'9 000 o 000 52’8809 Q000 09 5278809 Py 90UNd 3 pOL YN (06VE / 29VE Buibew uoyieie|  L0dIHAINLYO yooy-loydon| €810 | 0001 | bO/va/E0
000 21'96L 000 Q 000 G964 Q000 9¢ 21'96L PH 22Ulld 3 v0 1 {Y2Ind | EvEE WwowuRAeH MJO|  £0d3HdINLE0 AN 12INdWOY 10} YIUMG HOJ WOD-E| £BLO 000} |e0/eelio
000 Sv'sle 000 0 000 Sy'gle 000 9€ syaLe PH 83014 3 404 9lee 1odaq 8a10|  $OJIHIONIED auyoey Burpura| €810 | 000} {E£0/6L/90
Q0’0 Lo'9cy 000 0 000 L0'gey 000 9e 1092k PY 90uld 3 0L PIeD 1PID Angised)  £0daWJONLED Jaindwon| €810 0001 |£0/01/20
000 <805y 000 0 000 28 0sy a00 9¢ 2805y Py oound 3 ¥OL S91€ 1odaq 200 20d3UJONLED Jownd| €810 000t |zo/vo/eL
000 ¥8'9£9'¢ 000 [ 000 $8'9e9°¢ 000 9g PIYEI'E Py 82ulid 3 101 L0i8 ou| 'sieindwoy epawedin|  1043HJONLED wsishs isindwog| €810 0001 |20/42/60
000 00°0v8 000 0 000 0008 00'0 09 00'0¥8 PY 85U 3 bOL 990022 MAD|  £0d3HJONLED eloureq [eaBial €810 | 0001 {10/22/60
000 91’666 000 0 000 91'666 000 09 91'566 PY 09Ul T 401 £50022 1odag 2oj0|  90dIHLDNLZO0 loyuop g 1onduon| £gL0 0001 [10/11/60
000 gl'soe 00’0 0 000 €1'50€ 000 09 £1'50€ PH 99ulid 3 yOL £10028 PUNS A3 H-SIBSSY INOA WNOD|  bOdIHAONLZ0 oueld| €810 0001 |10/52/20
000 00°'s5¢e 000 0 000 00°65¢ 000 0g 00°55E PH @ould 3 ¥0l y2e02e (ESIA) S1985Y 10 NGO | £0dAHIONLE0 Joindwoo| 510 0001 |20/60/40
000 §5'995°€ 000 0 00'0 §9°995°¢ 000 09 $5'995'€ Py 8ould 3 b0l 960022 2|18 [RUOLBOAPT SABYOW!  20d3HdONLED (Apor) seindurog dowdu jjaq| e81o | osti | io/eeioL
000 66'LEG 00’0 0 000 66°L89 000 09 66'LES PY s0UNd 3 ¥OL 29201002 10dog 80| €043HONLIO Jond yefiut| €810 0001 |10/01/20
Q00 16604 000 0 000 L8504 000 9g 15'S0L PY 82uld T 01 PYoing 25102 1odaq a3yl0 £034dL00 seuuBOS/XR-/toluld| €810 | 0001  |66/10/ZL
dinb3 g uing
26 2be 920 | 26°80E £9¢ v2'605 8 99°L06' VL0 L 89661 V12 b2 605 B¢ pE LOLGae &
€1'v0e's /8'€BG] 08'8/9 21 £6'288'S L0°506 08'8.9 0z 0088’9 PY 9ound 3 bOL sioloenueg JsamyInog AuNL|  10-gIHdONLEL swawarodw) ays - Aoed souud| 2810 000l |zlis1/en
00'009'Sy 00°00%'0E 000097 |[z1 00°002'€S oo.oo.m.mw 000092 ozt 00°000'92 pY 93Uld 3 v0L 1@ ‘Anoag el ‘aujweans| (08-dIHIONLOL sluswaoidwy ays - A 01/10/90
82'885'G/6 90'52e 1€C  [PY0EC OV [z €I'8I8'510'[ L9'¥60'L61  |v¥ 02 OV 09€ YE'ELE'902'L PH 89U 3 bOL 218 "Anges il ‘suweans|  z0d3WdONLZ0 2115 100495 raeN - A 2810 | 0004 [s0/t0fED
acudwy g sbpig
1L/0€/90 adeg Vi€l syuow § £1/0£/90 adag £i-2l opy Uy 1809 uoneso ‘'sfnoy  #'0'd 10puap ‘oN {042 ‘az15 “ou jopow) uondosag opon  jeofoid sjeq
anjeA yoog wnsoy  dxaided  er-ziag anjep yoog wnoay dxa ideq ot 12010} 1H poyop at 1olqo  eoinog -
4 o ! I [Npayog uonesIdeq vi-£+0g
| ‘ ‘ * 50/58 Zv'u0son] “ pH 93uld 3 01" d3Hd NOSONL :UOReIo]






SL0C Ad P1/S "AdY

I1LIL a3noIs
[BIOYPO [00Yog
[BIOO [0040S
Yo 18 paquosep 186pnq syl o} BIEP 8Y) (S)urBIu0o vi0z v AP
uo uonedNp3 Jo Juswpedaq BUOZUY 8Ul 01 1UBS 5102 Ad 10} (s)aj 196png ay
aleqd

18U wooeosep@daidon; :rewg S81v-229 (02S) :ouoydsia | pasinsy
ueaying Apor ‘88Aojdwg 10BIU0D |00YDS JaleYD vLOZ' v AN peidopy
vLog ‘s Ainp pasodold

SeM G10g lea A [004og auyl 1o} 1e6png oy} eyl Aiueo Agsisy s

656262 | $ IVLOL advog ONINHIAOD FHL A8

000°9% $ 000Y [esepo

658°601 L $ 0008 slelg

0000V | $ 0002 syeipauLIBu| UOISIaA

005t $ 0001 [e00T peidopy
SL0Z WYIA TVOSIH HO4 IDHNOS A8 SINNIATY QILVYWILST 2

129'¥85°9 $ 7102 HYTJA TVOSId HO4 SINNIATH dILIHANG TVLOL '+

139AanNg TYNNNY TOOHDS H31HVHD
(suoisinel 186png 031 ajqeoljdde Jjou uoioas siy|)

S3INNIATY VYNOZIHV 40 31V1S

S10¢ A4

(ejqeondde se) "e'qp

sweN Jaueyn
000892801  YIGWNN STLD euwid ALNNOD looydg Aojesedald uoson| TOOHOS HILHYHO






Gjo | abeg SL0Z A4 ¥1/G Aoy
‘0t %808~ 0S1'952°L ¥6'955'9 006°/¢ 000°G6 [ 89¢'v02 28€¥S9 ‘o¥ (68-£€ saull) [B10L
‘68| %G £6- 0009 £91°60. 66 {og Buy| z efied woy) sioslold s1elg pue [Bispe
‘8¢ ‘8¢ 108[01d $S800NG UBpNIS
‘JE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢ {zz aul| G obed wou) 108foig uononnsu| Aloresuadwio)
"9€g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ‘96 (11 aunl g abed woy) 1sfoid uoisiowiw| ysiibu3g painonig
"GE| %E'G8" 0009 008'0¥ GE (S auil 'y sbed woyy) 108fo1d Juswanoidw) feuononisuy|
ve| %L 0L I8¥'29 160'0¢2 0 0 159G 0€8°19 vE (71 ouy v ebed woyy) spslold 8YS W00ISSE|D
€E[%964- 6990811 068'9/6°'S 006'LE 000°G6 005'gle /12'861 255'265 ‘€€ (ge-£2 pue G| ssul)) [g1019NS
ze 0 0 2€ Buipesy £-4 0§S
e 0 0 Le J8lu8]) "P3 [BUOHEDOA R "PT [EDIUYD9 | ¥ J8sle] IO OyS
0e 0 0 08 sweiboid uonuanaid nodolq 0es
'6¢[ %8 ¢8- 008" Ly £ee'vie 000's 002'cy ‘6¢ uonedodsuel] jidnd 0ov
'8¢ 0 0 ‘8¢ UO-PPY 286-E01 "d 8 9L Aljigesig uopeonp3 [eeds 00g
L2 %0 18- G18°/9 £16°95¢ 0 0 0 £9G'El 252 vs x4 (92-91 seul)) [e1010nS
‘9¢ 0 0 ‘9¢ 83IAI8G 1990 0009
‘G¢ 0 0 'Ge uononNAsUoD 3 uolisinboy selioed 000
ve 0 0 ve S92IAI8S [eUONONIISUIUON Jo uonesad) 000E
€2 0 0 €2 seolag Hoddng 1oyl 0062
'¢c 0 0 red jue|d JO 8oueUBIUR ¥ uonelad) 0092
‘1c 0 0 12 S90IAIDG [eiluUd) Q0S2
0g 0 0 ‘02 UOHRHSIUIIPY [00U2S 00FC
‘6t 0 0 ‘61 uoljelisiulupy jeiauac) 00ES
‘8L %0°001- 0 /96°¢€C ‘8l uolonisuf 00ce
AS 00S°ze 0 0059 000°92 As Sjuepnis 00Le

s90in19g Loddng
91| %Y 68- GlLE'GE are'eee £90°'2 cse'se ‘91 uoionisul 000 +
uogeonpy [eeds 00g
G %EB6L- $59°120°L Pr9'Sve'y 006'.¢ 000'06 008'0L1L ¥51'681 00€'8¢eS ‘Gl (1~ | saul) [e101GnS
Yl 0 6] 4" sweibold 18Yl0 006 ‘008 ‘002 ‘0E9
e 0 0 cl SolvjUlY pasosuods-1004os 029
ch 0 0 ‘Zl S8INANOY JB|NOILINJ0Y) palosuodg-jooyds 019
L1 %665 006'vE 0.0'/8 006't¢ L 90IA18G 1990 000G
0k 0 0 0l uopanisuoy g uolsinboy samoed 000Y
6 0 0 6 Sa0IAISS [RUOIONIISUIUON JO uonesad) 000g
‘8 0 0 ‘8 sao1nI8g Hoddng J1aul0 0062
2] %6'89- 00€'981 192'66S 000'tg 008'Icl 00S°01 000°0¢ L ueld 40 soUeUBIUIRI B uonRIadO 0092
‘9 09502 0 00L'LL 098 009'8 9 §92IAl9g [eJJU9D 00SC
Gl %L P9 9sl'6le 89€'029 00S'2 000°2 006'GlL £62'05 25 eVl S uonelsiuiuIpy [00Yds Q0te
¥{%0°001- 0 621699 v uojjeJsiullLpyY |BJauss) 00ee
c 0S/'9 0 000'% 082 00S'z e uononisul 0oce
K4 8€5/8¢ 0 008 000'9¢ 00s'S 269'G9 9r8'6/.1 C SiuspnisS 00le
$80InI8S Hoddng
H %0 16" 0St'992 918'696'2 000'cg 0002l 619°/G Le8'eLL b uondnasul 000 L
uoneanps teinbay 0oL
aseal0s( Glog v 102 0089 0099 0059 0029 0019 100[0.1d apim|o0yoS 000
Jaseaiou| oA JI=EYN 1BY10 sayddng ‘009 ‘00£9 siyaueg saleesg
% 1obpng 1011¢] S90IAI8S a9akojdwg S3SN3IdX3
s[elo| paseyaind
000897801} H39WNN SdLo Blld ALNNOOD [ooyog Aiojeredsid UOSONL TOOHOS HILHVHO





6£6°00TS

STOT |14dy Ut []ap

Y1m auop aq 01 iyou 23eS1OW YUM - SIAIDSAI YSBD JOJ PauleIqo g 01 spuny 000°09%

spunj iya1 93esHow o/m GEE0YS
TOE doud )0€S MOTTS® unr-gad (s8unsod ud €) ¥SyT=uel 0£0'S2/S

696'S9LS

69L'719$
€CCLTS

18T°SS
A WAL
0009$
EV6'8ES
6YT'SYYS
618°'0€$
€0T'ves

00Z'1STS

S0L'9TTS

1€0CS

LvT'68S
QCY'STS
200'0zs

Sev'ves

STOZ ‘0OE aunf 3Ad
SISATVYNY MOTd HSYD
TOOHIS AHOLVYVd3dd NOSINL

ST0Z/0€/9 @ HSVYD
ST/0€/9 Niyl sasuadxa sso|

ST/0£/9 ® S9]qeAaday g ysed |ejof

[e303gns
ST-v10¢ Ad - 21Seg viQ| :3QV Woli INg

ST-¥T0C Ad - li a1l :3dV wodi INng

ST-PT0C Ad - I 9jH1 :3dVv wodi INnd

ST-¥TOC A4 - 07 doid :3QV wody ang

STOZ unf-uef - Tog doid :3QV wody ang

GTOZ unr-uer - uonezijenby 91e3s :3Qy Woly ang
STOC unf-uer - y1iSv) - Bllld wWodj sng

STOC unf-ugf - ySyd - Bwid wodj ang

PT/TE/TT @ salqeniadsy g yse) jelo}

1oday uonsjdwo) wouy ang-i| 1L TAL
vT0C AInr - uoizezijenby a1eis
TE€/CT nNdYy3 Jueio eysed - AlJunod eulid
TE/CT ndyr 1uesn ese) - AJuno) euwlid
$9|qeAldd9Y ¥T/0€/CT
vT/T€/TT 18 ysed





v.£930V

667191'88%

£6'181'565% 66191883 £6'18Y'GE5$ 0005 98'€96'0L0°L8 NV 9
Y8 '6LE LYrS 86'cSy'€8% 86'25'€8% YE'6LE LTS 19'Ly /6'18Y'€20'L$ 03A S
96'998'€9€$ 88'€.8'06$ 88'¢/806% 96'998'€9€$ eeee 9001216018 AON ¥
80°€66'2.2$ 6€°095'¢.L$ 6€°095'€L$ 80°€66'2.7% 0052 l£2/6'160'18 100 €
69ZEY'66LS 0L2ee'66$ 0L'2£€'66% 69ZEY'66L$ 1991 18°95¢'96L°L$ 43S 2
66'660'001 % 66'660001¢ 66'660'001% 66'660'001% £e'g 29089'102'18 onv L
alA pied aosuelsissy juswied juswied Juswied yuop AdlA pledag o] % aseg aouelsissy YIUOW # U7

uonezijenb3 jenjoy  yjuopy Juaiiny o Jusuiysnipy juaung paje|nojen aouelsissy uonezilenby juswhed gLA  uonezijenbsg

llelaQg JuswAhed asuelsissy uoijezijenbg

aseq aourlsISsy uoiezijenb3 pajsnipy usung
(ebed jse| uo (lejop) Juswiysnipy uoliezilenbIsjuswisnlpy uonezienbs
souejsissy uoljezijenb3 paje|ndled S1-7102

98°¢96°0,0°L$
(06°5t0°91L$)
9/°600°280°L$

aoue)lsissy uonezijenbg

S1L02-v10C Ad
llele@ ejnpayss Juawhed asuelsissy uonezijenbg

jooyas Alojesedald uoson|  89-/8-01
vLoZ/oLiclL -Sjeg uny

G102/2/L 8leq Juswuopoddy uonesnp3 10 Juawpedaq BUOZIY

L-¥9dVYHO SIVS





1UN02 Juspnis pajyblam Jad GeZ$ Uo paseq St ydlym ‘43S0 Jenuue GLOZAL SY 10 SUIZL/G POAIDDSI SARY (|IM [00YDS JSHEUD PUB 1OLISIP |00Yds yoes ,

SL'ELS‘SS junowy juswAed
00°0% JIBIoYS anuaasy o] ang uawisn(py
GL'€1LSs'ss anq wswAied
00°0$ sBulployyim
(80°05%) sabueyn diysiagqus|y Ajleq ebessay o] ang wuswisnipy
€Z'€95°'G$ wawAed Ajyiuon
00°0% souejeq bue1s
junowy suondesuel] Yuojy juaiing
%L410°0 :Junod apimalelg Jo abejuadiad JapeynaoMysiq 0€°9Z¢ :junog juapnyg bulpuany pajybiap Jaueygaoulsiq
00°000°L12'802$ :uolINqLSI( 10} 3]qe|IBAY SaNUBASY 4S9 ALA 19 1SEZLE L :junoJ juspnig payybiapn apimalels |ejo |
L1°86.°99%
00°562% junowy jidnd 1ad x
600£°92¢ 600€°92¢ 0S20°LY1 0000°0 00000 00000 00000 jelo]
600€'9¢¢ 600£°92¢ 26851 0S¢0 LYl 00000 00000 0000°0 00000 00000 00000 jooyodg Isyeyd
pajublapa  1yBiap uno) palybrapy  yBrap unog pajubiepa  yBrag juno)
poybiapn [ejoL 4% cl-6 cl-6 8-M 8-M 8- asd asd asd
|ooysg Miojeredald uosoang 000892801
§10Z/4/1 :33eq Hoday ¥3EWID3A S10Z A4

. 1¥0d3¥ 1iv.13a LNIWAVY ANN4 31IS WOOUSSY1I
Z o | :abed NOILVINA3 40 LNIWLYVYIIA YNOZINY COLdd-dSD





Allocations

GME Home

Administer

Search

Inbox

Funding

Reimbursement Requests

LEA Document Library

Address Book

Contact ADE

Document Library
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Page 1 of 1

Tucson Preparatory Schoot (108768000) Charter District - FY 2015 - ESEA Consolidated - Rev 0 - Allocations

Save And Go To

Original

Incoming Carryover
Outgoing Carryover
Reallocated
Additional

Rel d

Jdohnson, Shelly

Frothiction

Session Timeout
090:58:581

Consortium
Forfeited

FFR Released
Total

From Title | LEA

From Title i-D Del LEA

From Title lI-A

From RLIS

Total

Eeedback |

CEDA 340

47,351.54

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

47,351.54

5,181.13
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

5,181.13

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
6.00
0.00
0.00

Z&

Resource Center |

FAQ | Privacy Policy | Extemal Guidelines

900

52,532.67
0.00
0.00
6.00
6.00
6.00
6.00
6.00
0.00
52,532.67

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

52,532.67

Arizona Department of Education | 1535 West Jefferson Street | Phoenix, Arizona 85007 | {844) 893-9789 or local {602) 542-3901 l GrantsManagementGroup@azed.gov

https://gme.azed.gov/Funding/Sections/Allocations.aspx?ccipSessionKey=63556261310322... 1/7/2015





Allocations Page 1 of 1

GME Home .
T Allocations
Search Tucson Preparatory School (108768000) Charter District - FY 2015 - IDEA - Basic - Rev 0 - Allocations
—
Funding
Reimbursement Requests ! v I !
LEA Document Liorary Original 17,223.10 17,223.10
Address Book Incoming Carryover 0.00 0.00
Contact ADE Outgoing Carryover 0.00 0.00
Document Library Reallocated 0.00 0.00
Help Additional 0.00 0.00
GME Sign Cut Released 0.00 0.00
Consortium 0.00 0.00
Johnson, Sheily
Forfeited 0.00 0.00
Lroduction FFR Released 0.00 0.00
Session Timeout
G0:8%:53 Total 1722310 17.223.10

Feedback | Resource Center | FaQ | Privacy Policy | External Guidelines

Arizona Department of Education [ 1635 West Jefferson Street [ Phoenix, Arizona 85007 I (844) 893-9789 or local (602} 542-3901 [ GrantsManagementGroup@azed.gov

https://gme.azed.gov/Funding/Sections/Allocations.aspx?ccipSessionKey=63556261355523... 1/7/2015
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1:43 PM

01/07/15
Accrual Basis

Tucson Preparatory School

Transactions by Account
As of December 31, 2014

Type Date Num Name Class Debit Credit Balance

0132 - Accounts Receivable 0.00
0136 - Grants Receivable 0.00
Invoice 06/30/2014 Title | AZ Dept Ed 32,396.00 32,396.00
Invoice 06/30/2014 Title It AZ Dept Ed 1140 Title Il 2,030.50 34,426.50
Payment 07/18/2014 AZ Dept Ed 32,396.00 2,030.50

Total 0136 - Grants Receivable 34,426.50 32,396.00 2,030.50

Total 0132 - Accounts Receivable 34,426.50 32,396.00 2,030.50
TOTAL 34,426.50 32,396.00 2,030.50

Page 1
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AR1ZONA STATE BoArRD FOR CHARTER ScHoOOLS
Annual Monitoring Summary Review

Interval Report Details Hide Section

Report Date: 03/31/2015 Report Type: Annual Monitoring

Charter Contract Information Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: Tucson Preparatory School
Charter CTDS: 10-87-68-000 Charter Entity ID: 6374
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 07/01/2012
Authorizer: ASBCS Contractual Days:
Number of Schools: 1 e Tucson Preparatory School: 180
Charter Grade Configuration: 9-12 Contract Expiration Date: 06/30/2032
FY Charter Opened: 1998 Charter Signed: 05/10/2013
Charter Granted: 09/10/2012 Corp. Commission Status gtharé?r Holder is in Good

anding

Corp. Commission File # 0839063-4 Corp. Type Non Profit
gg:g. Commission Status 03/30/2015 Charter Enrollment Cap 165

Charter Contact Information Hide Section
Mailing Address: 104 E. Prince Rd. Website: _
Tucson, AZ 85705
Phone: 520-622-4185 Fax: 520-622-4755
Mission Statement: To offer homeless, chronically truant and otherwise troubled youth who have experience

academic/school failure with an individualized course of instruction that not only focuses upon
academic corrections and remediation, but engenders self worth and prepares them
educationally and socially for a productive future.

Charter Representatives: Name: Email: FCC Expiration Date:

1.) Mr. Steven Nelson stevetucsonprep@gmail.com 07/25/2012

2.) Mr. Mark vonDestinon tucprep@dakotacom.net 06/26/2018

Academic Performance - Tucson Preparatory School Hide Section

School Name: Tucson Preparatory School School CTDS: 10-87-68-001
School Entity ID: 5892 Charter Entity ID: 6374
School Status: Open School Open Date: 08/17/1998
Physical Address: 104 E. Prince Road Website: _

Tucson, AZ 85705
Phone: 520-622-4185 Fax: 520-622-4755





Grade Levels Served: 9-12
1. Growth
h
1a. SGP Mat .
Reading
Math
1b. Improvement :
Reading
2. Proficiency
Math
2a. Percent Passing
Reading
Math
2b. Sub ELL
ubgroup Reading
Math
2b. Subgroup FRL
Reading
Math
2b. Subgroup SPED am.
Reading

3. State Accountability
3a. State Accountability

4. Graduation

4a. Graduation
4b. Academic Persistence

Overall Rating

Scoring for Overall Rating

89 or higher: Exceeds Standard

<89, but > or = to 63: Meets Standard
<63, but > or = to 39: Does Not Meet
Standard

Less than 39: Falls Far Below Standard

Save

FY 2014 100" Day ADM: 145.853
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hi ion
Tucson Preparatory School
2012 2013 2014
Alternative Alternative Alternative
High School (9 to 12) High School (9 to 12) High School (9 to 12)

Points : Points c Points c

Measure Assigned Weight | Measure Assigned Weight | Measure Assigned Weight
NR 0 0 NR 0 0 NR 0 0
0 0 NR 0 0
—— 15 —— 15 15
41.5 15 44.2 15 e
Points : Points : Points :

Measure Assigned Weight | Measure Assigned Weight | Measure Assigned Weight
7/19.4 50 10 [9.2/192 50 10 | 107 50 10

58 /

NR 0 0 B 33 0
NR 0 0 NR 0 0 0
6/18.4 50 5 |95/182 50 167 | oS 50 2.5

53/ 38.3 /

45.9 e 2 51.1 . -6 - 2
w0 o | .
NR 0 0 NR 0 0 20 / 26.6 2.5

Measure Az:iignnt; d Weight | Measure Az;ignntz d Weight | Measure AlsD:ilgn:Z d Weight
cat 5o s NEEEEEE - NS
Measure AI:Soi;nnt: d Weight | Measure AE:il;gnnt; d Weight | Measure AE:il;gnnt; d Weight

Met 75 15 Met 75 15 Not Met 50 15
89 75 20 84 75 20 72 75 20
Overall Rating Overall Rating Overall Rating

58.75 100 49.58 100 42.5 100

Financial Performance

Hide Section

Charter Corporate Name:
Charter CTDS:

Charter Status: Open

Tucson Preparatory School
10-87-68-000

Charter Entity ID:

Contract Effective Date:

6374
07/01/2012





Financial Performance

Tucson Preparatory School

Fiscal Year 2013 Fiscal Year 2014

Near-Term Measures

Hi ion

Going Concern No Meets No Meets
Unrestricted Days Liquidity 23.04 Does Not Meet 31.21 Meets
Default No Meets No Meets
Sustainability Measures (Negative numbers indicated by
parentheses)
Net Income (592,749)  Does Not Meet $45,729 Meets
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 0.33 Does Not Meet 0.29 Does Not Meet
Cash Flow (3-Year
Cumulative) (547,461) Does Not Meet (553,411) Does Not Meet

Cash Flow Detail by

Saeal Vg FY 2013 FY 2012

FY 2011 FY 2014 FY 2013

(5119,301) $14,927 $56,913  $50,963

Does Not Meet Board's Financial Performance Expectations

FY 2012
($119,301) $14,927

Charter/Legal Compliance Hide Section

Charter Corporate Name: Tucson Preparatory School

Charter CTDS: 10-87-68-000 Charter Entity ID: 6374
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 07/01/2012

Timely Submission of AFR  Hi ion Timely Submission of Budget Hi ion
Year Timely Year Timely
2014 Yes 2015 Yes
2013 Yes 2014 Yes
2012 Yes 2013 Yes
2011 No 2012 Yes
2010 No 2011 Yes

Special Education Monitoring Detail Hide Section

SPED Monitoring Date 01/20/2014 Child Identification In Compliance

Evaluation/Re-evaluation: In Compliance IEP Status:

Delivery of Service: Procedural Safeguards:

Sixty Day Item Due Date ESS Compliance Date:

In Compliance
In Compliance
01/30/2014

Audit Compliance Hide Section

Charter Corporate Name:
Charter CTDS:

Tucson Preparatory School

10-87-68-000 Charter Entity ID:

6374





Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 07/01/2012

Year Timely
2014 Yes
2013 Yes
2012 Yes
2011 Yes
2010 Yes

There were no CAP Issues for fiscal years 2010 to 2014.

FY Issue #1 Issue #2

2014

2013

2012 Repeat Open Meeting Law Repeat Open Meeting Law
2011 Repeat Required Filings

2010
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Tucson Preparatory School

Tucson Preparatory School cros: 10-87-68-001 | Entity i0: 5892

General Site Contact Inspections Grades Governing Body FY Data Site Visits Member Campuses Amendments
Academic Performance
Academic Performance
Edit this section.
Tucson Preparatory School
2012 2013 2014
Alternative Alternative Alternative
High School (9 to 12) High School (9 to 12) High School (9 to 12)
1. Growth Measure Ass?i:_;nnt: d Weight | Measure AE:ilgn:: d Weight | Measure Als:‘:i;n:; d Weight
Math NR 0 0 NR 0 0 NR 0 0
1a. SGP ath
Reading NR 0 0
b, Imorovement | Math i- 15 ﬁ- 15 15
- mP Reading | 41.5 50 15 44.2 50 B s
2. Prof‘iciency Measure Asglgnnt; 4 Weight | Measure AE:ilgnnt; 4 Weight | Measure A':;‘;:: 4 Weight
Math 7/19.4 50 10 | %2, 0 50 10
2a. Percent Passing =1 .
Math NR 0 0 3.33 NR 0 0
2b. Subgroup ELL
A Reading | NR 0 0 NR 0 0
Math 6/18.4 50 5 91'52’ 50 167 | LAl 50 25
2b. Subgroup FRL = o 3 7 '
Reading 45.9 75 5 5L1 50 1.67 2.5
o SR Reading | NR 0 0 NR 0 0o |20/266 50 @ 25
oo P i . P : . P . .
3. State Accountabi []ty Measure As:ilgnnt; 4 Weight | Measure As:ilgnnt; 4 Weight | Measure As:;gnnt: g Weight
3a. State Accountability C-ALT 50 s RSN - Rl
4. Graduation Measure AZsoilgnr::: d Weight | Measure Az'?ilgnr::; d Weight | Measure A's):i;nnt; d Weight
4a. Graduation Met 75 15 Met 75 15 Not Met 50 15
4b. Academic Persistence 89 75 20 84 75 20 72 75 20
Overall Rat]ng Overall Rating Overall Rating Overall Rating
Scoring for Overall Rating
89 or higher: Exceeds Standard
<89, but > or = to 63: Meets Standard
<63, but > or = to 39: Does Not Meet 58°75 100 49' 58 100 42' 5 100
Standard
Less than 39: Falls Far Below Standard

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/schools/information/1160/tucson-preparatory-school#academic-performance-tab[2/25/2015 4:32:10 PM]
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Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Site Visit Inventory
Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School Required for: Annual Report
School Name: Tucson Preparatory School Evaluation Criteria Area: Data
Site Visit Date: March 23, 2015

Document Name/Identification Intended Purpose and Discussion Outcome

[D.1] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) - Math

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Student Median
Growth Percentile (SGP) — Math.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:
e the data provided was “SGP - Math” indicated the SGP for their students saw a decrease from 2013 to 2014.

e This data was not provided for current year data.
e This data was not provided for all students, but rather only a subgroup.

e Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

e The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.2] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) - Reading

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Student Median
Growth Percentile (SGP) — Reading.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:
e the data provided was “SGP, Bottom 25% - Reading” indicated the SGP for their Bottom 25% students in 2013

they were able to increase SGP 4 percentage points, but in they were able to increase SGP 4 percentage points.
e This data was not provided for current year data.

e This data was not provided for all students, but rather only a subgroup.

Page 1 of 7






e Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

e The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.3] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Improvement — Math

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Improvement — Math.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:
e the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and

fall 2015. This data includes 10t grade students as well as retesting students.

e This data shows that there is a decrease of in the percentage (-6%) of students who scored FFB an increase of
in the percentage of students who scored approaches (+6%) and no change in the percentage of students
scoring meets.

e This data does not speak to the percentage of non-proficient students increasing their score.

e Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

e The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

e The charter holder provided “raw data” indicating student performance on AIMS. No analysis was conducted
by the charter holder. A quick review indicates that several students show no improvement.

[D.4] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Improvement — Reading

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Improvement — Reading.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:

Page 2 of 7






the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and
fall 2015. This data includes 10t grade students as well as retesting students.

This data shows that there is a decrease in the percentage (-14%) of students who scored Meets. The data
shows an increase in the percentage of students who scored approaches (+16%) and a decrease in the
percentage (-2%) of students scoring FFB.

This data does not speak to the percentage of non-proficient students increasing their score.

Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.5]

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Percent Passing — Math

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Percent Passing —

Math.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:

the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and
fall 2015. This data includes 10t grade students as well as retesting students.

This data shows that there is a decrease of in the percentage (-6%) of students who scored FFB an increase of
in the percentage of students who scored approaches (+6%) and no change in the percentage of students
scoring meets.

Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.6]

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic

Page 3 of 7






performance in Percent Passing — Reading

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Percent Passing —
Reading.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:
e the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and

fall 2015. This data includes 10t grade students as well as retesting students.

e This data shows that there is a decrease in the percentage (-14%) of students who scored Meets. The data
shows an increase in the percentage of students who scored approaches (+16%) and a decrease in the
percentage (-2%) of students scoring FFB.

e  Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

e The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher

observation.

[D.7] n/a
[D.8] n/a
[D.9] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic

performance in Percent Passing Subgroup, FRL — Math

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Percent Passing
Subgroup, FRL — Math.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:
e the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and

fall 2015. This data includes 10t grade students as well as retesting students.

e This data shows that there is a decrease of in the percentage (-6%) of students who scored FFB an increase of
in the percentage of students who scored approaches (+6%) and no change in the percentage of students
scoring meets.

e Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.
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The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.10]

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Percent Passing Subgroup, FRL — Reading

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Percent Passing
Subgroup, FRL — Reading.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:

the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and
fall 2015. This data includes 10" grade students as well as retesting students.

This data shows that there is a decrease in the percentage (-14%) of students who scored Meets. The data
shows an increase in the percentage of students who scored approaches (+16%) and a decrease in the
percentage (-2%) of students scoring FFB.

Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.11]

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Percent Passing Subgroup, Students with disabilities — Math

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Percent Passing
Subgroup, Students with disabilities — Math.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:

No data or analysis was provided to speak to this measure.

Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates that
many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year
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The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher observation.

[D.12]

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved academic
performance in Percent Passing Subgroup, Students with disabilities — Reading

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved academic performance in Percent Passing
Subgroup, Students with disabilities — Reading.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved academic performance because:

the data provided included spring and fall AIMS for 2013, the 2014 data includes fall and spring for 2014 and
fall 2015. This data includes 10t grade students as well as retesting students.

This data shows that there is no change in the percentage of students who scored Meets. The data shows a
decrease in the percentage (-13%) of students who scored approaches and an increase in the percentage
(+12%) of students scoring FFB.

Student by student internal data is provided. No analysis was conducted. A quick view of this data indicates
that many students demonstrate declines in performance from year to year.

The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
observation.

[D.13]

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: improved performance in High
School Graduation Rate

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of improved performance in High School Graduation Rate.

The documents provided do not demonstrate improved performance because:

The data from high school graduation rate indicates 9% graduation rate in 2013 and 30% in 2014.

The charter holder provided 3 anecdotal “case studies” to show improved performance. No data was provided
to support this is an accurate reflection of performance. Further the case studies indicate that students are
removed from remediation, but no data was provided to support these changes in student status. Rather the
charter holder’s representatives indicate that these are based on informal assessment and teacher
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observation.
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Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Site Visit Inventory
Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School Required for: Annual Report
School Name: Tucson Preparatory School Evaluation Criteria Area: Curriculum
Site Visit Date: March 16, 2015

Document Name/Identification Intended Purpose and Discussion Outcome

[C.1] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the process for evaluating
curriculum and how the Charter Holder evaluates how effectively the curriculum enables students to meet the
standards.

Explanation of Documents
Lesson plans
Observation notes

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.

Meeting sign-in sheets The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.
Walk through notes
Evaluations Observation notes: This document demonstrates that teachers are evaluated and during said evaluation the

principal/lead teacher ensures that students are being provided the opportunity to learn.
Meeting sign-in sheets: This document shows that TPS staff has discussed the implementation of ACCR.

Walk through notes: This document demonstrates that the principal/lead teacher corrects teachers and provides
direction on how to better ensure students are learning the curriculum to meet the standards.

Evaluations: This document demonstrates that evaluations are done on teachers by the principal/lead teacher.

The combination of these documents demonstrates that teachers are aware they need to cover ACCR content in the
classroom so that students can meet the standards as set down by the State of Arizona. In the event teachers fail to
cover all the ACCR content, the lead teacher/principal provides direction to ensure students are afforded the
opportunity to meet standards.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: a process for evaluating curriculum and how
the Charter Holder evaluates how effectively the curriculum enables students to meet the standards

[C.2] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
identifies gaps in the curriculum.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Explanation of Documents i . . i o .
e The charter holder failed to demonstrate any process for evaluating curriculum as identified in the question

Lesson plans
Observation notes
Meeting sign-in sheets

above. Without any process for evaluating curriculum there is no process for identifying gaps.
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Assessment scores
FuelEd Anywhere Learning
System

e Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social
studies standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona
Mathematics Standards. The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional
activities that compose the lesson.

e Observation notes: This document demonstrates that administration identifies where teachers have left gaps in
the curriculum and provides an opportunity to work on developing content to bridge said gaps.

e  Meeting sign-in sheets: The document describes school operational issues regarding the administration of AIMS
tests, identifying the teachers for AIMS prep program, discussion of Common Core standards and what other
states are doing, and PARCC pilot testing.

e Assessment scores: This document demonstrates that students have skills at or below sixth grade level and
identify students that did not take the exam.

e  FuelEd Anywhere Learning System: This document includes handwritten notes from September 2010. The notes
appear to document the process for utilizing an online system, but the system is not identified in the notes.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: how the Charter Holder identifies gaps in the
curriculum.

[C.3]

Explanation of Documents
Curriculum Evaluation Notes
Meeting sign-in sheets,
minutes

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the Charter Holder’s process for
adopting or revising curriculum based on its evaluation processes.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following: The charter holder failed to demonstrate any
process for evaluating curriculum as identified in the question.

Meeting sign-in sheets: the notes indicate that a general review of all students was planned before the winter break and
that teachers discussed changes to classroom management. The notes indicate that English teacher worked on new
strategies.

Curriculum Evaluation Notes: This document demonstrates that the principal/lead teacher provides feedback on
instructional practices through classroom observations and reviews.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: a process for adopting or revising curriculum
based on its evaluation processes.
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[C.4]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets,
minutes

Principal job description

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: who is involved in the process
for adopting or revising curriculum.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
Meeting sign-in sheets, minutes: This document identifies teacher assignments for two courses IA and IB and that another
teacher will begin an AIMS prep class.

Principal job description: This document identifies that the principal/lead teacher is responsible for evaluating curricula,
teaching methods, and programs to determine their effectiveness, efficiency, and utilization, and to ensure that school
activities comply with federal, state, and local regulations.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: that the principal evaluates curricula and
programs to determine their effectiveness, efficiency, and utilization, and to ensure that school activities comply with
federal, state, and local regulations.

[C.5]

Explanation of Documents
Board minutes

Team Sign-in sheets

Tabe Alignment Common Core
Tabe Flow Chart

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: when adopting curriculum, how
the Charter Holder evaluates curriculum options to determine which curriculum to adopt.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
Board Minutes on web site: This document demonstrates that Board annually agree to complete the “Declaration of
Curricular and Instructional Alignment” that is required by the Arizona Department of Education.

Team Sign-in sheets: include the Board meeting minutes.
Tabe Alignment Common Core: informational document from the publisher that created the TABE assessment. The
document includes tables that identify where Common Core anchor standards appear in different levels of the TABE

assessment. There are standards listed that are not assessed by any level of the TABE assessment

Tabe Flow Chart: This document identifies a generic process which incorporates the TABE assessment as part of an
instructional cycle.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: a process for evaluating curriculum options to
determine which curriculum to adopt.
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[C.6]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets
ACCR Standards

Lesson Plans
Observations

Schedules

Course curricula

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the Charter Holder’s process for
ensuring consistent implementation of the curriculum across the school(s) operated by the Charter Holder.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

e Observation indicates that teachers are evaluated on whether the teacher “plans instruction using content
knowledge, curriculum, cross disciplinary skills, and pedagogy”. However the description provided at the site
visit did not demonstrate that during observations are used to ensure implementation of the curriculum.

e  Meeting sign-in sheets: This document demonstrates that Board annually agree to complete the “Declaration
of Curricular and Instructional Alignment” that is required by the Arizona Department of Education.

e Board Minutes on web site: This document demonstrates that Board annually agree to complete the
“Declaration of Curricular and Instructional Alignment” that is required by the Arizona Department of
Education.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: the Charter Holder’s process for ensuring
consistent implementation of the curriculum across the school(s) operated by the Charter Holder.

[c.7]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets
Lesson plans

Schedules

Course syllabi

Principal observation
Pacing/sequence guides

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: that tools exist that identify
what must be taught and when it must be delivered and how the Charter Holder ensures that all grade-level standards
are covered within the academic year.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e Pacing/sequence guides: This document serves to provide an example of how the teacher identifies the work

packets that are to be completed and lessons that are to be taught by week.

e  Course syllabi documents for Geometry and Algebra Il identify the topics to be addressed within the course and
identify standards to be addressed by lessons for each topic within a course. A probability and statistics course
description was provided that identified standards for each packet that identifies standards.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: tools that identify what must be taught and
when it must be taught for Reading courses, and tool that ensure that all grade-level standards are covered within the
academic year.

[C.8]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets
Board Minutes on web site
Principal Job description
Teacher Job description
ACCR Standards-English

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the expectation for consistent
use of these tools and how these expectations are communicated.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
Meeting sign-in sheets: This document demonstrates that Board annually agree to complete the “Declaration of
Curricular and Instructional Alignment” that is required by the Arizona Department of Education.
Board Minutes on web site: This document demonstrates that Board annually agree to complete the “Declaration of
Curricular and Instructional Alignment” that is required by the Arizona Department of Education.
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ACCR Standards-Math
Course Syllabi/Overviews for
— Shakespeare Survey Course,
Algebra, Probability and
Statistics, English Language
Proficiency, Math Proficiency

Principal Job description: This document demonstrates the principal responsibilities include:

Enforce discipline and attendance rules.

Confer with parents and staff to discuss educational activities, policies, and student behavioral or learning
problems.

Observe teaching methods and examine learning materials to evaluate and standardize curricula and teaching
techniques, and to determine areas where improvement is needed.

Collaborate with teachers to develop and maintain curriculum standards (Arizona adopted Common Core),
develop mission statements, and set performance goals and objectives.

Recruit, hire, train, and evaluate primary and supplemental staff.

Evaluate curricula, teaching methods, and programs to determine their effectiveness, efficiency, and utilization,
and to ensure that school activities comply with federal, state, and local regulations.

Counsel and provide guidance to students regarding personal, academic, vocational, or behavioral issues.
Establish, coordinate, and oversee particular programs across school districts, such as programs to evaluate
student academic achievement.

Set educational standards and goals, and help establish policies and procedures to carry them out.

Plan and lead professional development activities for teachers, administrators, and support staff.

Teacher Job description: This document demonstrates the teacher responsibilities include:

Establish and enforce rules for behavior and procedures for maintaining order among students.

Instruct through lectures, discussions, and demonstrations in one or more subjects, such as English,
mathematics, or social studies.

Adapt teaching methods and instructional materials to meet students' varying needs and interests.
Maintain accurate and complete student records as required by laws, policies, and administrative
regulations.

Enforce all administration policies and rules governing students.

Assign and grade class work.

Prepare materials and classrooms for class activities.

Observe and evaluate students' performance, behavior, and social development.

Plan and conduct activities for a balanced program of instruction, demonstration, and work time that
provides students with opportunities to observe, question, and investigate.

Prepare, administer, and grade tests and assignments to evaluate students' progress. Insure
assignments adhere to Common Core standards that Arizona has adopted.

ACCR Standards-English: This document demonstrates English class assignments, how to earn credits, and the ACCR
standards that are included in the course.

ACCR Standards-Math: This document demonstrates Math class assignments, how to earn credits, and the ACCR
standards that are included in the course.
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English Language Proficiency and Math Proficiency course syllabi describe the outcomes of the remedial courses.
The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: the expectation for consistent use of these
tools and how these expectations are communicated.

[C.9]

Explanation of Documents
Lesson plans
Observations

Pacing guides

ACCR Standards-English
ACCR Standards-Math
Assessment Data Brigance
Assessment Data WRAT-4
Principal job description

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: evidence to demonstrate usage
of these tools in the classroom and alignment with instruction.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

ACCR Standards-English: This document demonstrates English class assignments, how to earn credits, and the ACCR
standards that are included in the course.

ACCR Standards-Math: This document demonstrates Math class assignments, how to earn credits, and the ACCR
standards that are included in the course.

Assessment Data Brigance: The charter holder provided assessment data. No evaluation was provided. Nothing was
provided to demonstrate this data was used or how.

Assessment Date WRAT-4: The charter holder provided assessment data. No evaluation was provided. Nothing was
provided to demonstrate this data was used or how.

Principal job description: This document demonstrates the principal responsibilities include:

*Confer with parents and staff to discuss educational activities, policies, and student behavioral or learning
problems.

*Observe teaching methods and examine learning materials to evaluate and standardize curricula and teaching
techniques, and to determine areas where improvement is needed.

eCollaborate with teachers to develop and maintain curriculum standards (Arizona adopted Common Core),
develop mission statements, and set performance goals and objectives.

eRecruit, hire, train, and evaluate primary and supplemental staff.

eEvaluate curricula, teaching methods, and programs to determine their effectiveness, efficiency, and utilization,
and to ensure that school activities comply with federal, state, and local regulations.

eCounsel and provide guidance to students regarding personal, academic, vocational, or behavioral issues.

eEstablish, coordinate, and oversee particular programs across school districts, such as programs to evaluate
student academic achievement.

eSet educational standards and goals, and help establish policies and procedures to carry them out.

*Plan and lead professional development activities for teachers, administrators, and support staff.

Principal job description: This document identifies that the principal/lead teacher is responsible for evaluating curricula,
teaching methods, and programs to determine their effectiveness, efficiency, and utilization, and to ensure that school
activities comply with federal, state, and local regulations.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: evidence to demonstrate usage of these tools
in the classroom and alignment with instruction.
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[C.10]

Explanation of Documents
Lesson plans

Meetings sign-ins
Principal job description

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder knows
the curriculum is aligned to standards.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
Meetings sign-ins: This document demonstrates discussion amongst teachers regarding:

e Preparation for last day and celebration for December bdays

e Near graduates have been spoken with about class changes

e (Class planning continues

e (Class changes

¢ SPED recommendations for class changes received in full. Accommodations /class requests will be compared
with new credits progress

e Credit entry progressing will be complete by end of week

e Liz and Brian will discuss English IB.

Principal job description: This document identifies that the principal/lead teacher is responsible for evaluating curricula,
teaching methods, and programs to determine their effectiveness, efficiency, and utilization, and to ensure that school
activities comply with federal, state, and local regulations.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: how the Charter Holder knows the
curriculum is aligned to standards.
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[c.11]

Explanation of Documents
Reading syllabi

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data
AIMS/Stanford data

Student grades

Reading Endorsement
Documentation

English Language Proficiency,
Math Proficiency

Sample of math proficiency
course materials

Sample of English Language
proficiency materials

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder ensures
that the curriculum addresses the needs of non-proficient students.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Reading syllabi: the charter holder provided syllabi for remedial classes in reading. The document identifies goals and
requirements for articles, short stories, and poetry.

Math syllabi: the charter holder provided syllabi for remedial classes in math. The document identifies the names of
“academic standards” areas to be met, course objectives, and the standards that are aligned to the archived academic

standards .

Brigance data: the charter holder provided a quick evaluation of Brigance data to show the percentage of students at
6th grade level or below.

WRAT-4 data: the charter holder provided one student’s assessment data it did not have a score for the assessment
that was highlighted.

AIMS/Stanford data: the charter holder provided one student’s assessment data.

Student grades: the charter holder provided a grade book for the reading remediation class. The grade book had
student names, but did not identify that any assignments had been given or graded.

Reading Endorsement Documentation: This document shows that two staff are working to obtain certification in
reading.

Math Proficiency Development and English Language Proficiency documents describe the expected goals and outcomes
of courses designed for non-proficient students.

Sample course materials for Math Proficiency and English Language proficiency identify specific assignments to be
completed by students as part of courses created for non-proficient students.

Course materials for both courses were provided as examples of student work to be completed for each course.

[C.12]

Explanation of Documents
Dashboard

PHLOTE documents
AZELLA results

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data

AIMS data

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder ensures
that the curriculum addresses the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs).

N/A
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[C.13]

Explanation of Documents
Reading syllabi

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data

AIMS data

Student grades

Reading Endorsement
Documentation

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder ensures
that the curriculum addresses the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students.

N/A

[C.14]

Explanation of Documents
IEP

Reading syllabi

Math syllabi

Brigance data
WRAT-4 data
AIMS/Stanford data
Student grades
Reading Endorsement
Documentation

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder ensures
that the curriculum addresses the needs of students with disabilities.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

IEP: This document demonstrates that TPS issues, monitors, updates, and follows IEPs as mandated by the Department
of Education. IEP sample was provided that identifies specific math and reading goals for a student as well as classroom
instruction adaptations.

Reading syllabi: the charter holder provided syllabi for remedial classes in reading. The document identifies goals and
requirements for articles, short stories, and poetry.

Math syllabi: the charter holder provided syllabi for remedial classes in math. The document identifies the names of
“academic standards” areas to be met, course objectives, and the standards that are aligned to the archived academic

standards .

Brigance data: the charter holder provided one student’s assessment data it did not have a score for the assessment
that was highlighted.

WRAT-4 data: the charter holder provided one student’s assessment data it did not have a score for the assessment
that was highlighted.

AIMS data: the charter holder provided one student’s assessment data.

Student grades: the charter holder provided a grade book for the reading remediation class. The grade book had
student names, but did not identify that any assignments had been given or graded.

Reading Endorsement Documentation: T This document shows that two staff are working to obtain certification in
reading.
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Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Site Visit Inventory

Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School Required for: Annual Report
School Name: Tucson Preparatory School Evaluation Criteria Area: Assessment

Site Visit Date: March 23, 2015

Document Name/Identification

Intended Purpose and Discussion Outcome

[A.1]
Explanation of Documents
Brigance, spreadsheet of all

scores over the last two years.

WRAT-4 spreadsheet of all

scores over the last two years.

AIMS data
Stanford 10 data
Meeting Notes

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the types of assessments the
Charter Holder uses

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The assessments that the charter holder utilizes are the WRAT 4, Brigance, AIMS, and Stanford 10.

e Students are assessed immediately after enrollment with the Brigance (Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills and
the WRAT-4 (Wide Achievement Test 4). Through the use of these assessments the school can evaluate a
student’s ability to read, spell, comprehend sentences, and computation of Mathematical problems at
enrollment.

[A.2]
Explanation of Documents
Team Meeting minutes
Board minutes

ADE Mandate

AIMS Data

Stanford 10 Data

Brigance

WRAT-4

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the process for designing or
selecting the assessment system

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The charter holder’s board meets annually to sign the “Declaration of Curricular and Instructional Alignment”

e The summative assessments are provided by ADE.

e The charter holder has information from the publisher for the TABE (Test of Basic Adult Education) including its
alignment to the common core and a flow chart regarding how to use TABE results.

e At one meeting a discussion occurred about “possible change of assessment test for better eval purposes —
TABE Test D&A.”

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e A process for designing and selecting the assessment system.

e The currently used assessments were researched and selected due to their ability to provide the teachers with
a grade score which determines how far behind a student may be in the area of Math and Reading. The two
assessments are utilized for placement with all students.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e Documents were not available to demonstrate process for selecting current assessments

e  While documents demonstrate that the charter holder had gathered information about TABE no process was
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documented to demonstrate a selection process or a process to evaluate needs.

[A.3]

Explanation of Documents
Reading Course Syllabi
Math Course Syllabi
Minutes from meetings
Minutes from meetings 2
Minutes from meetings 3
ACCR Standards- Reading
ACCR Standards- Math
Instructional Practice Evidence
Guide for Common Core
Standards.

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the assessment system is
aligned to the curriculum and instructional methodology.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

ACCR Standards-English: This document demonstrates English class assignments, how to earn credits, and the
ACCR standards that are included in the course.

ACCR Standards-Math: This document demonstrates Math class assignments, how to earn credits, and the
ACCR standards that are included in the course.

Math syllabi: the charter holder provided syllabi for remedial classes in math. The document identifies the
names of “academic standards” areas to be met, course objectives, and the standards that are aligned to the
archived academic standards.

Reading syllabi: the charter holder provided syllabi for remedial classes in reading. The document identifies
goals and requirements for articles, short stories, and poetry.

Meetings indicate that the charter holder administers an assessment when students are enrolled and assigns
coursework and student schedules and assigns IEP accommodations based on student performance.

Meeting notes indicate that “teachers gave input and reaffirmed test scores in many cases with what they have
seen in class.”

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

An assessment system aligned to the curriculum and instructional methodology

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:

The charter holder’s representatives on several occasions stated they are not administering assessments aligned
with curriculum and collecting data based on instruction.

The charter holder has stated that they are looking to creating an assessment that will do this by adopting TABE.
Currently, there is no assessment used as an ongoing measure of student progress.

[A.4]

Explanation of Documents
Board Meeting
Professional Development
Brigance

WRAT-4

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the intervals that are used to
assess student progress and how the assessment plan includes data collection from multiple assessment, such as
formative and summative assessments and common/benchmark assessments

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

The intervals utilized to assess student progress are:
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AIMS o Formative: Upon enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4 to determine learning
Stanford 10 strengths/gaps in Reading and Math and the appropriate placement for content classes.

o Summative: Students are administered AIMS/Stanford10/AzMerit(2015) on mandated dates by ADE
each academic year.

o The charter holder stated that they use classroom based formative assessments.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The charter holder is using formative or benchmark assessment to measure student progress.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The charter holder’s representatives on several occasions stated they are not administering assessments aligned

with curriculum and collecting data based on instruction.

e The charter holder has stated that they are looking to creating an assessment that will do this by adopting TABE.
Currently, there is no assessment used as an ongoing measure of student progress.

e The charter holder provided a classroom based assessment for the history course, but did not provide these for
other courses.

[A.5] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the assessment system
Explanation of Documents provides for analysis of assessment data and what intervals are used to analyze assessment data

Brigance results

WRAT-4 results The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

AIMS results e Upon enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4 to determine learning strengths/gaps in
Stanford 10 results Reading and Math and the appropriate placement for content classes.

WeEkIy meeting minutes e The charter holder has raw data for Brigance, WRAT-4, AIMS and Sanford 10.

e The charter holder’s meeting minutes indicate that they “discussed weaknesses and strengths in math, reading,
and writing. Preliminary accommodations were discussed for students. Further accommodations will be made as
students renew IEPs, 504s, and other school records arrive.” Additionally the minutes indicate the discussed
“Teachers gave input and reaffirmed test scores in many cases with what they have seen in class. Student
behavior has had some correlation with test scores.”

e The school has created remedial courses.

e The charter holder has created a chart for some students that evaluates the change in performance for students
who take multiple administrations of the Brigance and WRAT-4 tests.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e Before the beginning of school, administration, teacher and staff meet to analyze AIMS and Stanford 10 data.
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Based upon the results of the review of data, new courses have been added to meet the student’s proficiency
gaps in Reading and Math.

e Upon enrollment, evaluation of the student’s academic proficiency is completed with the administration of the
WRAT-4 and Brigance. Based on that data, the students are enrolled in appropriate performance level courses.

e The assessment data is analyzed during weekly meetings with administrators, teachers and staff to discuss each
week’s progress and any areas of need. These meetings can be a brief review of a particular student’s progress,
or may take the form of a particular students’ progress, or may take the form of an intensive, comprehensive
Child Family Team meeting. The outcome of the meetings can be development of new strategies, placement in a
lower level course, and/or recommendations for tutoring.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e  While the charter holder has created remedial courses and assigns students to those courses, there is no
evidence that the development of these courses or student assignments are based on an analysis of data.

e The charter holder does not have a formative/ongoing assessment and no data is available from such a system to
engage in analysis of data.

e  While the charter holder produced calculations that identified the change in Brigance and WRAT-4 scores for
some students, no analysis of this information was conducted or provided.

[A.6] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the analysis is used to
Explanation of Documents evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness

Brigance results

New Reading course syllabi The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

New Math course syllabi e Upon enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4.

Teacher Evaluation e The charter holder has raw data for Brigance, WRAT-4, AIMS and Sanford 10. The charter holder completed
Instructional Effectiveness

. calculations to determine the percentage of students at 6" grade level.
Meeting Notes

e The charter holder’s meeting minutes indicate discussions include: “Teachers gave input and reaffirmed test
scores in many cases with what they have seen in class. Student behavior has had some correlation with test
scores.” The Charter Holder’s minutes also indicate that the teachers give updates on new students and status
reports on other students. The minutes also reflect changes to staffing assignments.

e The school has created remedial courses.

e The charter holder has created a chart for some students that evaluates the change in performance for students
who take multiple administrations of the Brigance and WRAT-4 tests.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
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e how the analysis is used to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e the documents demonstrate anecdotal discussions and changes, but do not provide evidence to demonstrate an
intentional use of data to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness.

e The documents indicated changes to staffing assignments do not provide any reason for these changes.

e The remedial courses do not provide any information about why or how they were created and do not clearly
indicate a connection to the data provided.

e While the charter holder has raw data there is no evidence to demonstrate systematic evaluation or use of the
data. Further there is no ongoing formative data used to evaluate progress or the factors contributing thereto.

[A.7]

Explanation of Documents
Weekly meeting minutes
Weekly meeting minutes
New course syllabi

Lesson Plans

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the analysis is used to
adjust curriculum and instruction in a timely manner and what intervals are used to adjust curriculum and instruction

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e Upon enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4 to determine learning strengths/gaps in
Reading and Math and the appropriate placement for content classes.

e The charter holder has raw data for Brigance, WRAT-4, AIMS and Sanford 10. The charter holder completed
calculations to determine the percentage of students at 6 grade level.

e The charter holder’s meeting minutes indicate discussions include:

o “Moving a few students to the conference room for remediation seems to be helping. Monitor
progress”

o Notes regarding student behavior issues/disability issues.
o Notes regarding students with disabilities (accommodations)
e The school has created remedial courses.

e The charter holder has created a chart for some students that evaluates the change in performance for students
who take multiple administrations of the Brigance and WRAT-4 tests.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The analysis sheds light upon when to add or delete courses based upon need. Teachers add activities and
curricula changes to address needs and gaps resulting from analysis of student performance data.

e Adjustments are made to best meet the needs of the struggling students. Intervals of adjusting curriculum can
be immediate or at grade report time.
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e  Principal, teachers, and staff meet weekly to adjust curriculum and instruction if necessary.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e the documents demonstrate anecdotal discussions and changes, but do not provide evidence to demonstrate an

intentional use of data to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness.
e The documents indicated changes to staffing assignments do not provide any reason for these changes.

e The remedial courses do not provide any information about why or how they were created and do not clearly
indicate a connection to the data provided.

e  While the charter holder has raw data there is no evidence to demonstrate systematic evaluation or use of the
data. Further there is no ongoing formative data used to evaluate progress or the factors contributing thereto.

[A.8]

Explanation of Documents
Brigance

WRAT-4

AIMS data

Stanford 10 data

Tutoring sign-in sheets
Class rosters

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the assessment system is
adapted to meet the assessment needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e Upon enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4. The charter holder also administers AIMS

and Stanford 10.

e  Tutoring sign in sheets were provided for one student.

IEP e Students are enrolled in courses including Strategic Reading and English Proficiency Development.
e Student IEPs are completed.
e Gradebooks provided for the remedial courses indicate that no assighments have been graded or assessed.
The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
o How will the assessment system assess students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students to
determine and monitor the effectiveness of supplemental instruction and curriculum?
The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e No evidence was provided to demonstrate that the school assesses non-proficient students to determine and
monitor the effectiveness of supplemental instruction and curriculum.
e The charter holder does not have a formative/ongoing assessment and no data is available from such a system
to engage in analysis of data.
[A.9] n/a
[A.10] n/a
[A.11] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the assessment system is

Explanation of Documents

adapted to meet the assessment needs of students with disabilities
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Brigance results
WRAT-4 results
Student Schedule
AIMS Scores

Tutoring sign-in sheets
IEP

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e Upon enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4. The charter holder also administers AIMS

and Stanford 10.

e Tutoring sign in sheets were provided for one student.

e Students are enrolled in courses including Strategic Reading and English Proficiency Development.

e Student IEPs are completed.

e Gradebooks provided for the remedial courses indicate that no assignments have been graded or assessed.
The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e How will the assessment system assess students with disabilities to determine and monitor the effectiveness of
supplemental instruction and curriculum?
The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e No evidence was provided to demonstrate that the school assesses non-proficient students to determine and
monitor the effectiveness of supplemental instruction and curriculum.

e The charter holder does not have a formative/ongoing assessment and no data is available from such a system

to engage in analysis of data.
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Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School
School Name: Tucson Preparatory School
Site Visit Date: March 16, 2015

Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Site Visit Inventory
Required for: Annual Report
Evaluation Criteria Area: Monitoring Instruction

Document Name/Identification

Intended Purpose and Discussion Outcome

[M.1]
Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets
Student data results Brigance
Student data results WRAT-4
Lesson plans

Walk-throughs

Evaluations

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the Charter Holder’s process for
monitoring the integration of standards into classroom instruction and how the Charter Holder monitors whether or not
instructional staff implements an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Evaluations — a redacted sample of a document identified as a Teacher Evaluation 360 Survey. The document indicates
rates a teacher from zero to five, in criteria for each of 10 areas. The document also includes an End of Year —
Observation that rates the teacher from zero to five in each of nine areas, identifies next steps, and handwritten notes.
Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.
The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.
Meeting sign-in sheets identify the status reports of individual students, changes to staff and a teacher request to
discuss SEI training attended by a teacher.

Student data results Brigance: document contains raw student data without analysis

Student data results WRAT-4: document contains raw student data without analysis

Walk-throughs: is a duplicate of the document identified as “Evaluations” provided for this question.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: a process for monitoring the integration of
standards into classroom instruction and how the Charter Holder monitors whether or not instructional staff
implements an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity.

[M.2]
Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets
Observations

Lesson plans

Assessments

Professional Development

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how does the Charter Holder
monitor the effectiveness of standards-based instruction throughout the year.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Assessment: example of student responses and questions. The questions included are identified as “The Politics of
Reconstruction Questions. The student has provided short answer responses to each question

Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.
The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.
Meeting sign-in sheets identify the status reports of individual students, changes to staff and a teacher request to
discuss SEI training attended by a teacher.

Observation — a redacted sample of a document identified as a Teacher Evaluation 360 Survey. The document indicates
rates a teacher from zero to five, in criteria for each of 10 areas. The document also includes an End of Year —

Page 1 of 7






Observation that rates the teacher from zero to five in each of nine areas, identifies next steps, and handwritten notes.
Items in the observation identify specific items that are used to evaluate teacher effectiveness (4d., 6.a,6.b,6.c. and 10b.
Professional Development — the document contains a written narrative summary of a professional development plan,
and a list titled Goals/Timelines that includes goals and responsibilities for individual teachers.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: a process to evaluate effectiveness of
standards-based instruction.

[M.3]

Explanation of Documents
Lesson plans

Observation

Meeting sign-in sheets

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the Charter Holder’s process for
evaluating instructional practices and how this process evaluates the quality of instruction.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.
The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.
Meeting sign-in sheets, minutes: This document identifies teacher assignments for two courses IA and IB and that
another teacher will begin an AIMS prep class.

Observation — a redacted sample of a document identified as a Teacher Evaluation 360 Survey. The document indicates
rates a teacher from zero to five, in criteria for each of 10 areas. The document also includes an End of Year —
Observation that rates the teacher from zero to five in each of nine areas, identifies next steps, and handwritten notes.
Documents are provided for a fall observation (10/17/2014) and end of year observation (6/9/2014).

The documents provided evidence of a process for evaluating instructional practices and how this process evaluates the
quality of instruction.
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[M.4]

Explanation of Documents
Teacher notes
Assessments

Lesson Plans
Observations

Pacing guide

Staff Meeting 1

Staff Meeting

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how this process identifies
individual strengths, weaknesses, and needs.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
Assessment: example of student responses and questions. The questions included are identified as “The Politics of
Reconstruction Questions. The student has provided short answer responses to each question

Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.
The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.

Observation — a redacted sample of a document identified as a Teacher Evaluation 360 Survey. The document indicates
rates a teacher from zero to five, in criteria for each of 10 areas. The document also includes an End of Year —
Observation that rates the teacher from zero to five in each of nine areas, identifies next steps, and handwritten notes.
The teacher notes are used to provide specific comments regarding individual strengths, weaknesses, and needs.
Additional handwritten notes are provided on the fall evaluation to identify strengths, weaknesses, and needs.

e Pacing guide: This document serves to provide an example of how the teacher identifies the work packets that
are to be completed and lessons that are to be taught by week.

Staff Meeting 1 — meeting notes record a general review of all students before winter break and that teachers discussed
changes to classroom management

Staff Meeting 2 — meeting notes record adjustments to teacher schedules for the week, a teacher request to change
layout of a classroom.

Teacher notes: This document is a duplicate of the documents provided in the document titled “Observation” for this
question.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of a process for evaluating instructional practices that process
identifies individual strengths, weaknesses, and needs.
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[M.5]

Explanation of Documents
Observation notes
Walk-through notes

Student data results Brigance
Student data results WRAT-4
Lesson plans

Professional Development

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
provides feedback on strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs based on the evaluation of instructional practices.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.
The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.

Observation — a redacted sample of a document identified as a Teacher Evaluation 360 Survey. The document indicates
rates a teacher from zero to five, in criteria for each of 10 areas. The document also includes an End of Year —
Observation that rates the teacher from zero to five in each of nine areas, identifies next steps, and handwritten notes.
The End of Year Observation includes feedback regarding strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs regarding
instructional practices of individual teachers. This form is signed by the teacher.

Professional Development — the document contains a written narrative summary of a professional development plan,
and a list titled Goals/Timelines that includes goals and responsibilities for individual teachers

Student data results Brigance: document contains raw student data without analysis
Student data results WRAT-4: document contains raw student data without analysis
Walk-throughs: is a duplicate of the document identified as “Observation” provided for this question.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of a process to provide feedback on strengths, weaknesses, and
learning needs based on the evaluation of instructional practices.
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[M.6]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets 1
Meeting sign-in sheets 2
Professional Development
Staff Evaluation

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
analyzes this information, what the data about quality of instruction tells the Charter Holder and what the Charter
Holder has done in response.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Meeting sign in sheets 1: the document is the continuation of notes for individual students following 45 day screening
for late students

Meeting sign in sheets 2: the document contains a list of status reports of individual students

Professional Development — the document contains a written narrative summary of a professional development plan,
and a list titled Goals/Timelines that includes goals and responsibilities for individual teachers

Staff Evaluation — a redacted sample of a document identified as a Teacher Evaluation 360 Survey. The document
indicates rates a teacher from zero to five, in criteria for each of 10 areas. The document also includes an End of Year —
Observation that rates the teacher from zero to five in each of nine areas, identifies next steps, and handwritten notes.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following: a process to analyze the results of evaluations of the
quality of instruction, what the data about quality of instruction tells the Charter Holder, and what the Charter Holder
has done in response.

[M.7]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting minutes

Meeting minutes 2

Meeting minutes 3

Lesson plans

AIMS data

Stanford 10 data

Brigance and WRAT-4 results
Staff Review
Evaluations/Observations
(provided for questions 1-6)

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
monitors instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of non-proficient students.

Observation forms provided for teachers that provide instruction for remedial courses provided to non-proficient
students record that teachers are evaluated and monitored based on these criteria:

e Understands the differences in individual learners

e Recognizes individual differences in learning style

e Adapts teaching to individual learner difference

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following: a process to monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting
the needs of non-proficient students.
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[M.8]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting minutes

Lesson plans

AZELLA results
AIMS/Stanford 10 results
Brigance results

WRAT-4 results

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
monitors instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs).

N/A

[M.9]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting sign-in sheets 1
Meeting sign-in sheets 2
Lesson plans

AIMS data

Stanford 10 data

Brigance and WRAT-4 results
Reading Specialists time and
effort logs

Staff Review

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
monitors instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students.

N/A

[M.10]

Explanation of Documents
Meeting minutes

Meeting minutes 2

Lesson plans

AIMS/Stanford 10 results
Brigance and WRAT-4 results
IEP

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
monitors instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of students with disabilities.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

AIMS-Stanford 10 results: redacted individual student results

Brigance and WRAT-4 results: redacted individual student results

IEP: redacted student IEP that identifies specific student accommodations

Lesson plans: This lesson provided is identified as an Algebra lesson plan. The lesson plan identifies a social studies
standard and a math standard that is not a current ACCR standard, but from the 2010 Arizona Mathematics Standards.
The lesson plan identifies a specific objective for the lesson and the instructional activities that compose the lesson.
Meeting Minutes: minutes record teacher discussion of changes to ongoing SPED accommodations, and other school
business such as ordering books and supplies, installation of a scanner in a classroom, and new attendance program.
Meeting Minutes 2: minutes record daily school business including: continuation of AIMS PREP, class assignments for
teachers for testing. Discussion of SPED accommodations for AIMS testing, and review of process for newly enrolled
students.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following: the process the Charter Holder uses to
monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of students with disabilities.
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Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School

Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Site Visit Inventory

School Name: Tucson Preparatory School

Site Visit Date: March 23, 2015

Required for: Annual Report
Evaluation Criteria Area: Professional Development

Document Name/Identification

Intended Purpose and Discussion Outcome

[P.1]
Explanation of Documents
Professional Development
plan and sign-in sheets
Reading Specialist
Endorsement Documents
Math Certification Documents
Homelessness Training
Document

SIS Training Document

NSDC Standards

Meeting Notes

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: the Charter Holder’s
professional development plan

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The charter holder provided a document titled “Goals/Timelines” which identified the following:

(0]

“Brian — Goal, Reading Endorsement Exam and SEI training to be completed by spring of 2015” —
noted as completed; additional notation includes “next step to enroll in classes to continue with
reading endorsement”

“Toren — Goal: Reading Endorsement Exam to be completed by spring of 2015” — noted as completed;
additional notation includes “next step to enroll in classes to continue with reading endorsement”

“Liz — Improve reading class instruction and engagement — to be demonstrated by better planning,
instruction techniques, and ultimately improved AIMS.” — noted as “not demonstrating improvement”
and “AIMS complete I’m not satis with improvement”

“Patrick — Maintain AZELLA training/testing duties. Continue with Title 1 duties and expansion. Just
completed teacher certification.” Noted as “OK progress being made duties in place”

“Paul — Continue AIMS/PARCC training/Test coordinator duties. Continue training/instruction
development for biology classes.” Noted as “transitioned duties to AZ/Merit No PARCC”

“John — Continue higher education in mathematics and incorporate education into classes in
meaningful manner in order to increase testing scores.” Noted “John has completed courses at the VA
integration does seem to be occurring.”

“Dilli — Continue Development as needed — past progress has been good — have already added teacher
certification to portfolio.” Noted “ok progressing as planned.”

“Hans — Maintain hearing test cert, continue to do Wrat Brigance testing of all new students as
needed. Continue to focus on vocabulary development for students.” Noted “ok progressing as
planned.”

“Lucia — Maintain position and voting rights with Tucson Pima Council to Prevent Homelessness
(TPCH). Maintain relations with Youth on Their Own (YOTO). Disseminate information in meeting.”
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Noted “ok progressing as planned.”
o  “Pima - Not option — Has discontinued
Grand Conyon?
Prescott College?”
Two staff have taken AEPA test and passed.
Two staff completed School Master training.

The National Staff Development Council has defined professional development; the charter holder has a copy
of this definition.

One staff has a provisional secondary education certification in Mathematics, Physics, and SEI.

Lucia Ortiz attended the July 2013 TPCH meeting at which agenda items included YOTO, annual conference,
awareness ideas, reunion house, Eon Prom, and next meeting.

After one staff member attended SEl training meeting notes indicate he “discussed his training”, after another
staff attended TCPH program she shared information.

Annually the SPED director provides training on 45 day screening, child find.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

Tucson Preparatory School has a professional development plan that focuses on professional learning,
educator effectiveness, and student progress. The plan has both short and long term goals foster
academic growth for students and professional growth for teachers. It incorporates teacher
certification, subject certification, university/college courses, and mandatory staff meetings.

Reading teachers who have been obtaining Reading Specialist endorsement share what they learn with
all instructors through our professional development community. Techniques that are being shared
with staff and teachers will help the school progress to meet the ACCR Standards.

Math teachers, one who received his Arizona certification and another teacher who is continuing his
Math education at the University of Arizona, share information they learn and ultimately help students
progress.

Administrative staff attends Student Information System Trainings for the purpose of learning new
methods of data mining.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
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Statp

o

e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not. While the charter holder stated that these goals were based on
the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs, not evidence was provided to document this. Further, the
connection described was tenuous at best.

[P.2] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the professional

Explanation of Documents development plan was developed

Professional Development

Plan The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Needs Assessment e See description above. No additional evidence was provided.

Certification Documents The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

Certification Documents 2 e The professional development plan was created to meet the immediate and long term needs of the

Professional Development , . .

Agendas teachers as they promote student achievement. In order to stay aligned with the ACCR Standards and
testing requirements, new professional development opportunities were created. New goals had to be
set for both teachers and staff.

e Student academic needs and teacher professional needs were analyzed to determine the best course
of professional development.

e Teachers and staff assessed their own needs and capabilities, then a plan was developed that allowed
everyone to accomplish their goals in a timely and useful manner.

evidence of the described processes because:

e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.

e  While the charter holder stated that these goals were based on the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs,
not evidence was provided to document this. Further, the connection described was tenuous at best.

e No evidence was provided to demonstrate how these goals were established, no evidence was provided to
demonstrate that student needs or teacher needs were evaluated.

[P.3] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the professional

Explanation of Documents development plan is aligned with instructional staff learning needs

Professional Development

Plan The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Needs Assessment e Two staff have taken AEPA test and passed.

Certification Documents e Two staff completed School Master training.

Certification Documents 2

Professional Development e The National Staff Development Council has defined professional development; the charter holder has a copy
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Agendas

of this definition.
e One staff has a provisional secondary education certification in Mathematics, Physics, and SEI.

e  Lucia Ortiz attended the July 2013 TPCH meeting at which agenda items included YOTO, annual conference,
awareness ideas, reunion house, Eon Prom, and next meeting.

e After one staff member attended SEl training meeting notes indicate he “discussed his training”, after another
staff attended TCPH program she shared information.

e Annually the SPED director provides training on 45 day screening, child find.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

The Professional Development Plan is directly aligned with the needs of instructional staff. All staff
members undergo professional development that will help them progress in their career. The decision
of appropriate professional development is a collaborative effort. All administrative and teaching staff
meet to understand the specific needs of the students and how training will progress student learning
and be relevant to a teachers set of skills.

After the constructive dialogue, a set of goals is established. The goals guide the design of the
professional development from which teachers can grow. Professional development may encompass
certifications, seminars, or college classes. These goals will be incorporated into the professional
development plan.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:

The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.

While the charter holder stated that these goals were based on the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs,
not evidence was provided to document this. Further, the connection described was tenuous at best.

No evidence was provided to demonstrate how these goals were established, no evidence was provided to
demonstrate that student needs or teacher needs were evaluated.

[P.4]

Explanation of Documents
Professional Development
Plan

Professional Development
Agendas

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the plan addresses areas of
high importance

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

e Two staff have taken AEPA test and passed.

e Two staff completed School Master training.
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Statp

o

e The National Staff Development Council has defined professional development; the charter holder has a copy
of this definition.

e One staff has a provisional secondary education certification in Mathematics, Physics, and SEI.

e  Lucia Ortiz attended the July 2013 TPCH meeting at which agenda items included YOTO, annual conference,
awareness ideas, reunion house, Eon Prom, and next meeting.

e After one staff member attended SEI training meeting notes indicate he “discussed his training”, after another
staff attended TCPH program she shared information.

e Annually the SPED director provides training on 45 day screening, child find.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The plan addresses Math and Reading content, as it was recognized as the major areas of student

need identified by the staff. In light of these large academic gaps in student learning, training is
provided to give teachers skills to adapt curriculum, use effective instructional strategies, and pace
content for mastery.

e Otheritems on the agenda include: Classroom management strategies, Research-based instructional
strategies that support student achievement, Support to teachers working with students in specific
areas of exceptionality, Understanding student data (formative and summative), Applying data to
make adjustments to Reading/Math curricula, assessment, and instruction, Using students work to
guide instruction, Intervention strategies to improve Reading/Math performance.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.

e  While the charter holder stated that these goals were based on the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs,
not evidence was provided to document this. Further, the connection described was tenuous at best.

e No evidence was provided to demonstrate how these goals were established, no evidence was provided to
demonstrate that student needs or teacher needs were evaluated.

[P.5] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
Explanation of Documents supports high quality implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions
Professional Development

Plan The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Professional Development e After one staff member attended SEl training meeting notes indicate he “discussed his training”, after another

Agenda and sign-in sheets staff attended TCPH program she shared information.
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Staff Meeting Minutes
The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

e All staff members that attend professional development training off campus are required to
disseminate information to all staff members.

e Discussion focuses on how to implement the new knowledge into the classroom.

e Results of data analysis may call for changes to be made in course development, teaching
methodology, assessments, student placement, and/or instructional strategies. (Reflected in plan,
agenda and sign in sheets

e The Charter Holder supports high quality implementation of the strategies learned in professional development
sessions

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The minutes documenting the discussion of SEl training and homelessness training do not provide detail of the

discussion.
e The evaluation of progress of goals does not document support of implementation, but progress.

e The Charter holder does not otherwise indicate any process for supporting the implementation of strategies
learned in professional development.

[P.6] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
Explanation of Documents provides the resources that are necessary for high quality implementation

School Budget

Professional Development The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Agenda and sign-in sheets e The charter holder has a budget that includes funds for professional development

Schedule e The charter holder has title 1 funds available for professional development

Meeting Notes

Professional Development The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

e aprocess to provides the resources that are necessary for high quality implementation of strategies learned in
professional development

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development
trainings on instructional related issues and other do not.

e With the ad hoc approach to professional development there is no clear need for resources and no process for
ensuring resources are available.
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[P.7]

Explanation of Documents
Walk-through notes
Observation notes and
feedback to teacher
Lesson Plans

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
monitors the implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e the lead teacher/principal conducts walk-throughs, evaluations, and observations

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

Evaluations e The Principal is in charge of ensuring that strategies learned in professional development sessions are
being implemented in the classroom. The Principal and Assistant Principal check for implementation
by: Performing walk-throughs, Observing classroom teaching, Evaluating lesson plans, Evaluating
teaching performance.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.
e The observations do not indicate that implementation of strategies is being monitored or evaluated
e One example was provided of a teacher who's “plan” goals included getting better through coaching, she didn’t
get better and thus was terminated. This is anecdotal, but does not demonstrate a process, but more of the ad
hoc approach seen in the plan.
[P.8] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder

Explanation of Documents
Observation notes

monitors and follows-up with instructional staff to support and develop implementation of the strategies learned in
professional development

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
. the lead teacher/principal conducts walk-throughs, evaluations, and observations

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The Principal and Assistant Principal are visit each classroom during the week to observe and ensure that

Professional Development activities are being implemented into the classroom.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.

e The observations do not indicate that implementation of strategies is being monitored or evaluated. These
observations do not indicate there is any process to follow up to support and develop implementation of the
strategies learned in professional development
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One example was provided of a teacher who’s “plan” goals included getting better through coaching, she didn’t

get better and thus was terminated. This is anecdotal, but does not demonstrate a process, but more of the ad

hoc approach seen in the plan

[P.9]

Explanation of Documents
Professional Development
Plan

Professional Development
Agenda and sign-in sheets
Certifications

Staff Review

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the professional
development plan ensures that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of
students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
The charter holder provided a document titled “Goals/Timelines” which identified the following:

(¢]

“Brian — Goal, Reading Endorsement Exam and SEI training to be completed by spring of 2015” — noted
as completed; additional notation includes “next step to enroll in classes to continue with reading
endorsement”

“Toren — Goal: Reading Endorsement Exam to be completed by spring of 2015” — noted as completed;
additional notation includes “next step to enroll in classes to continue with reading endorsement”

“Liz — Improve reading class instruction and engagement — to be demonstrated by better planning,
instruction techniques, and ultimately improved AIMS.” — noted as “not demonstrating improvement”
and “AIMS complete I’'m not satis with improvement”

“Patrick — Maintain AZELLA training/testing duties. Continue with Title 1 duties and expansion. Just
completed teacher certification.” Noted as “OK progress being made duties in place”

“Paul — Continue AIMS/PARCC training/Test coordinator duties. Continue training/instruction
development for biology classes.” Noted as “transitioned duties to AZ/Merit No PARCC”

“John — Continue higher education in mathematics and incorporate education into classes in meaningful
manner in order to increase testing scores.” Noted “John has completed courses at the VA integration
does seem to be occurring.”

“Dilli — Continue Development as needed — past progress has been good — have already added teacher
certification to portfolio.” Noted “ok progressing as planned.”

“Hans — Maintain hearing test cert, continue to do Wrat Brigance testing of all new students as needed.
Continue to focus on vocabulary development for students.” Noted “ok progressing as planned.”

“Lucia — Maintain position and voting rights with Tucson Pima Council to Prevent Homelessness (TPCH).
Maintain relations with Youth on Their Own (YOTO). Disseminate information in meeting.” Noted “ok
progressing as planned.”
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o  “Pima - Not option — Has discontinued
Grand Conyon?
Prescott College?”
e Two staff have taken AEPA test and passed.
e Two staff completed School Master training.

e The National Staff Development Council has defined professional development; the charter holder has a copy of
this definition.

e One staff has a provisional secondary education certification in Mathematics, Physics, and SEI.

e Lucia Ortiz attended the July 2013 TPCH meeting at which agenda items included YOTO, annual conference,
awareness ideas, reunion house, Eon Prom, and next meeting.

e After one staff member attended SEI training meeting notes indicate he “discussed his training”, after another
staff attended TCPH program she shared information.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:
e The Professional Development plan includes topics that are related to low academic functioning of students. Our
alternative population renders the need for intensive training in assisting student to increase performance.
Professional development topics address these issues. All staff is mandated to attend Professional Development

training.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:
e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.

e No evidence was provided to demonstrate that the professional development included any differentiation to
support students with the highest need

[P.10] n/a
[P.11] n/a
[P.12] Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the professional

Explanation of Documents

Professional Development

Plan

Professional Development

Agenda and sign-in sheets

SPED Training Certificates

development plan ensures that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of
students with disabilities

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e  Each year, professional development is presented to the teachers/administration regarding SPED policies,
procedures, requirements, and ways to differentiate the curricula for students with special needs
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The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the following:

e  We have a full-time special education teacher who attends trainings related to special education, including but

not limited to: Individual Education Programs, Multidisciplinary Evaluation Team, Behavior Management, and
Intervention Techniques.

The documents provided do not demonstrate evidence of the described processes because:

e The charter holder has an ad hoc approach in which some teachers complete professional development trainings
on instructional related issues and other do not.

No evidence was provided to demonstrate that the professional development included any differentiation to
support students with the highest need
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Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School
School Name: Tucson Preparatory School

Site Visit Date: March 16, 2015

Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Site Visit Inventory

Required for: Annual Report
Evaluation Criteria Area: Grad Rate

Document Name/Identification

Intended Purpose and Discussion Outcome

[G.1]

Explanation of Documents
Governing Board policies
ECAPs

Graduation Watch List
ECAP Calendar

Meeting Notes: 010515,
011515, 012615 012915,
020215, 020515, 030314,
030915, 032014 ,032814,
082514 ,082714,090314,
091014, 091114, 100814,
100914, 110314, 112414,
121514

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
monitors and follows up on student progress toward completing courses to meet graduation requirements.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

The first step in graduation intervention consists of a thorough analysis of past educational performance. An
administrator carefully interviews incoming students and contacts every previously attended school or program
to identify high school credits that may have been overlooked or forgotten, including out-of-date Special
Education plans.

The ECAP is a check list of graduation requirements with point-in-time academic progress noted. It includes test
score histories, pertinent student data and student goals, and serves as a master planning document for high
school graduation. An ECAP is created for every incoming student and the plan is reviewed regularly --often
monthly -- to identify problems promptly and intervene as needed. Should a problem be identified, an
intervention strategy is developed and set in motion

As students move toward completing their high school requirements, they are added to a Graduation Watch List.
The watch list shows testing status in each category and shows classes/credits still needed to graduate. The
watch list is used during PLC staff meetings in order to gauge progress and needs of the students on the list. This
also gives teachers information they need to be supportive of students nearing graduation. The watch list is
updated regularly so timely information is available to staff and teachers.

[G.2]

of Documents

Governing Board policies
ECAPs

ECAP Calendar

Graduation Watch List
Meeting Notes: 010515,
011515, 012615, 012915,
020215, 020515, 030314,
030915, 032014 , 032814 ,
082514 , 082714 ,090314 ,

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
identifies students that are not successfully progressing through required courses.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:

Meeting Notes record conversations with teachers regarding student progress in courses, identifying students
that are not making progress through courses. Notes indicate academic as well as non-academic issues that are
obstacles to student progress.

Registration Credit finder document records request to prior schools to ensure that all credits earned are
captured and recorded in student ECAP.
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091014, 091114, 100814,
100914, 110314, 112414,
121514,

Registration Credit Finder
(question 1)

[G.3]

Explanation of Documents
Tutoring time and effort logs
Skill building classes
Summer School sign-in,
schedule

Summer School sign-in,
schedule 2

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: how the Charter Holder
provides additional academic supports to remediate academic problems for struggling students.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e Tucson Preparatory School helps struggling students through tutoring, accommodated workloads, and class

changes that will build strong academic foundations. Summer school is offered for students to take classes
toward graduation. Tutoring logs record attendance and time spent at tutoring.

e  Summer School sign-in documents identify students that participated in a variety of courses and classes that
range from additional academic intervention courses, to community programs that provide housing for students
and life-skills classes for homeless students, and a summer youth employment program that incorporates
classroom time to develop skills for students.

[G.4]

Explanation of Documents
Dashboard

Student AIMS data
Credits for Graduation
Case Study 1

Case Study 2

Case Study 3

Charter holder indicated the intended purpose of the document was to demonstrate: what data demonstrates that
these strategies are effective.

The documents provided demonstrate evidence of the following:
e No comparative data for the current year was provided to demonstrate improved graduation rate.
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RENEWAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN TEMPLATE

Tucson Preparatory School

INDICATOR:" __ Math _X Reading DURATION OF THE PLAN* Begins _April , 2012 to _June , 2015
M EASURE* METRIC* CURRENT End Target For This Plan*®

STATUS*

State standardized Percent (%) of students who score

assessment proficient on the State standardized | will enter info

assessment
and
Student growth percentile (SGP)

(Board staff

here)

Meet or demonstrate sufficient progress toward the
level of adequate academic performance as set and

modified periodically by the Board.

STRATEGY I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. Augment ALS library to include By Fall 2012 | School Director, Software running on Learning $5,000
remedial reading titles SPED Director Lab computers
2. Develop an individualized curriculum Beginning Language Arts Rubric No additional

for targeted students. Combined with Fall 2012
ongoing assessments, this plan will be and ongoing
reviewed on a quarterly basis and
adjustments made as needed.

faculty

cost; covered
under existing
duties

3. Offer incentives to further school Begin Fall
engagement, academic progress and 2012
combat school alienation.

Teaching staff

Publicity materials, purchase
orders

$3,500 each
year

Approved 11/19/2010
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STRATEGY II: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into instruction.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party | Evidence of Meeting Action Steps Budget
1. Early implementation of Common By Spring Transition Team Completed Common Core $1,000
Core Standards 2013 Workbook
2. Maintain existing emphasis on grant- | Ongoing Director, Assistant Tutoring schedule State Tutoring
funded one-on-one and small group Principal Grant
tutoring with HQ tutors under State allocation -
Tutoring Grant guidelines $7,000 each
year
3. Develop and integrate additional By Fall 2012 | Director, Assistant Employment documents; Tutoring | Additional
tutoring resources into Tucson Prep Principal schedule part-time
school day through hired staff, volunteer tutor for 10"
tutors or community programs grade cohort
4. Develop a clear rubric for collecting Begin Assistant Principal in | Detailed rubric that is reviewed No additional
observation data from walk-throughs Summer collaboration with annually cost as this is
2012 teaching staff part of
Assistant
Principal’s job
description
5. Conduct bi-weekly classroom walk- Begin Fall Assistant Principal Use of observation form and No additional
throughs to observe instruction 2012 monthly individual meeting with cost as this is
staff to review results of part of
observations Assistant
Principal’s job
description
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STRATEGY llI: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. Develop and implement a process that | Eleventh Enrollment Manager | Data base and hard copy list No additional
identifies 10" grade cohort candidates day of each SchoolMaster cost; covered
for Full Academic Year (FAY) status at school year under
beginning of each school year beginning Enrollment
Fall 2012 Manager's
existing
duties
2. At enrollment, thoroughly assess 10" | First 60 Testing Coordinator | Data base and hard copy list $4,000 — for
grade FAY cohort using up to three days of testing
assessment tools. each school instrument
year purchases
beginning and training
Fall 2012
3. Prepare an assessment-driven First 60 Assistant Principal, Data base and hard copy plan No additional
individualized plan for each 10" grade days of SPED Coordinator, cost; staff
FAY candidate using the principles of each school | Testing Coordinator meeting
social autopsies and Deliberate year format to be
Curriculum Wrapping. beginning used
Fall 2012
4. Monitor and advocate for targeted Each All staff, directed by | Progress notes in data base No additional
student to keep them on track, and Wednesday | Assistant Principal; cost; covered
anticipate and address issues that may staff Case Manager by existing
adversely affect student performance meeting salaries
and attendance during FAY
period
beginning
Fall 2012
5. Identify current 9" grade students Following Enrollment Manager | Data base and hard copy list No additional
who are candidates for 10" grade FAY spring SchoolMaster cost; covered
status for subsequent school year by testing under
evaluating test scores and credit earned | schedule, Enroliment
beginning Manager's
Spring 2012 existing
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duties
6. Assess 9" grade students; prepare Following Assistant Principal, Data base and hard copy plan No additional
and implement “mini” plan for each spring SPED Coordinator, cost
candidate that will link with the student’s | testing each | Testing Coordinator
10" grade plan year
STRATEGY IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the curriculum.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps

1. Facilitate existing faculty in obtaining By end of Assistant Principal | Completion of coursework, as $1,000
AEPA Reading Endorsement(s) 2012-13 required; evidence of passing

school year AEPA score(s)
2. Keep up-to-date on research-based Ongoing Director, Best practices notebook No additional
strategies directed at difficult-to-serve Governing Board cost
students; conduct periodic literature members
reviews
3. All teachers not otherwise assigned Beginning Fall | Director, Assistant | Evidence of attendance $1,500 each
to Language Arts course will be required | 2012 and Principal, year
to attend a minimum of one sanctioned continued on | Language Arts
workshop or training regarding Reading an annual faculty to research
Instruction and Improvement basis and coordinate
4.Train teachers on newly-acquired Beginning Fall | Assistant Principal, | Training Log $1,000 each
software and any new curriculum 2012 and Tech Coordinator year
materials continued on

an as-needed

basis
5. Non-teaching staff to obtain Ongoing Non-teaching staff | Testing schedule and results $500 each
paraprofessional certification year

Using the information entered in the “ Budget” columns above, please provide a budget total that incorporates all strategies and
action steps for each year of the performance management plan’s implementation. For “ Year 1”7, please specify the fiscal year (e.g.,
2011). The charter holder may add years, as necessary.

Year 1. Budget Total
Year 2: Budget Total
Year 3: Budget Total

Approved 11/19/2010

$ 7,500
$32,500
$25,500

Fiscal Year: 2012






Notes:

* Provided by ASBCS staff

1 Academic areato be addressed for improvement

2 Duration of the plan must align with the timeline presented in the Action Steps

3 Refer to Terms to Know in the Renewal Application Instructions

4 Repeat these action steps as necessary to include the appropriate number of steps to accomplish the strategy

Approved 11/19/2010






Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School
School Name: Tucson Preparatory School

Date Submitted: 1/4/14
Academic Dashboard: FY13

| = Result after initial evaluation
S = Result after evaluation of information collected from the site visit

Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Evaluation Instrument

Required for: Annual Report

Initial Evaluation Completed: 2/7/14
Final Evaluation Completed: 12/8/2014

Initial Evaluation

Final Evaluation

Measure Acceptable Not Comments Comments
Acceptable
1a. Student Curriculum: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
Median Growth listed the courses available to students and stated that assessment evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
Percentile (SGP) results were used to identify students for remediation, but did not implemented a curriculum to increase student growth in Math on ACCR
Math describe a system for implementing a curriculum aligned with Arizona’s Standards because the evidence does not demonstrate a system that
College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative provided did not includes processes to create, implement, evaluate, and revise curriculum
demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that contributes | which would have demonstrated how and when the school evaluates
to increased student growth in math. curriculum options, what findings the school makes about curriculum
options, and who is involved in the curriculum adoption process;
Instruction: The area was scored as Approaches because the narrative demonstrated the school utilizes tools that identify what must be taught,
stated that teachers were evaluated and observed, and that teachers the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities, and
conducted peer observations, but did not describe a system for analysis communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools; and
and feedback. The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively the curriculum
school implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of Arizona’s enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps in the
1/s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction. curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing curricular

Assessment: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
named the assessment used and stated that results were used to identify
students in need of remediation, but did not describe assessments
aligned with the curriculum or a system for reviewing and analyzing data.
The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the school
implemented a system for monitoring and documenting increases in
student growth in math.

Professional Development: This area was scored as Approaches because
the narrative stated that teachers were obtaining certifications in
addition to their highly qualified status, but did not describe a
professional development plan aligned with teacher learning needs that

gaps.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the integration
of ACCR Standards into instruction which would have demonstrated that
the school ensures all grade level standards are taught within the school
year in all classrooms and that teachers implement an ACCRS-aligned
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includes follow-up and monitoring strategies. The narrative provided did
not demonstrate that the school implemented a professional
development plan that contributed to increased student growth in math.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

curriculum with fidelity .

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
growth on ACCR Standards for Math because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system based on clearly defined performance measures
aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology and includes
data collection from multiple assessments, and data review teams which
would have demonstrated the school regularly and timely assesses
students in a manner that is aligned with the curriculum in order to
monitor student progress; and demonstrated how and when the school
analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes from
assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and
how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
growth in Math because the evidence does not demonstrate a
comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes
follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of high
importance, and supports high quality implementation which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student growth in Math.

1a. Student
Median Growth
Percentile (SGP)
Reading

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
listed the courses available to students and stated that assessment
results were used to identify students for remediation, but did not
describe a system for implementing a curriculum aligned with Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative provided did not
demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that contributes

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student growth in Reading on
ACCR Standards because the evidence does not demonstrate a system
that includes processes to create, implement, evaluate, and revise
curriculum which would have demonstrated how and when the school
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to increased student growth in reading.

Instruction: The area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
stated that teachers were evaluated and observed, and that teachers
conducted peer observations, but did not describe a system for analysis
and feedback. The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the
school implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction.

Assessment: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
named the assessment used and stated that results were used to identify
students in need of remediation, but did not describe assessments
aligned with the curriculum or a system for reviewing and analyzing data.
The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the school
implemented a system for monitoring and documenting increases in
student growth in reading.

Professional Development: This area was scored as Approaches because
the narrative stated that teachers were obtaining certifications in
addition to their highly qualified status, but did not describe a
professional development plan aligned with teacher learning needs that
includes follow-up and monitoring strategies. The narrative provided did
not demonstrate that the school implemented a professional
development plan that contributed to increased student growth in
reading.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

evaluates curriculum options, what findings the school makes about
curriculum options, and who is involved in the curriculum adoption
process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that identify what must
be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities, and
communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools; and
demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively the curriculum
enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps in the
curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing curricular

gaps.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Reading because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the integration
of ACCR Standards into instruction, which would have demonstrated
that the school ensures all grade level standards are taught within the
school year in all classrooms and that teachers implement an ACCRS-
aligned curriculum with fidelity.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
growth on ACCR Standards for Reading because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system based on clearly defined performance measures
aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology and includes
data collection from multiple assessments, and data review teams
demonstrated how and when the school analyzes assessment data, what
findings the school makes from assessment data, who is involved in the
analysis of assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and
adapt instruction

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
growth in Reading because the evidence does not demonstrate a
comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes
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follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of high
importance, and supports high quality implementation which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student growth in Reading.

1b. Improvement
(Alternative High
Schools only)
Math

/s

The narrative provided did not address this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student performance in Math on
ACCR Standards for non-proficient students because the evidence does
not demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of non-proficient students which would have
demonstrated how and when the school evaluates curriculum options,
what findings the school makes about curriculum options, and who is
involved in the curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school
utilizes tools that identify what must be taught, the expected pacing,
strategies, methods, and activities, and communicated expectations for
the consistent use of these tools; and demonstrated how the school
evaluates how effectively the curriculum enables students to master the
standards, identifies gaps in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the
school is addressing curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is
curriculum intended to provide differentiated materials, activities,
and/or strategies for struggling, non-proficient students.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math for non-proficient students because
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the evidence does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the
processes are adapted to meet the needs of non-proficient students
which would have demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level
standards are taught within the school year in all classrooms and that
teachers implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and
demonstrated that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and
identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in
relation to meeting the needs of non-proficient students.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
performance on ACCR Standards for Math for non-proficient students
because the evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and
instructional methodology and includes data collection from multiple
assessments, and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the
needs of non-proficient students which would have demonstrated how
and when the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school
makes from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of
assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt
instruction; and demonstrated how the assessment system assesses
non-proficient students according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
performance in Math for non-proficient students because the evidence
does not demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher
learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on
areas of high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and
that that is adapted to meet the needs of non-proficient students which
would have demonstrated that the plan was developed to address
teacher learning needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how
the charter holder provides access to resources necessary to implement
the information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
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development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to non-proficient students according to their
needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student performance in Math for non-proficient students.

1b. Improvement
(Alternative High
Schools only)
Reading

/s

The narrative provided did not address this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence that curriculum is adapted to meet the needs of non-proficient
students. The DSP provides evidence of processes that do not
demonstrate the school has implemented a curriculum to increase
student performance in Reading on ACCR Standards for non-proficient
students because the evidence does not demonstrate a system that
includes processes to create, implement, evaluate, and revise curriculum,
and that the curriculum is adapted to meet the needs of non-proficient
students which would have demonstrated how and when the school
evaluates curriculum options, what findings the school makes about
curriculum options, and who is involved in the curriculum adoption
process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that identify what must
be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities, and
communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools; and
demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively the curriculum
enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps in the
curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing curricular
gaps; and demonstrated there is curriculum intended to provide
differentiated materials, activities, and/or strategies for struggling non-
proficient students.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Reading for non-proficient students because
the evidence does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the
processes are adapted to meet the needs of non-proficient students
which would have demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level
standards are taught within the school year in all classrooms and that
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teachers implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and
demonstrated that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and
identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in
relation to meeting the needs of non-proficient students.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
performance on ACCR Standards for Reading for non-proficient students
because the evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and
instructional methodology and includes data collection from multiple
assessments, and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the
needs of non-proficient students which would have demonstrated how
and when the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school
makes from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of
assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt
instruction; and demonstrated how the assessment system assesses
non-proficient students according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
performance in Reading for non-proficient students because the
evidence does not demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned
with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring
strategies, focuses on areas of high importance, and supports high
quality implementation, and that that is adapted to meet the needs of
non-proficient students which would have demonstrated that the plan
was developed to address teacher learning needs and areas of high
importance; demonstrate how the charter holder provides access to
resources necessary to implement the information and strategies, and/or
otherwise supports teachers in planning to implement the information
and strategies; and demonstrated how implementation is observed and
evaluated and how the school ensures teacher development is ongoing
in relation to the information and strategies learned through the
professional development plan; and demonstrate how the professional
development plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and
areas of high importance in relation to non-proficient students according
to their needs.
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Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student performance in Reading for non-proficient students.

2a. Percent
Passing
Math

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
listed the courses available to students and stated that assessment
results were used to identify students for remediation, but did not
describe a system for implementing a curriculum aligned with Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative provided did not
demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that contributes
to increased student proficiency in math.

Instruction: The area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
stated that teachers were evaluated and observed, and that teachers
conducted peer observations, but did not describe a system for analysis
and feedback. The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the
school implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction.

Assessment: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
named the assessment used and stated that results were used to identify
students in need of remediation, but did not describe assessments
aligned with the curriculum or a system for reviewing and analyzing data.
The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency
in math.

Professional Development: This area was scored as Approaches because
the narrative stated that teachers were obtaining certifications in
addition to their highly qualified status, but did not describe a
professional development plan aligned with teacher learning needs that
includes follow-up and monitoring strategies. The narrative provided did
not demonstrate that the school implemented a plan for professional
development that contributed to increased student proficiency in math.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math on
ACCR Standards because the evidence does not demonstrate a system
that includes processes to create, implement, evaluate, and revise
curriculum which would have demonstrated how and when the school
evaluates curriculum options, what findings the school makes about
curriculum options, and who is involved in the curriculum adoption
process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that identify what must
be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities, and
communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools; and
demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively the curriculum
enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps in the
curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing curricular
gaps.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the integration
of ACCR Standards into instruction, which would have demonstrated
that the school ensures all grade level standards are taught within the
school year in all classrooms and that teachers implement an ACCRS-
aligned curriculum with fidelity.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system based on clearly defined performance measures
aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology and includes
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data collection from multiple assessments, and data review teams which
would have demonstrated how and when the school analyzes
assessment data, what findings the school makes from assessment data,
who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and how that analysis
is used to inform and adapt instruction.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Math because the evidence does not demonstrate a
comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes
follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of high
importance, and supports high quality implementation which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Math.

2a. Percent
Passing
Reading

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
listed the courses available to students and stated that assessment
results were used to identify students for remediation, but did not
describe a system for implementing a curriculum aligned with Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative provided did not
demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that contributes
to increased student proficiency in reading.

Instruction: The area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
stated that teachers were evaluated and observed, and that teachers
conducted peer observations, but did not describe a system for analysis
and feedback. The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the
school implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards into instruction.

Assessment: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading on
ACCR Standards because the evidence does not demonstrate a system
that includes processes to create, implement, evaluate, and revise
curriculum which would have demonstrated how and when the school
evaluates curriculum options, what findings the school makes about
curriculum options, and who is involved in the curriculum adoption
process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that identify what must
be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods, and activities, and
communicated expectations for the consistent use of these tools; and
demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively the curriculum
enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps in the
curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing curricular

gaps.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
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named the assessment used and stated that results were used to identify
students in need of remediation, but did not describe assessments
aligned with the curriculum or a system for reviewing and analyzing data.
The narrative provided did not demonstrate that the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency
in reading.

Professional Development: This area was scored as Approaches because
the narrative stated that teachers were obtaining certifications in
addition to their highly qualified status, but did not describe a
professional development plan aligned with teacher learning needs that
includes follow-up and monitoring strategies. The narrative provided did
not demonstrate that the school implemented a professional
development plan that contributed to increased student proficiency in
reading.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Reading because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the integration
of ACCR Standards into instruction, which would have demonstrated
that the school ensures all grade level standards are taught within the
school year in all classrooms and that teachers implement an ACCRS-
aligned curriculum with fidelity.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading because the evidence does
not demonstrate a system based on clearly defined performance
measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology and
includes data collection from multiple assessments, and data review
teams which would have demonstrated how and when the school
analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes from
assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and
how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Reading because the evidence does not demonstrate a
comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning needs, includes
follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of high
importance, and supports high quality implementation which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
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development plan.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Reading.

2c. Subgroup
Comparison
(2b. for
Alternative)
ELL

Math

/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Fall Far Below because the narrative
states that adapted curriculum is created for ELL students on a case-by-
case basis for students, but does not describe a system to implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum aligned with Arizona’s College and Career
Ready Standards for ELL students. The narrative provided did not
demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that contributes
to increasing student proficiency in math for ELL students.

Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.
Assessment: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math on
ACCR Standards for ELL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of ELL students which would have demonstrated how
and when the school evaluates curriculum options, what findings the
school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the
curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that
identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods,
and activities, and communicated expectations for the consistent use of
these tools; and demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively
the curriculum enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps
in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing
curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is curriculum intended to
provide differentiated materials, activities, and/or strategies for
struggling ELL students.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math for ELL students because the evidence
does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the
integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the processes
are adapted to meet the needs of ELL students which would have
demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level standards are
taught within the school year in all classrooms and that teachers
implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and demonstrated
that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and identifies the
strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in relation to
meeting the needs of ELL students.
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Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math for ELL students because the
evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly defined
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional
methodology and includes data collection from multiple assessments,
and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the needs of ELL
students which would have demonstrated how and when the school
analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes from
assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and
how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction; and
demonstrated how the assessment system assesses ELL students
according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Math for ELL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning
needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of
high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and that
that is adapted to meet the needs of ELL students which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to ELL students according to their needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Math for ELL students.
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2c. Subgroup
Comparison
(2b. for
Alternative)
ELL

Reading

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Fall Far Below because the narrative
states that adapted curriculum is created for ELL students on a case-by-
case basis for students, but does not describe a system to implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum aligned with Arizona’s College and Career
Ready Standards for ELL students. The narrative provided did not
demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that contributes
to increasing student proficiency in reading for ELL students.

Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.
Assessment: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading on
ACCR Standards for ELL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of ELL students which would have demonstrated how
and when the school evaluates curriculum options, what findings the
school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the
curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that
identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods,
and activities, and communicated expectations for the consistent use of
these tools; and demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively
the curriculum enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps
in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing
curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is curriculum intended to
provide differentiated materials, activities, and/or strategies for
struggling ELL students.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Reading for ELL students because the
evidence does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the
processes are adapted to meet the needs of ELL students which would
have demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level standards are
taught within the school year in all classrooms and that teachers
implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and demonstrated
that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and identifies the
strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in relation to
meeting the needs of ELL students.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading for ELL students because the
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evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly defined
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional
methodology and includes data collection from multiple assessments,
and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the needs of ELL
students which would have demonstrated how and when the school
analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes from
assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and
how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction; and
demonstrated how the assessment system assesses ELL students
according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Reading for ELL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning
needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of
high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and that
that is adapted to meet the needs of ELL students which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to ELL students according to their needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Reading for ELL students.

2c. Subgroup
Comparison
(2b. for
Alternative)
FRL

Math

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Falls Far Below because the
narrative states that tutoring is provided and remediation courses are
assigned based on assessment results, but does not describe a system to
implement, evaluate, and revise curriculum aligned with Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative and data provided did
not demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that
contributes to increasing student proficiency in math for FRL students.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math on
ACCR Standards for FRL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of FRL students which would have demonstrated how
and when the school evaluates curriculum options, what findings the
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Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.
Assessment: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the
curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that
identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods,
and activities, and communicated expectations for the consistent use of
these tools; and demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively
the curriculum enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps
in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing
curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is curriculum intended to
provide differentiated materials, activities, and/or strategies for
struggling FRL students.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math for FRL students because the evidence
does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the
integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the processes
are adapted to meet the needs of FRL students which would have
demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level standards are
taught within the school year in all classrooms and that teachers
implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and demonstrated
that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and identifies the
strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in relation to
meeting the needs of FRL students.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math for FRL students because the
evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly defined
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional
methodology and includes data collection from multiple assessments,
and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the needs of FRL
students which would have demonstrated how and when the school
analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes from
assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment data, and
how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction; and
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demonstrated how the assessment system assesses FRL students
according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Math for FRL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning
needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of
high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and that
that is adapted to meet the needs of FRL students which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to FRL students according to their needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Math for FRL students.

2c. Subgroup
Comparison
(2b. for
Alternative)
FRL

Reading

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Falls Far Below because the
narrative states that tutoring is provided and remediation courses are
assigned based on assessment results, but does not describe a system to
implement, evaluate, and revise curriculum aligned with Arizona’s
College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative and data provided did
not demonstrate that the school implemented a curriculum that
contributes to increasing student proficiency in reading for FRL students.

Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.
Assessment: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading on
ACCR Standards for FRL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of FRL students which would have demonstrated how
and when the school evaluates curriculum options, what findings the
school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the
curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that
identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods,
and activities, and communicated expectations for the consistent use of
these tools; and demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively
the curriculum enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps
in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing
curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is curriculum intended to
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provide differentiated materials, activities, and/or strategies for
struggling FRL students.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Reading for FRL students because the
evidence does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the
processes are adapted to meet the needs of FRL students which would
have demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level standards are
taught within the school year in all classrooms and that teachers
implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and demonstrated
that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and identifies the
strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in relation to
meeting the needs of FRL students.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading for FRL students because the
evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly defined
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional
methodology and includes data collection from multiple assessments,
and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the needs of FRL
students which would have which would have demonstrated how and
when the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school
makes from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of
assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt
instruction; and demonstrated how the assessment system assesses FRL
students according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Reading for FRL students because the evidence does not
demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher learning
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needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on areas of
high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and that
that is adapted to meet the needs of FRL students which would have
demonstrated that the plan was developed to address teacher learning
needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how the charter
holder provides access to resources necessary to implement the
information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to FRL students according to their needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Reading for FRL students.

2c. Subgroup
Comparison
(2b. for
Alternative)
Students with
disabilities
Math

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Fall Far Below because the narrative
states that modified workloads and tutoring are provided but does not
describe a system to implement, evaluate, and revise curriculum aligned
with Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative and
data provided did not demonstrate that the school implemented a
curriculum that contributes to increasing student proficiency in math for
students with disabilities.

Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.
Assessment: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Math on
ACCR Standards for Students with disabilities because the evidence does
not demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of Students with disabilities which would have
demonstrated how and when the school evaluates curriculum options,
what findings the school makes about curriculum options, and who is
involved in the curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school
utilizes tools that identify what must be taught, the expected pacing,
strategies, methods, and activities, and communicated expectations for
the consistent use of these tools; and demonstrated how the school
evaluates how effectively the curriculum enables students to master the
standards, identifies gaps in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the
school is addressing curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is
curriculum intended to provide differentiated materials, activities,
and/or strategies for struggling students with disabilities.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
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provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math for Students with disabilities because
the evidence does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to
monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, and that the
processes are adapted to meet the needs of students with disabilities
which would have demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level
standards are taught within the school year in all classrooms and that
teachers implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity; and
demonstrated that the school evaluates the quality of instruction and
identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers in
relation to meeting the needs of students with disabilities.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Math for Students with disabilities
because the evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and
instructional methodology and includes data collection from multiple
assessments, and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the
needs of Students with disabilities which would have demonstrated how
and when the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school
makes from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of
assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt
instruction; and demonstrated how the assessment system assesses
students with disabilities according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Math for Students with disabilities because the evidence
does not demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher
learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on
areas of high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and
that that is adapted to meet the needs of Students with disabilities which
would have demonstrated that the plan was developed to address
teacher learning needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how
the charter holder provides access to resources necessary to implement
the information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
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demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to students with disabilities according to their
needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Math for students with disabilities.

2c. Subgroup
Comparison
(2b. for
Alternative)
Students with
disabilities
Reading

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Fall Far Below because the narrative
states that modified workloads and tutoring are provided but does not
describe a system to implement, evaluate, and revise curriculum aligned
with Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards. The narrative and
data provided did not demonstrate that the school implemented a
curriculum that contributes to increasing student proficiency in reading
for students with disabilities.

Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.
Assessment: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

No data or analysis was provided for this measure.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student proficiency in Reading on
ACCR Standards for Students with disabilities because the evidence does
not demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum, and that the curriculum is adapted to
meet the needs of Students with disabilities which would have
demonstrated how and when the school evaluates curriculum options,
what findings the school makes about curriculum options, and who is
involved in the curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school
utilizes tools that identify what must be taught, the expected pacing,
strategies, methods, and activities, and communicated expectations for
the consistent use of these tools; and demonstrated how the school
evaluates how effectively the curriculum enables students to master the
standards, identifies gaps in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the
school is addressing curricular gaps; and demonstrated there is
curriculum intended to provide differentiated materials, activities,
and/or strategies for struggling students with disabilities.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Reading for Students with disabilities
because the evidence does not demonstrate a system that includes
processes to monitor the integration of ACCR Standards into instruction,
and that the processes are adapted to meet the needs of Students with
disabilities which would have demonstrated that the school ensures all
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grade level standards are taught within the school year in all classrooms
and that teachers implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity;
and demonstrated that the school evaluates the quality of instruction
and identifies the strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs of teachers
in relation to meeting the needs of students with disabilities.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
proficiency on ACCR Standards for Reading for Students with disabilities
because the evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly
defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and
instructional methodology and includes data collection from multiple
assessments, and data review teams, and that is adapted to meet the
needs of Students with disabilities which would have demonstrated how
and when the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school
makes from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of
assessment data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt
instruction; and demonstrated how the assessment system assesses
students with disabilities according to their needs.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
proficiency in Reading for Students with disabilities because the evidence
does not demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned with teacher
learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring strategies, focuses on
areas of high importance, and supports high quality implementation, and
that that is adapted to meet the needs of Students with disabilities which
would have demonstrated that the plan was developed to address
teacher learning needs and areas of high importance; demonstrate how
the charter holder provides access to resources necessary to implement
the information and strategies, and/or otherwise supports teachers in
planning to implement the information and strategies; and
demonstrated how implementation is observed and evaluated and how
the school ensures teacher development is ongoing in relation to the
information and strategies learned through the professional
development plan; and demonstrate how the professional development
plan addresses teacher weaknesses and learning needs and areas of high
importance in relation to students with disabilities according to their
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needs.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student proficiency in Reading for students with disabilities.

3a. A-F Letter
Grade State
Accountability
System

1/s

Curriculum: This area was scored as Falls Far Below because the
narrative states that tutoring is provided and curriculum has been
redeveloped, but does not describe a system to implement, evaluate,
and revise curriculum aligned with Arizona’s College and Career Ready
Standards.

Instruction: The narrative did not address this area for this measure.

Assessment: This area was scored as Approaches because the narrative
provides a breakdown of math computation and reading comprehension
scores, but did not describe assessments aligned with the curriculum or
formative and summative assessments.

Professional Development: The narrative did not address this area for
this measure.

The narrative and data provided did not demonstrate that the school is
increasing student growth and proficiency or meeting targets as
described in the A-F Letter Grade Model.

Curriculum: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of processes that do not demonstrate the school has
implemented a curriculum to increase student growth and proficiency in
Math and Reading on ACCR Standards because the evidence does not
demonstrate a system that includes processes to create, implement,
evaluate, and revise curriculum which would have demonstrated how
and when the school evaluates curriculum options, what findings the
school makes about curriculum options, and who is involved in the
curriculum adoption process; demonstrated the school utilizes tools that
identify what must be taught, the expected pacing, strategies, methods,
and activities, and communicated expectations for the consistent use of
these tools; and demonstrated how the school evaluates how effectively
the curriculum enables students to master the standards, identifies gaps
in the curriculum, and demonstrates how the school is addressing
curricular gaps.

Instruction: This area is scored as Approaches. The DSP provides
evidence of processes to evaluate the instructional practices of the
teachers evidenced by formal teacher evaluations, informal classroom
observations. The DSP provides evidence of a system that provides for
some analysis and feedback to further develop the system. The DSP
provides evidence of approaches that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring the integration of the ACCR
Standards into instruction in Math and Reading because the evidence
does not demonstrate a system that includes processes to monitor the
integration of ACCR Standards into instruction, which would have
demonstrated that the school ensures all grade level standards are
taught within the school year in all classrooms and that teachers
implement an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity.

Assessment: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The DSP provides
evidence of an approach that do not demonstrate the school
implemented a plan for monitoring and documenting changes in student
growth and proficiency in Math and Reading on ACCR Standards because
the evidence does not demonstrate a system based on clearly defined
performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional
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methodology and includes data collection from multiple assessments,
and data review teams which would have demonstrated how and when
the school analyzes assessment data, what findings the school makes
from assessment data, who is involved in the analysis of assessment
data, and how that analysis is used to inform and adapt instruction.

Professional Development: This area is scored as Falls Far Below. The
DSP provides evidence of a plan that does not demonstrate the school
implemented a professional development plan to increase student
growth and proficiency in Math and Reading on ACCR Standards because
the evidence does not demonstrate a comprehensive plan that is aligned
with teacher learning needs, includes follow-up and monitoring
strategies, focuses on areas of high importance, and supports high
quality implementation which would have demonstrated that the plan
was developed to address teacher learning needs and areas of high
importance; demonstrate how the charter holder provides access to
resources necessary to implement the information and strategies, and/or
otherwise supports teachers in planning to implement the information
and strategies; and demonstrated how implementation is observed and
evaluated and how the school ensures teacher development is ongoing
in relation to the information and strategies learned through the
professional development plan.

Data: No data and analysis of data was provided to demonstrate
increased student growth and proficiency in Math and Reading.
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                                                             Demonstration of Sufficient Progress



Overall Characteristics

As a non-profit alternative school, Tucson Preparatory School focuses on and exclusively serves educationally disadvantaged students from all disadvantaged backgrounds.  Tucson Prep actively seeks out and enrolls students who are often described as “system” youth:  those who are involved with governmental entities such as the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Child Protective Services (CPS), the publicly-supported behavioral health system, the Juvenile Court and the Arizona Department of Juvenile Corrections.   There is a corresponding strong relationship among this student population and the sub-groups identified in the Arizona alternative school definition.  In addition, at any given time, more than half of Tucson Prep’s population is composed of homeless students, youth on their own, gang members and wanna-bes, and students with multiple barriers to educational success.   Substance use and abuse is an ongoing issue.  These students are difficult to manage and teach, and are often unwanted in traditional educational settings.  Despite these difficulties, these students have the same constitutional right to engage in the public school system as do more high-achieving students.

At any given time, approximately twenty percent of students are active special education students.  The vast majority have specific learning disabilities or emotional disabilities with a few OHI (other health impairments).

Tucson Prep is located in a high poverty, high crime neighborhood.  Although students from throughout the metropolitan area are enrolled, the majority of students hail from nearby areas.  A number of therapeutic and transitional group homes and the Juvenile Court’s Northwest Justice Center are located in close proximity to the school.  Most Tucson Prep students are ethnic and racial minorities and, at any given time, about half are bilingual and bicultural.

These students broadcast a culture of academic failure where poor achievement is both familiar and endemic.  This must be addressed proactively and continually before real educational progress can be achieved.  As is discussed below, there is a great need for remediation in both reading and mathematics.  It is a rare Tucson Prep enrollee who registers at a high school level on initial assessment testing. 

Historically, the student population is characterized by instability and transience.  The school has an enrollment cap of 165 students, but will ultimately serve as many as three hundred unduplicated individuals throughout the school year.   As of December 19, a total of 216 have been enrolled to date for the 2013-14 school year.  During this time students have been withdrawn as follows:

		Withdrawal Code

		Explanation

		Percent of  Withdrawals



		W-4

		Absences/whereabouts unknown

		15



		W-1

		Transfer to another school (most often, CAPE School at Pima County Juvenile Detention)

		12



		W-10

		Transfer to Pima County Jail CAPE

		2









As the graph below illustrates, there is, similarly, a historical attrition of full academic year (FAY) students.   By the spring administration of the AIMS (or future PARCC) tests, the number of full academic year students will have dwindled dramatically.  Based upon past performance, it is anticipated that the number of Tucson Prep 10th graders taking AIMS for the first time will be less than ten.  This factor is reflected in the “NR” measures in 1a., SGP, Student Progress over Time.   In December of the 2012-13 school year -- the year that is reflected in the 2013 Academic Performance table – there were only three full academic year 9th graders. 

High levels of attrition plague alternative schools and Tucson Prep particularly.  Over time, this factor alone can account for inconsistent student level data that masks progress that is being achieved.





Mission

It is Tucson Preparatory School’s mission and duty to stabilize these students academically and socially, remediate them, educate them, and ultimately graduate them to a promising and unsubsidized future.  

In order to better perform our mission we have undergone a transition.  New leadership in curriculum development and teacher supervision has made some great changes.  The teachers at Tucson Preparatory School are in the second year of adapting curriculum from competency-based packet work toward teacher-led classroom instruction.  Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards are being implemented and are leading the way.   New classes have been developed to counter low AIMS scores and Tucson Prep is in the process of becoming a Title I school in order to bring in more assistance for students.



Alternative School Status

Tucson Preparatory School was initially conceived as an alternative school and began operations in 1996 long before the Arizona Department of Education established the alternative school designation process and its discrete accountability standards.  Arizona’s alternative school definition is predicated upon intent; i.e., an alternative “school must intend to serve students exclusively in one or more of the following 

categories:



• Students with behavioral issues (documented history of disruptive behavior) 

• Students identified as dropouts 

• Students in poor academic standing who are either severely behind on academic 

credits (more than one year) or have a demonstrated pattern of failing grades 

• Pregnant and/or parenting students 

• Adjudicated youth” 



Some changes have been proposed to the State Board of Education by ADE Research and Evaluation, including removing the “exclusively” from the statement of intent.  The proposed definition adds students “at risk” of dropping out, students who are full‐time caregivers and students over the age of 18.  Students who are in out-of-home placement in the custody of CPS are not included in Arizona but are in the majority of states that recognize alternative education populations.   Tucson Prep does not merely intend to serve alternative students, but has a 16-year track record of proving a uniquely effective learning environment to Pima County’s most vulnerable and challenging students.  Each and every Tucson Prep student has at least one significant barrier to academic success.  Most have several factors that limit their potential for meeting state standards at expected intervals in their high school career.  When these students are grouped together in a single small school, targeted interventions are possible and outcomes can be greatly improved.  However, overall student performance is below even the most modest benchmarks and the school cannot be expected to perform as well as larger schools with lower concentrations of alternative students.



Continual Academic Performance Review

In order to improve teaching methods and reach more students, Tucson Prep evaluates teachers on an annual basis and performs regular classroom observations.  Teachers also learn from one another by sitting in on classes and learning how other instructors manage their classrooms and deliver material to students. 

Through these informal and formal reviews, teachers and administrators are able to set goals together in order to improve the school and create a better learning environment.  At the end of each school year new goals are established for teachers.  Goals include professional development, implementation of new classroom management techniques, curriculum development, or modification of teaching style. 

Three weekly scheduled meetings that include all teachers and staff discuss each week’s progress and areas of need.  These meetings can be a brief review of a particular student’s progress, or may take the form of an intensive, comprehensive “staffing” or “CFT” (Child-Family Team) as used by child welfare personnel.  Students who are struggling are identified and mediated the day following a meeting.  The needs of students can be anything that impedes their academic and social progress.  Students may require tutoring, class changes, discipline, counseling, or a case management intervention due to issues of homelessness and/or neglect. 

AIMS, Brigance, WRAT-4 test results are reviewed during these meetings as well.  Due to a constant influx of students, staff reviews take place on a regular basis.  Brigance and WRAT-4 scores are available immediately and AIMS scores are accessed from SAIS when new students do not present this information available during enrollment.  These scores show where teachers have to remediate immediately and whether special education services may be appropriate.



New Testing Procedures  

Our improved curriculum design functions to find and assess students immediately after enrollment.  Students are tested with the Brigance (Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills) and WRA-4 (Wide Area Achievement Test 4).  Through these assessments the school can evaluate a student’s ability to read, spell, comprehend sentences, and compute mathematical problems at enrollment and at intervals throughout the school year.  This in turn allows us to place non-proficient students into appropriate skill development classes.   These classes help students reach the necessary high school level Arizona Academic Standards.    A tutor is made available to further development by allowing one-on-one interaction.  A tutor is also able to refine the special needs of a particular student in order concentrate studies on the area of weakness.



Data Collection and Analysis

All scores from AIMS testing, Brigance, and WRAT-4 are entered into the school’s student information system (SIS) in order to monitor student progress.  Custom reports allow us to monitor a single student, a group of students, or the entire school.  In turn, students can be better grouped by educational ability and given the assistance they need.  Students who Fall Far Below or Approach on AIMS will be grouped in Math Proficiency or English Proficiency, accordingly.  Students who test poorly on the WRAT-4 or Brigance are remediated in Consumer Math, General Math, or Language Arts Lab. 



Team Review

Teachers and administrative staff meet three times each week in order to discuss student progress.  These meeting are designed to identify and address educational and social obstacles that delay or impede a student’s progress.



Every week one day is reserved for special education students, which constitute 20 percent of the student population.  Student progress, work load, and behavior are talked about at every meeting.  



Two days each week are reserved to staff 80 percent of the student body.  Tutoring progress, class participation, motivation, and behavior are regularly discussed.



These meetings may result in formal or informal recommendations for tutoring, parental involvement, schedule changes, or counseling.  





Reading

In order raise scores in reading, Language Arts Lab I-VII has been revamped to meet students’ needs.   For the 2013-2014 academic year, Brigance test scores show that 78 percent of students have a grade equivalency of 6th grade or below in Reading Vocabulary.  For the same group, 43 percent have a grade equivalency of 6th grade or below in Reading Comprehension.  In response, additional grammar, vocabulary, and reading assignments have been added.   These classes serve 60 percent of students at any given time.   These classes help students who are weak in English grammar, structure, vocabulary, and reading.   Completing any one of these levels helps students perform better in traditional English classes and helps students improve comprehension in science, mathematics and social studies.  

For readers of all levels, Strategic Reading was created.  This class allows a student to read fiction or non-fiction books at a structured pace. This class focuses on comprehension, vocabulary, and reading strategies.  Student-chosen texts/books, with teacher approval, have allowed students to explore their interests and at the same time raise their abilities to match that of the book they have chosen.  Teachers have noticed increased interest in reading and a rise in general vocabulary skills.  These classes serve 15 to 20 percent of students at any given time and were introduced at the beginning of the 2013-2014 school year.

Directly dedicated to raising AIMS scores, English Proficiency was created.  This class focuses on reading, grammar, vocabulary, comprehension and writing skills that the AIMS exam focuses on.  Students are selected for these classes based upon Stanford, AIMS, Brigance, and WRAT-4 scores.  English teachers have noticed an increase in reading and writing skills after a student completes this course.  This class was first introduced for the 2012-2013 school year.  English Proficiency classes constitute 20 to 25 percent of school enrollment at any given time. 








Mathematics

Consumer Math and General Math has been redeveloped to capture the many educationally disadvantaged students we instruct.  Most of the students entering our school are deficient in mathematics credits and are low functioning in mathematics as a result.  More than 43 percent of students have a grade equivalency of 6th grade or below on the WRAT-4.   As a result, packets have been streamlined into smaller more accessible units while not sacrificing content.  Courses now integrate lecture and daily quizzes as well.   Math basics such as measurement, multiplication, division, adding, and subtracting are taught in Consumer Math.  General Math continues the evolution with estimation, percentages, and now has integrated algebra concepts for AIMS reinforcement.

Directly dedicated to raising math AIMS scores, Math Proficiency classes were created.  Gender separated math classes of equal merit were developed in order to reduce distractions and focus all thought towards mathematics.  This class reviews basic skills, simple equations, quadratic equations, polynomials, and test taking strategies.  This class was introduced for the 2013-2014 school year and approximately 25 to 30 percent of students are now enrolled in these classes.



Staff Development 

Teachers are continuing with staff development by obtaining teacher certifications in addition to their highly qualified status.  In the past year 50 percent of teaching staff have obtained additional NES/AEPA certificates.  Certificates in AEPA Economics, AEPA Biology, NES English, and Provisional Secondary Education 7-12 have been issued.

Because Arizona was an early implementer of Common Core Standards, staff has been following these standards for some time now.  As of November, a math teacher just received his Arizona teaching certificate and another teacher will receive his within the year.  They are knowledgeable and freshly educated about Arizona’s new standards.  Their knowledge is being used shared throughout the school.  College courses are also part of professional development for mathematics and certification and are supported by the school.  

Three teachers will be testing for reading specialist endorsements in early 2014.




                                                                                                          Data Review



Below are sections of Tucson Prep’s academic performance chart as well as pertinent data derived from current and last year’s student population. 

Growth



		

1.  Growth

		2012

Alternative

High School (9-12)

		2013

Alternative

High School (9-12)



		

		Measure

		Points

Assigned

		Weight

		Measure

		Points

Assigned

		Weight



		1a. SGP

		Math

		NR

		0

		0

		NR

		0

		0



		

		Reading

		NR

		0

		0

		NR

		0

		0



		1b. Improvement

		Math

		17

		25

		15

		18.8

		25

		15



		

		Reading

		41.5

		50

		15

		44.2

		50

		15







Although math scores are remarkably low, there is a slight improvement evident from 2012 to 2013.  Similar improvement is noted in reading scores over the two-year comparison.  It appears that Tucson Prep may be a statistical outlier, an observation point that is distant from other observations.  Outlier points can indicate faulty data, erroneous procedures, or areas where a certain theory might not be valid.  Is the bar established by other alternative schools – that are characteristically all over the map in size, focus and approach – be set too high for the concentration of extremely disadvantaged students attending Tucson Prep?  As the Academic Performance Framework and Guidance does not yet have a methodology section it is difficult to ascertain the validity of this concern. 

Based upon past performance, it is anticipated that the number of Tucson Prep 10th graders taking AIMS for the first time this spring will be less than ten.  This factor is reflected in the “NR” measures in 1a., SGP, Student Progress over Time.   It is anticipated that this measure will continue to be unrated due to the small population of 10th grade FAY students.

An analysis of the cohort tested for 2013 reveals the following:

· 22 percent of FAY 11th graders had never taken an AIMS exam before coming to Tucson Preparatory School.

· 91 percent of FAY 11th graders must retest in at least one AIMS subject.   

· 74 percent of FAY 12th graders must retest in at least one AIMS subject.





Proficiency

2a. Percent Passing Math/Reading



		

2.  Proficiency

		2012

Alternative

High School (9-12)

		2013

Alternative

High School (9-12)



		

		Measure

		Points

Assigned

		Weight

		Measure

		Points

Assigned

		Weight



		2a. Percent Passing

		Math

		7/19.4

		50

		10

		9/19.5

		50

		10



		

		Reading

		58/46.6

		75

		10

		37/52.1

		50

		10



		2b. Subgroup

ELL

		Math

		NR

		0

		0

		0/19.4

		25

		2.5



		

		Reading

		NR

		0

		0

		NR

		0

		0



		2b. Subgroup

FRL

		Math

		6/18.4

		50

		5

		9/18.5

		50

		2.5



		

		Reading

		53/45.9

		75

		5

		38/50.8

		50

		2.5



		2b. Subgroup

SPED

		Math

		NR

		0

		0

		0/5.4

		50

		2.5



		

		Reading

		NR

		0

		0

		NR

		0

		0









2b.  Subgroup ELL - Math

School Population -   6% (Less than 10 students over 180 instructional days)



It is surmised that this 2013 cohort is composed of students who are both ELL and learning disabled, and are not required by their IEPs to  pass AIMS math.

ELL participation decreases at the secondary level and Tucson Prep is no exception.  

ELL students have adapted curriculum with simplified language.  There are very few ELL students at Tucson Preparatory School so most adaptations are done on a case-by-case basis set up for each individual student who demonstrates need.  Again, because of the extremely small number of eligibles in this category, little illustrative data can be generated over time.

The mainstream classes that have been created for our educationally disadvantaged students also pair well with ELL students.  Math Proficiency, General Math, Consumer Math, and traditional mathematics classes with adapted curriculum address this situation fully.

Our classes offer an environment that encourages questions and allow access to reference material at any time.  When reference material is not enough, our school is pleased to have several bi-lingual staff/teachers that can further guide a student.

Key math vocabulary terms are covered to aid students that may be unfamiliar with their double use in English.  Classes often allow pairing of students or peer assistance.  Teachers also offer guided practice for students that are struggling.	 



2b.  Subgroup FRL - Reading/Math

School Population – 63 percent (104 students)



Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) eligible students represent virtually all Tucson Prep students and are a main focus when it comes to curriculum development and targeted assistance.   At one time or another, all students attending Tucson Prep have been classified FRL.  Because of the Title I age threshold of age 17 and the skewed age distribution of Tucson Prep students, many older students are categorically ineligible for Title I services although they remain low-income and in need of targeted assistance. This group is so important that all shifts in curriculum concern these students.   

Due to the size and need of this group, we are currently in the process of setting up a targeted assistance program through Title I.  Once we finish the Title I process, we can add additional services to reading and math classes.  Services we will offer include the addition of paraprofessionals or tutors to classrooms.  These instructors can further break down classes into smaller groups and give direct assistance on areas of weakness.  



Reading

English Proficiency and redeveloped Language Arts Lab classes were created with this group in mind.  70% of students are enrolled in one of these classes at any given time.  These classes focus on the core foundations of reading and writing.  

In the near future adding paraprofessionals and tutors to classes will allow one on one tutoring or small group tutoring that was not possible before.  







Mathematics

Math Proficiency, General Math, and Consumer Math were created with this group in mind.  Approximately 50 percent of students are enrolled in one of these classes at any given time.  In the near future adding paraprofessionals and tutors to classes will allow one on one tutoring or small group tutoring that was not possible before.



2b.  Subgroup SPED - Math

School Population 20 percent (33 students)



Through early assessment at enrollment and an active SPED supervisor we are able to work with SPED students proactively and effectively.  New methods of implementing 45-day screens allow for a more thorough look at individual student’s achievement over their school career.  New testing procedures allow the school to find previously unidentified SPED students and begin the process of an IEP or 504 plan more efficiently.



This improved process allows the SPED coordinator to work with math instructors and detail a plan of action for each student.  Plans may include modified workloads, modified schedules, or tutoring.  Math Proficiency, General Math, and Consumer Math are mainstream classes that are heavily utilized in SPED because of their utility.



Future Plans include adding paraprofessionals to assist with tutoring SPED students in mathematics.





3a.  State Accountability



		

3.  State Accountability

		2012

Alternative

High School (9-12)

		2013

Alternative

High School (9-12)



		

		Measure

		Points

Assigned

		Weight

		Measure

		Points

Assigned

		Weight



		3a. State Accountability

		C-ALT

		50

		5

		D-ALT

		25

		5







Tucson Preparatory School has redeveloped curriculum and delivery methods to better meet the needs of our students.  Teacher-led classrooms with a firm understanding of Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards are leading the way.  Tutoring is also becoming an integral part of instruction in order to target a student’s weak academic area.  Almost all elective classes now focus on the development of math and reading skills.  With a dedicated staff we are continuing to further refine educational models to better reflect our students’ and align with Arizona’s A-F model. 



Transition to Title I

Tucson Preparatory has always been dedicated to helping educationally disadvantaged students throughout our community.  To better assist us with our mission and help us better meet Arizona standards, we are in the process of becoming a Title I school.  This will allow for frequent and specialized attention focusing on reading and mathematics deficits.  Additional assistance will also be available for AIMS/PARCC exams as well.    This will also allow us to add para-professionals and aides to classrooms in core subjects.  Students will ultimately have better student/educator ratios and have the assistance they need when they need it.   



[bookmark: _GoBack]8th Grade AIMS history for 2013-14 Tucson Prep FAY 10th Graders

		

		Math

		Percent

		Reading

		Percent



		Exceed

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Met

		1

		6

		2

		12



		Approach

		2

		12

		5

		29



		Falls Far Below

		7

		41

		3

		18



		Not tested

		7

		41

		7

		41



		

		



		TOTAL

		17

		100%

		17

		100%







Of the seventeen FAY 10th graders enrolled at the conclusion of the first semester of the 2013-14 school year who are scheduled to take AIMS for the first time in the spring of 2014, only two students met the 8th grade standard, one in both math and reading and one in reading.  More than 40 percent of this student group did not take the 8th grade AIMS tests, presumably because they were not in school at the time the tests were administered.   

When the “not tested” cohort is eliminated from the table above, a whopping seventy percent of students fell far below the standard on AIMS math at the 8th grade level.  Based upon this analysis, it is clear that most Tucson Prep 9th grade students lack the academic preparation necessary to enter high school at or near grade level and are at a profound disadvantage in meeting high school proficiency standards in the spring of their sophomore year.

This troubling factor is further validated by scores on the pair of assessment tests administered to each student at enrollment.  For illustrative purposes, math computation and reading comprehension scores have been divided into three categories, elementary (grades K through 5), middle school (grades 6 through 8) and high school (grades 9 and above) and are presented in the table below.  Math calculation and reading comprehension scores of Tucson Prep students tested in the fall of 2013 range from a grade level equivalent of second grade to grade 9+.  The math computation proficiency level of more than 65 percent of students was 5th grade or less, while an additional 32.4 percent fall between grades 6 and 8.  Only one student scored at the high school level.    Reading comprehension levels are better, but show that almost 65 percent of students function at a grade equivalency below high school freshmen.  



Selected Fall 2013 Assessment Scores

		

		Elementary (K-5)



		

Percent

		Middle

School

(6-8)

		

Percent

		High School (9+)

		

Percent



		Math Computation

		103

		66.8

		50

		32.4

		1

		>1



		Reading Comprehension

		37

		24

		62

		40.2

		55

		35.8







While this snapshot of the achievement levels of Tucson Prep students may be troubling to those who monitor the effectiveness of alternative schools, it is nonetheless an accurate portrayal  of the educational profile of Tucson's vulnerable "system" children and youth.   Although there may be a slight change from year-to-year,  academic achievement levels have not fluctuated over Tucson Prep's fifteen-year plus history.  With few exceptions, these students are under the supervision of state agencies and have previously attended a wide variety of district and charter schools.  They come to Tucson Prep with lots of baggage and few resources, and often a strong dislike for education.  If they are to have the tools for a rewarding future, they must be brought back into an educational setting that understands their needs and quirks, and is willing to make the effort required to remediate and restore those who continue to be left behind. 

2013-14 Attrition of FAY Students

9th Grade	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	18	17	13	12	11	10-12 Grade	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	128	116	104	93	92	TOTAL	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	146	133	117	105	103	

		1
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Demonstration of Sufficient Progress


 


 


Overall Characteristics


 


As a


 


n


on


-


profit


 


alternative school, 


Tucson Preparatory School focuses on and 


exclusively 


serves 


educationally


 


disadvantaged students 


from all


 


disadvantaged


 


backgrounds.


  


Tucson Prep actively seeks out 


and enrolls 


students 


who are often described as 


“system” youth:  those who are involved with governmental 


entities 


such as the Arizona 


Department of Economic Security, 


Child Protective Ser


vices (CPS


), 


the publicly


-


supported behavioral health system, 


the 


Juvenile Court and the Arizona Department of 


Juvenile Corrections.   


There is a corresponding strong relationship among this student 


population and the sub


-


groups identified in the Arizona a


lternative school definition.  In 


addition, 


at any given time, 


more than 


half of Tucson Prep’s population is composed of 


homeless students, youth on their own


, gang members and wanna


-


bes, 


and 


students 


with multiple barriers to educational success.   


Substa


nce use and abuse is an ongoing 


issue.


  


These students are difficult 


to manage and teach, 


and 


are 


often unwanted in 


traditional educational settings


.  Despite these difficulties, these students


 


have the same 


constitutional right to 


engage in 


the public sch


ool system as 


do 


more high


-


achieving 


students.


 


At any given time, approximately twenty percent of students are active special 


education students.  The vast majority have specific learning disabilities or emotional 


disabilities with a few OHI (other health 


impairments).


 


Tucson Prep is located in a high poverty, high crime neighborhood.  Although students 


from throughout the metropolitan area are enrolled, the majority of students hail from 


nearby areas.  A number of therapeutic and transitional group homes a


nd the Juvenile 


Court’s Northwest Justice Center are located in close proximity to the school.  


Most 


Tucson Prep students are ethnic and racial minorities


 


and, at any given time, about half 


are bilingual and bicultural.


 


These students


 


broadcast 


a culture o


f academic failure


 


where poor achievement is both 


familiar and endemic.  This must be addressed proactively and continually before real 


educational progress can be achieved.  


As is discussed below, there is a great need for 


remediation in both reading and 


mathematics.  It is a rare Tucson Prep enrollee who 


registers at a high school level on initial assessment testing. 


 


Historically, t


he student population is 


characterized by instability and transience.  


The 


school has a


n enrollment


 


cap of 165 students, but


 


will ultimately serve as many as three 



Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Report

Demonstration of Sufficient Progress

DSP Report 



Charter Holder Name: Steven Nelson and Mark VonDestinon

School(s): Tucson Preparatory School

Date Submitted: January 7, 2015

Purpose of Demonstration of Sufficient Progress (check one): 

☒ Annual Monitoring	

☐ Interval Review

	☐ Renewal 

	☐ Failing School

	☐ Expansion Request

Academic Dashboard Year (check all that apply): 

☒ FY2013 	

☒ FY2014



Directions:

A. Locate and download “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Process and Instructions” from the Board’s website or the Help files on ASBCS Online. Read the instructions carefully and view the DSP Online Technical Assistance presentation before starting. 

a. To locate the “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Process and Instructions” on the Board’s website: 

i. Go to the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools website (www.asbcs.az.gov)

ii. Locate the “For Charter School Operators” section in the middle of the page. 

iii. Select the “Performance Expectations & Reviews” link. 

iv. Select the “Academic Interventions” tab. 

v. Scroll down to the “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress” section. 

vi. Locate and download the “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Process and Instructions”.



b. To locate the “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Process and Instructions” on ASBCS Online: 

i. Go to ASBCS Online (http://online.asbcs.az.gov) 

ii. Log in using the user name and password of the Charter Representative

iii. If you do not remember your password, locate the “Forgot Password” icon on the log in page and click it to reset your password.  You will receive an email from the ASBCS System Administrator (charterschoolboard@asbcs.az.gov) with instructions.

iv. Locate the “Help” section of the Dashboard. 

v. Select “Online Help”

vi. Locate and download the “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress Process and Instructions”.



c. To locate the DSP Online Technical Assistance presentations on the Board’s website: 

i. Go to the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools website (www.asbcs.az.gov)

ii. Locate the “For Charter School Operators” section in the middle of the page. 

iii. Select the “Performance Expectations & Reviews” link. 

iv. Select the “Academic Interventions” tab. 

v. Scroll down to the “Demonstration of Sufficient Progress” section. 

vi. Locate and click the link for the DSP Online Technical Assistance presentation you wish to view.

d. 



B. Complete the template by providing a clear and concise written answer for each question. The suggested word count is no more than 400 words per question. In addition, list the names of all documents that serve as evidence of implementation of the process described in the answer. Reference evidence listed in the Charter Holder’s Performance Management Plan when listing evidence of implementation.   








Area I: Data 

Charter Holders with multiple schools must complete the Data area for each school that received an Overall Rating of “Does Not Meet”, “Falls Far Below” or “No Rating” on the current Academic Dashboard.[footnoteRef:1] The Charter Holder must copy and paste the entire Data area for each school. [1:  If the Charter Holder is completing the DSP process as part of an amendment or notification request, follow the directions provided in the amendment or notification instructions. ] 


School Name: Tucson Preparatory School

		Dashboard Ratings for All Measures 



		Measure

		Prior Year Dashboard

		Current Year Dashboard

		Data Required for Report



		

		Meets

Exceeds

		Does Not Meet 

Falls Far Below 

No Rating

		Meets

Exceeds

		Does Not Meet 

Falls Far Below 

No Rating

		



		Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) - Math

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) – Reading

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP), Bottom 25%,- Math

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP), Bottom 25%,- Reading

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Improvement – Math 

(Alternative High Schools Only) 

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Improvement – Reading (Alternative High Schools Only)

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Percent Passing – Math

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Percent Passing – Reading

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Subgroup, ELL – Math

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Subgroup, ELL – Reading

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Subgroup, FRL – Math

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Subgroup, FRL – Reading

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Subgroup, students with disabilities – Math

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Subgroup, students with disabilities – Reading

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		High School Graduation Rate

		☐		☒		☐		☒		☒

		Academic Persistence (Alternative Schools Only)

		☒		☐		☒		☐		☐





		Data for All Applicable Measures and Subgroups



		1. What year-over-year comparative data demonstrates improved academic performance? Describe and provide data for each measure that does not meet the Board’s standards in the relevant Academic Dashboards. Clearly label all data to demonstrate which measure(s) it addresses.



Directions: Prepare graphs, tables, or data charts to include in the template that address all measures that do not meet the Board’s academic standards for either of the two most recent years. The Charter Holder must provide comparative year-over-year data and analysis generated from valid and reliable assessment sources that demonstrates and evaluates the change in academic performance for all required measures for at least the two most recent school years. The Charter Holder must provide data for each school operated by the Charter Holder that does not meet the Board’s academic expectations and must:

· clearly label all data to demonstrate which measure(s) it addresses, 

· provide data generated from valid and reliable assessment sources,

· limit all data to no more than one page per measure per content per school, and

· redact all student identifiable information.









FAY AIMS Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) – Math data here:









FAY AIMS Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) – Reading data here:

























































FAY- AIMS -Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP), Bottom 25%,- Math data here:

























































FAY- AIMS -Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP), Bottom 25%,- Reading data here:

























































FAY AIMS – Improvement – Math - FFB decreased by 5%,  A increased by 60%,  M remained the same

























































FAY AIMS – Improvement – Reading - FFB remained the same, A increased by 67%,  M decreased by 18%























































FAY – AIMS – Math Percent Passing data here:

























































FAY – AIMS – Reading - Percent Passing data here:























































FAY- AIMS -  Subgroup, ELL – Math data here: ( According to ADE records and our records, we do not have any students who tested and qualified for ELL services for 2013,2014)





















































FAY – AIMS - Subgroup, ELL – Reading data here:  According to ADE records and our records, we do not have any students who tested and qualified for ELL services for 2013,2014)

	



















































FAY – AIMS -  Subgroup, FRL – Math data here:

























































FAY – AIMS -  Subgroup, FRL – Reading data here:

























































FAY – AIMS - Subgroup, students with disabilities – Math data here:

























































FAY - AIMS Subgroup, students with disabilities – Reading data here:

























































High School Graduation data here:



















































		Valid and Reliable Data



		2. How does the Charter Holder know that the data described above is valid and reliable?



		AIMS/Stanford 10/AzMerit(2015) are statistically validated for reliability by ADE and the publisher.



The placement tests, Brigance and WRAT 4 are valid and reliable per publishers.  They are utilized to determine grade/course level placement when entering in our school.  



		Conclusions Drawn From Data



		3. What analysis has the Charter Holder conducted for each measure that does not meet the Board’s academic performance expectations? What are the results from the analysis?



		Data was compiled from AIMS assessments for all FAY students including students with disabilities, bottom 25th quartile, free/reduced lunch, and ELL students.  Data shows that the majority of students below their grade level in Math and 3+ years (grade equivalent) below their grade in Reading.

In 2013 on the AIMS Math assessment, 89% FFB standards, 7% Approach standards, and 3% Met standards.  In 2013 on the AIMS Reading assessment, 16% FFB standards, 68% Approach standards, and 16% Met standards.  In 2014 on the AIMS Reading assessment, 28% FFB standards, 77% Approach standards, and 12% Met standards.  In 2014 on the AIMS Math assessment, 76% FFB standards, 18% Approach standards, and 6% Met standards.

All scores from AIMS, Brigance, and WRAT-4 are entered into the school’s student information system (SIS) in order to monitor student progress.  Custom reports allow us to monitor a single student, a group of students, or the entire school.  In turn, students can be better grouped by educational ability and given the assistance they need.  Students who Fall Far Below or Approaches on AIMS will be enrolled in Math Proficiency or English Proficiency classes, accordingly.  Students who test poorly on the WRAT-4 or Brigance are enrolled in Consumer Math, General Math, or Language Arts Lab (Reading) for the purpose of remediating the areas that are below grade level.







Area II: Curriculum

		Evaluating Curriculum



		1. What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating curriculum? How does the Charter Holder evaluate how effectively the curriculum enables students to meet the standards?



		Curriculum which is aligned with ACCR standards is evaluated through the process of lesson plan evaluation, walk-throughs, observation of curriculum implementation, and teacher evaluation.  Administration and teachers meet weekly to discuss curriculum implementation.

		Lesson plans

Observation notes

Meeting sign-in sheets

Walk through notes

Evaluations





		2. How does the Charter Holder identify gaps in the curriculum?



		Gaps in the curriculum have been identified through the process of reviewing current curriculum and analyzing student data.

Teachers identify key concepts in the curriculum where gaps are and find supplemental curriculum to enhance the skill level.

The FuelEd Anywhere Learning System (formally ALS) helps students master Reading and Math state requirements through their own customized learning paths online.

The principal observes teachers to determine if what is planned in the lesson plans is what is being taught and aligned with common ACCR standards. 

The principal meets three times weekly with teachers to analyze data to identify gaps in Reading and Math instruction, assessment, and mastery of skill.

		Lesson plans

Observation notes

Meeting sign-in sheets

Assessment scores

FuelEd Anywhere Learning System











		Adopting/Revising Curriculum



		3. What is the Charter Holder’s process for adopting or revising curriculum based on its evaluation processes?



		The principal, teachers, and staff meet at the beginning of each year to set academic goals for student achievement in Reading and Math.  Based on assessment scores and goals, the team revises Reading and Math curriculum for:

*Academic Rigor

*Alignment with ACCR Standards

*Appropriate supplemental materials

*Differentiated instruction for ELL, Disabilities, and non-proficient students.

Revising curriculum is on-going as teachers and staff meet weekly to discuss student improvement.

		Meeting sign-in sheets, minutes







		4. Who is involved in the process for adopting or revising curriculum?



		Principal

Teachers

Staff

Board of Directors

		Meeting sign-in sheets, minutes







		5. When adopting curriculum, how does the Charter Holder evaluate curriculum options to determine which curriculum to adopt?



		The Charter Holder researches curricula through the process of guidance from the Arizona Charter School Association and other members of the charter community.

Curriculum options were reviewed and evaluated by a team represented by administration, teachers, and staff.  When the team made a decision for Reading and Math textbooks, their recommendation was presented to the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors approved.

		Board minutes

Team Sign-in sheets











		Implementing Curriculum



		6. What is the Charter Holder’s process for ensuring consistent implementation of the curriculum across the school(s) operated by the Charter Holder?



		The principal and teachers meet at the beginning of the year to map out courses needed for our students.  

Schedules are created to give teachers common planning time to discuss curriculum implementation.

The principal and teachers meet each week to monitor curriculum for:

*Academic rigor.

*Alignment with ACCR Standards

*Appropriate supplemental materials.

*Differentiated instruction for ELL, special education, and non-proficient students.

Course outlines are created by groups of teachers to align course content to ACCR standards.

		Meeting sign-in sheets

ACCR Standards

Lesson Plans

Observations

Schedules

Course curricula







		7. What tools exist that identify what must be taught and when it must be delivered? How does the Charter Holder ensure that all grade-level standards are covered within the academic year?



		The principal and teachers weekly meet to:

1. Identify and communicate the content considered essential for all students.

2. Ensure that the essential content can be addressed in the amount of time available for instruction.

3. Sequence and organize the essential content in such a way that students have ample opportunity to learn.

 4. Ensure that teachers address the essential content.

Teachers follow the pacing/sequencing guides in Steck-Vaughn for Reading and McDougal Littel for Math.  Teachers align Reading/Math to ACCR standards to ensure all course content and standards are presented within the allotted time periods.



The principal observes teachers to determine if the teaching follows lesson plans and curriculum pacing/sequence guides.

		Meeting sign-in sheets

Lesson plans

Schedules

Course syllabi

Principal observation 

Pacing/sequence guides













		8. What is the expectation for consistent use of these tools? How are these expectations communicated? 



		The Board of Directors sets the expectation for consistent use of the tools mentioned above. The expectations are communicated in the minutes.  The Board of Directors charges the principal with the responsibility of enforcing expectations which is communicated on the job description.

The principal is in place to ensure these expectations are carried out daily within the classroom and communicated to the teachers and staff.  The Board of Directors charges the principal with the responsibility of enforcing expectations which is communicated on the job description.

The curriculum/instruction expectations are discussed in the employee orientation and at teachers meetings. They are listed in the job description.

		Meeting sign-in sheets

Board Minutes on web site

Principal and Teacher Job description















		9. What evidence is there to demonstrate usage of these tools in the classroom and alignment with instruction?



		Pacing guides, ACCR standards, lesson plans, assessments, and teaching are tools used in the classroom and aligned with instruction.  

The principal observes teachers and evaluates lesson plans to determine if:

1.What is being taught is it consistent with what is written in the lesson plans.

 2.The curriculum pacing/sequence guides are being followed and reflected in the lesson plans.

3. All course content are aligned with ACCR standards.

4.Teachers use assessment data to adjust curriculum and instruction.

		Lesson plans

Observations

Pacing guides

ACCR Standards

Assessment Data









		Alignment of Curriculum



		10. How does the Charter Holder know the curriculum is aligned to standards? 



		The Principal checks lesson plans each week to ensure the curriculum is aligned to ACCR standards.  

Teachers meet to align key concepts identified in the curriculum to ACCR standards to determine gaps and overlaps.

		Lesson plans

Meetings sign-ins







		Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups(Address all relevant measures)



		11. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students?



		Based upon data results, administration, teachers, and staff decided to create new Math and Reading courses to address the academic needs of students who are non-proficient.

The courses which are aligned with ACCR standards, emphasize analytical skills, a deeper understanding of key concepts, and applied knowledge rather than a simple recall of facts.  These courses help students perform better in English and Math core courses recommended for graduation.

Students are placed in these classes based upon their scores from AIMS, Stanford 10, Brigance, and WRAT-4.

Three separate classes were created in the English Department to focus on curriculum/

instructional strategies that build Reading skills (i.e., English grammar, structure, vocabulary, and Reading comprehension).

Two teachers are finishing their Reading specialist endorsement.  These teachers will work individually or in small groups to strengthen student achievement in Reading.  They will also work with teachers to provide Reading strategies for non-proficient students.

Three separate classes (Consumer Math, General Math, Math Proficiency) were revamped to focus on curriculum/instructional strategies that build Math skills (i.e., measurement, integrated algebra, quadratic equations, and AIMS test-taking).

		Reading syllabi

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data

AIMS/Stanford data

Student grades

Reading Endorsement Documentation













		12. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?



		Spring, 2013 Reading

Spring, 2014 Reading, Math

In each of these sections our school received a “NR” rating on the Dashboard.  Nevertheless, our school requires all students to complete the PHLOTE.  Students who self-qualify will be administered the ELL assessment (AZELLA) to determine if students qualify for the program.  Students who qualify would then receive ELL services.



Spring, 2013 Math

Based upon data results, administration, teachers, and staff decided to create new Math courses to address the academic needs of students who qualify for ELL services.

The courses which are aligned with ACCR standards, emphasize analytical skills, a deeper understanding of key concepts, and applied knowledge rather than a simple recall of facts.  These courses help students perform better in Math core courses recommended for graduation.

Students are placed in these classes based upon their scores from AIMS, Stanford 10, Brigance, WRAT-4, AZELLA.

Three separate classes (Consumer Math, General Math, Math Proficiency) were revamped to focus on curriculum/instructional strategies that build Math skills (i.e.,measurement, integrated algebra, quadratic equations, and AIMS test-taking).

Within Math course curriculum, the following strategies are included to strengthen Math skills for ELL students:

1.Simplify the language of instruction, not the concept being taught. 

2.Impart information through oral, visual, auditory, and kinesthetic learning modalities. 

3. Present content area vocabulary and concepts using picture files, and hands-on activities. 

4.Build background knowledge before teaching a lesson.

		Dashboard

PHLOTE documents

AZELLA results

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data

AIMS data















		13. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?



		Based upon data results, administration, teachers, and staff decided to create new Math and Reading courses to address the academic needs of free/reduced lunch students.

The courses which are aligned with ACCR standards, emphasize analytical skills, a deeper understanding of key concepts, and applied knowledge rather than a simple recall of facts.  These courses help students perform better in English and Math core courses recommended for graduation.

Students are placed in these classes based upon their scores from AIMS, Brigance, and WRAT-4.

Three separate classes were created in the English Department to focus on curriculum/instructional strategies that builds Reading skills (i.e., English grammar, structure, vocabulary, and Reading comprehension).

Two teachers are finishing their Reading specialist endorsement.  These teachers will work individually or in small groups to strengthen student achievement in Reading.  They will also work with other content teachers to provide Reading strategies for non-proficient students.

Three separate classes (Consumer Math, General Math, Math Proficiency) were revamped to focus on curriculum/instructional strategies that build Math skills (i.e., measurement, integrated algebra, quadratic equations, and AIMS test-taking).

		Reading syllabi

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data

AIMS data

Student grades

Reading Endorsement Documentation













		14. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the needs of students with disabilities?



		Based upon data results, administration, teachers, and staff decided to create new Math and Reading courses to address the academic needs of students with disabilities.

The courses which are aligned with ACCR standards, emphasize analytical skills, a deeper understanding of key concepts, and applied knowledge rather than a simple recall of facts.  These courses help students perform better in English and Math core courses recommended for graduation.

Students are placed in these classes based upon their scores from AIMS, Stanford 10, Brigance,WRAT-4, and the IEP.

Three separate classes were created in the English Department to focus on curriculum/

instructional strategies that build Reading skills (i.e., English grammar, structure, vocabulary, and Reading comprehension).

Two teachers are completing their Reading specialist endorsement.  These teachers will work individually or in small groups to strengthen student achievement in Reading.  They will also work with other content teachers to provide Reading strategies for non-proficient students.

Three separate classes (Consumer Math, General Math, Math Proficiency) were revamped to focus on curriculum/instructional strategies that build Math skills (i.e., measurement, integrated algebra, quadratic equations, and AIMS test-taking).

		IEP

Reading syllabi

Math syllabi

Brigance data

WRAT-4 data

AIMS/Stanford data

Student grades

Reading Endorsement Documentation



















Area III: Assessment

		Assessment System



		1. What types of assessments does the Charter Holder use?  



		The assessments that the charter holder utilizes are the WRAT 4, Brigance, AIMS, Stanford 10, and AzMerit (Spring 2015) .



Students are assessed immediately after enrollment with the Brigance (Comprehensive Test of Basic Skills and the WRAT-4 (Wide Achievement Test 4).  Through the use of these assessments the school can evaluate a student’s ability to read, spell, comprehend sentences, and computation of Mathematical problems at enrollment. 

		Brigance, spreadsheet of all scores over the last two years.

WRAT-4 spreadsheet of all scores over the last two years.

AIMS/Stanford 10 data











		2. What was the process for designing or selecting the assessment system? 



		The process for designing and selecting the assessment system was chosen by a team of teachers/administration and approved by the Board of Directors.

The summative assessments were provided to us by ADE.

The formative assessments were researched and selected due to their ability to provide the teachers with a grade score which determines how far behind a student maybe in the area of Math and Reading.  The two assessments are utilized for placement with all students.

		Team Meeting minutes

Board minutes

ADE Mandate

AIMS/Stanford 10

Brigance

WRAT-4









		3. How is the assessment system aligned to the curriculum and instructional methodology? 



		The Reading and Math curricula are aligned to ACCR standards.  The AIMS/Stanford 10/AzMerit are aligned with ACCR standards.

At the beginning of the year, we create an assessment plan to determine what students know and are able to do.  It is paired with the curricula to ensure alignment.

Principal and teachers meet weekly to discuss the alignment of curricula and instructional practice.

During common planning time, teachers consider what students know and develop formative assessments and rubrics to demonstrate skill proficiency.

		Reading Course Syllabi

Math Course Syllabi

Minutes from meetings

ACCR Standards

Instructional Practice Evidence Guide for Common Core Standards.











		4. What intervals are used to assess student progress? How does the assessment plan include data collection from multiple assessments, such as formative and summative assessments and common/benchmark assessments? 



		The intervals utilized to assess student progress are:

1. Formative: After enrollment, students are given the Brigance and the WRAT-4 to determine learning strengths/gaps in Reading and Math and the appropriate placement for content classes. 

2.Summative: Students are administered AIMS/Stanford10/AzMerit(2015) on mandated dates by ADE each academic year.

Data is collected from the above sources and analyzed by administration/teachers.   Data analysis is used by teachers and staff to make curricula/instructional decisions.  Data results are also examined by principal and Board of Directors to determine program progress and professional development needs.

		Board Meeting

Professional Development

Brigance

WRAT-4

AIMS

Stanford 10









		Analyzing Assessment Data



		5. How does the assessment system provide for analysis of assessment data? What intervals are used to analyze assessment data?  



		Before the beginning of school, administration, teacher and staff meet to analyze AIMS and Stanford 10 data.  Based upon the results of the review of data, new courses have been added to meet the student’s proficiency gaps in Reading and Math.

Upon enrollment, evaluation of the student’s academic proficiency is completed with the administration of the WRAT-4 and Brigance.  Based on that data, the students are enrolled in appropriate performance level courses.

The assessment data is analyzed during weekly meetings with administrators, teachers and staff to discuss each week’s progress and any areas of need.  These meetings can be a brief review of a particular student’s progress, or may take the form of a particular students’ progress, or may take the form of an intensive, comprehensive Child Family Team meeting.  The outcome of the meetings can be development of new strategies, placement in a lower level course, and/or recommendations for tutoring.

		Brigance results

WRAT-4 results

AIMS/Stanford10 results

Weekly meeting minutes













		6. How is the analysis used to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness? 



		Analysis of instruction and curriculum is used to improve student achievement. During the 2013-2014 academic year, Brigance test scores showed that 78% of students have a grade equivalency of 5th grade or below in Math calculation and problem-solving.   

In Fall 2014, tests results show students scoring at the 6.8 grade level in reading comprehension;  6.8 grade level in vocabulary;  and 5.4 grade level in Problem-Solving in Math. In response to the low scores, we added courses in the English Department to assist students who are weak in grammar, structure, vocabulary and reading comprehension.  In the Math Department, we created three new classes to assist students with problem-solving and basic calculation skills.

		Brigance results

New Reading course syllabi

New Math course syllabi







		7. How is the analysis used to adjust curriculum and instruction in a timely manner? What intervals are used to adjust curriculum and instruction?



		The analysis sheds light upon when to add or delete courses based upon need. Teachers add activities and curricula changes to address needs and gaps resulting from analysis of student performance data.

Adjustment are made to best meet the needs of the struggling students.  Intervals of adjusting curriculum can be immediate or at grade report time.

Principal, teachers, and staff meet weekly to adjust curriculum and instruction if necessary.

		Weekly meeting minutes

New course syllabi

Lesson Plans









		Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups (Address all relevant measures)



		8. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students? 



		The assessment system is adapted to provide placement assessment for all students to determine academic levels in Reading and Math.

All students in the bottom 25th quartile are administered the AIMS/Stanford 10 assessment unless designated otherwise in the IEP.

Students in the bottom 25th quartile may receive extra tutoring in Reading and/or Math or work with the Reading Specialist.

Students in the bottom 25th quartile may be placed in skill development courses in Reading and/or Math.

Students in the bottom 25th quartile may be selected for classes which have low student/teacher ratio.

		Brigance

WRAT-4

AIMS/Stanford 10/Az Merit (2015)

Tutoring sign-in sheets

Class rosters

IEP









		9. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?  



		Spring, 2013 Reading

Spring, 2014 Reading, Math

In each of these sections our school received a “NR” rating on the Dashboard.  Nevertheless, our school requires all students to complete the PHLOTE.  Students who self-qualify will be administered the ELL assessment (AZELLA) to determine if students qualify for the program.  Students who qualify would then receive ELL services.

All ELL students (unless stipulated differently in IEP) must take the AIMS/Stanford 10/AzMerit (2015) in English per Arizona Department of Education rules and regulations.

All ELL students must take the Brigance and WRAT-4 in English.

ELL students may be placed in tutoring for Math and/or Reading or work with the Reading Specialist. 

ELL students may be placed in skill development courses to improve oral and written language.

ELL students may be placed in classes which have a low student/teacher ratio.

		Brigance results

WRAT-4 results

Class rosters

AIMS/Stanford 10/Az Merit (2015)

Tutoring sign-in sheets

IEP

AZELLA









		10. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students? 



		All students are administered the AIMS/Stanford 10/AzMerit (2015) assessment unless designated otherwise in the IEP.

Students in the free/reduced lunch program may receive extra tutoring in Reading and/or Math.

Students in free/reduced lunch program may be placed in skill development courses in Reading and/or Math.

Students in the free/reduced lunch program may be selected for classes which have low student/

teacher ratios.

Students in the free/reduced lunch program may receive extra services through our Title One targeted assistance program for Reading and/or Math.

		Brigance results

WRAT-4 results

Class rosters

AIMS/Stanford 10/Az Merit (2015)

Tutoring sign-in sheets

IEP







		11. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of students with disabilities?



		All students with disabilities are administered the AIMS/Stanford 10 assessment unless designated otherwise in the IEP.

Students with disabilities may receive extra tutoring in Reading and/or Math.

Students with disabilities may be placed in skill development courses in Reading and/or Math.

Students with disabilities may be selected for classes which have low student/teacher ratio.

Students with identified disabilities will qualify for services from our full-time SPED teacher.

		Brigance results

WRAT-4 results

Class rosters

AIMS/Stanford 10/Az Merit (2015)

Tutoring sign-in sheets

IEP







Area IV: Monitoring Instruction

		Monitoring the Integration of Standards



		1. What is the Charter Holder’s process for monitoring the integration of standards into classroom instruction? How does the Charter Holder monitor whether or not instructional staff implements an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity? 



		In terms of monitoring the integration and implementation of ACCR standards, the Board of Directors charges the principal with the following:

*Communicate goals for Student Achievement with teachers and staff.

*Examine student achievement on a regular basis during the school year.

*Ensure teachers analyze formative assessment information and monitor student performance regarding curriculum standards.

*Provide professional development that assist teachers and paraprofessionals in analyzing data and the use of effective teaching strategies.

*Use walk-throughs to monitoring teacher instruction and student learning. 

*Monitor lesson plan development.

*Evaluate teacher performance annually.

		Meeting sign-in sheets

Student data results

Lesson plans

Walk-throughs

Evaluations













		2. How does the Charter Holder monitor the effectiveness of standards-based instruction throughout the year?



		1. Principal sets the tone for the administration of assessments and use of assessment data in the school. Brigance, WRAT-4, AIMS/Stanford 10 assessments results are considered an integral part of the teaching-learning process.

2. In teachers meetings, teacher collaborative planning sessions, and individual teacher meetings, the principal ensures that student performance formative and summative data are continually studied and analyzed.

3. Principal frequently observes teachers to monitor instructional practice and curriculum delivery. Teachers receive constant feedback.

4. Principal examines lesson plans to determine that course content is aligned with ACCR standards.

		Meeting sign-in sheets

Observations

Lesson plans

Assessments

Professional Development



		Evaluating Instructional Practices



		3. What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating instructional practices? How does this process evaluate the quality of instruction? 



		The principal examines lesson plans and observes teacher practice to determine what instructional practices are being implemented and how effective they are with our students.  The principal and teaching staff consider the following while planning/evaluating:

• Relevance: Are the instructional strategies matching the learning styles of the students in the class? 

• Efficiency: Is the course content, assessment, and instruction delivered at an appropriate pace for students?

• Effectiveness: What are the obstacles or achievements encountered during the implementation?

• Impact: What changes are made when analyzing the student data from formative/

summative assessments?

The principal and teaching staff discuss these questions and answers in weekly teachers meetings.

		Lesson plans

Observation

Meeting sign-in sheets











		4. How does this process identify individual strengths, weaknesses, and needs?  



		This process identifies strengths, weaknesses, and needs as principal and teacher consider the following:

-Evaluation of content pacing.

- Review of student performance data collected and recorded to make needed adjustments in instruction.

- Observation of student behavior.

- Teachers gather on-going assessment-elicited evidence that they can use to make any necessary adjustments in their teaching.

		Teacher notes

Assessments

Lesson Plans

Observations

Pacing guide





		



		5. How does the Charter Holder provide feedback on strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs based on the evaluation of instructional practices?  



		Principal meets with teacher to discuss lesson plan, content pacing, walk-throughs, observations, and student progress.  An action plan is developed to assist teacher with making adjustments to instruction/curricula for the purpose of meeting student’s academic needs.

Professional development provides a forum through which feedback is communicated regarding instructional practice for teachers.

		Observation notes

Walk-through notes

Student data results

Lesson plans

Professional Development



		6. How does the Charter Holder analyze this information? What does the data about quality of instruction tell the Charter Holder? What has the Charter Holder done in response? 



		Analysis of this information occurs with the collaboration of teachers, administration, and staff.  Throughout the year, teachers meet during their collaborative time to analyze; 1.) Student achievement; 2.) Effective instructional strategies; and 3.) Content pacing. In addition, the principal meets weekly with the teachers/staff to review current instructional practices to determine whether the practices have been used with fidelity and student achievement has been positively impacted.

Meanwhile, on-going professional development is designed to present research-based instructional methods which can be implemented for ELL, SPED, F/R lunch, and non-proficient students. 

		Meeting sign-in sheets

Professional Development







		Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups(Address all relevant measures)



		7. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students? 



		At the beginning of the year, teachers, staff, and principal meet to assess student data, course offerings, and credits earned by students to prepare schedules for student in the bottom 25th quartile. 

During weekly meetings, administration, teachers, and staff monitor the proficiency level of students in the bottom 25% quartile by examining test scores, course grades, and attendance.

Principal evaluates weekly lesson plans to differentiated instruction is identified for the bottom 25th quartile students.  Feedback is provided to teachers.

Teachers discuss successful instructional strategies used with the bottom 25th quartile students during their common planning time.

		Meeting minutes

Lesson plans

AIMS/Stanford 10 results

Brigance and WRAT-4 results







		8. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?



		Spring, 2013 Reading

Spring, 2014 Reading, Math

In each of these sections our school received a “NR” rating on the dashboard.  Nevertheless, our school requires all students to complete the PHLOTE.  Students who self-qualify will be administered the ELL assessment (AZELLA) to determine if students qualify for the program.  Students who qualify would then receive ELL services.

At the beginning of the year, teachers, staff, and principal meet to assess student data, course offerings, and credits earned by students to prepare schedules for ELL students. 

During weekly meetings, administration, teachers, and staff monitor the proficiency level of ELL students by examining test scores, course grades, and attendance.

Principal evaluates weekly lesson plans to ensure differentiated instruction is identified for ELL students.  Feedback is provided to teachers.

Teachers discuss successful instructional strategies used with ELL students during their common planning time.

On-going monitoring of development of language and content skills/knowledge happens as the student progresses through course work. Assessments of student work are used to determine appropriate instructional approaches, adaptations, materials, and course pacing.

		Meeting minutes

Lesson plans

AZELLA results

AIMS/Stanford 10 results

Brigance and WRAT-4 results







		9. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?



		At the beginning of the year, teachers, staff, and principal meet to assess student data, course offerings, and credits earned by students to prepare schedules for students who qualify for free/reduced lunch.

During weekly meetings, administration, teachers, and staff monitor the proficiency level for students who qualify for free/reduced lunch by examining test scores, course grades, and attendance.

Principal evaluates weekly lesson plans to confirm differentiated instruction is identified for students who qualify for free/reduced lunch.  Feedback is provided to teachers.

Title 1 programming provides Reading specialists. Students who qualify for free/reduced lunch are screened for the program.  The specialists practice instructional strategies which target Reading deficiencies.   Research-based methods of remediation provides Instruction support for students to increase vocabulary and comprehension skills.

Teachers discuss successful instructional strategies used with for students who qualify for free/reduced lunch during their common planning time.

		Meeting minutes

Lesson plans

AIMS/Stanford 10 results

Brigance and WRAT-4 results

Reading Specialists time and effort logs







		10. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of students with disabilities?



		At the beginning of the year, teachers, staff, and principal meet to review student data, course offerings, and credits earned by students to prepare schedules for students with disabilities.

During weekly meetings, administration, teachers, and staff monitor the proficiency level for students with disabilities by examining test scores, course grades, and attendance.

The full-time special education teachers provides instruction for students with disabilities.  The teacher coordinates lesson planning, content delivery, pacing, and effective instructional strategies with the regular classroom teacher.

Principal evaluates weekly lesson plans to confirm differentiated instruction is identified for students with disabilities.  Feedback is provided to teachers.

Teachers discuss successful instructional strategies used for students with disabilities during their common planning time.

		Meeting minutes

Lesson plans

AIMS/Stanford 10 results

Brigance and WRAT-4 results

IEP







Area V: Professional Development

		Professional Development System



		1. What is the Charter Holder’s professional development plan?  



		Tucson Preparatory School’s professional development plan is one that focuses on professional learning, educator effectiveness, and student progress.  The plan has both short and long term goals foster academic growth for students and professional growth for teachers.  It incorporates teacher certification, subject certification, university/college courses, and mandatory staff meetings.  

The plan was aligned with the National Staff Development Council (NSDC) Standards for Staff Development. 

Reading literacy development goals are being met by sending selected teachers to obtain Reading Specialist endorsement certifications and follow up with the appropriate college based classes.  What they learn will be disseminated to all instructors through our professional development community.  Techniques that are being shared with staff and teachers will help the school progress to meet the ACCR Standards.

Math literacy is being addressed by teacher certification and continuing education.  One Math teacher just received his Arizona certification and another teacher is continuing his Math education at the University of Arizona.  Both teachers share information they learn and ultimately help students progress.

Student homelessness is a large issue that affects grades and student progress. 

Two members of our staff continually receive professional development on homelessness issues and update staff regularly and with methods to help our student body.

Administrative staff attends Student Information System Trainings for the purpose of learning new methods of data mining.

		Professional Development plan and sign-in sheets

Reading Specialist Endorsement Documents

Math Certification Documents

Homelessness Training Document

SIS Training Document

NSDC Standards











		2. How was the professional development plan developed? 



		The professional development plan was created to meet the immediate and long term needs of the teachers as they promote student achievement.  In order to stay aligned with the ACCR Standards and testing requirements, new professional development opportunities were created. New goals had to be set for both teachers and staff.

Student academic needs and teacher professional needs were analyzed to determine the best course of professional development.

Teachers and staff assessed their own needs and capabilities, then a plan was developed that allowed everyone to accomplish their goals in a timely and useful manner.

Reading endorsement certification and training became the goal for two of our teachers.

Teacher Math certification became a goal for two teachers.  As a result, the bulk of the teaching staff began immediate professional development related to the new goals.

Professional development relating to student homelessness issues and student information system updates and changes were scheduled.

		Professional Development Plan

Needs Assessment

Certification Documents

Professional Development Agendas











		3. How is the professional development plan aligned with instructional staff learning needs? 



		The Professional Development Plan is directly aligned with the needs of instructional staff. All staff members undergo professional development that will help them progress in their career.  The decision of appropriate professional development is a collaborative effort.  All administrative and teaching staff meet to understand the specific needs of the students and how training will progress student learning and be relevant to a teachers set of skills.

After the constructive dialogue, a set of goals is established.  The goals guide the design of the professional development from which teachers can grow.  Professional development may encompass certifications, seminars, or college classes.  These goals will be incorporated into the professional development plan.  

		Professional Development Plan

Needs Assessment

Certification Documents

Professional Development Agendas















		4. How does this professional development plan address areas of high importance?  



		Math and Reading content was recognized as the major areas of student need identified by the staff.  In light of these large academic gaps in student learning, training is provided to give teachers skills to adapt curriculum, use effective instructional strategies, and pace content for mastery.

Other areas of importance follow.

*Classroom management strategies

*Research-based instructional strategies that support student achievement. 

*Support to teachers working with students in specific areas of exceptionality

*Understanding student data (formative and summative).

*Applying data to make adjustments to Reading/Math curricula, assessment, and instruction.

*Using students work to guide instruction.

*Intervention strategies to improve Reading/

Math performance.

		Professional Development Plan

Professional Development Agendas







		Supporting High Quality Implementation



		5. How does the Charter Holder support high quality implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions?   



		All staff members that attend professional development training off campus are required to disseminate information to all staff members. Discussion focuses on how to implement the new knowledge into the classroom.    Results of data analysis may call for changes to be made in course development, teaching methodology, assessments, student placement, and/or instructional strategies.

		Professional Development Plan

Professional Development Agenda and sign-in sheets











		6. How does the Charter Holder provide the resources that are necessary for high quality implementation?



		Within our budget, we set aside resources for professional development and adhere to the schedule for trainings.

After the Professional Development process is completed, a list of needs and wants is developed and ranked from high to low.

When teachers wish to attend a workshop off campus, efforts make it possible for the person to attend.

In order to provide time for our teachers, we have Tuesdays and Fridays for professional development.

		School Budget

Professional Development Agenda and sign-in sheets

Schedule









		Monitoring Implementation



		7. How does the Charter Holder monitor the implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions? 



		The Principal is in charge of ensuring that strategies learned in professional development sessions are being implemented in the classroom.

The Principal and Assistant Principal check for implementation by:

1.Performing walk-throughs.

2. Observing classroom teaching.

3.Evaluating lesson plans.

4.Evaluating teaching performance.

		Walk-through notes

Observation notes and feedback to teacher

Lesson Plans

Evaluations









		8. How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow-up with instructional staff to support and develop implementation of the strategies learned in professional development?



		The Principal and Assistant Principal are in charge of the academic leadership of the school. They are required to visit each classroom during the week to ensure that Professional Development activities are being implemented into the classroom.

		Observation notes







		Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups (Address all relevant measures)



		9. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of students with proficiency in the bottom 25%/non-proficient students? 



		The Professional Development plan includes topics that are related to low academic functioning of students.  Our alternative population renders the need for intensive training in assisting student to increase performance. Professional development topics address these issues. All staff is mandated to attend Professional Development training.

		Professional Development Plan

Professional Development Agenda and sign-in sheets













		10. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?



		Spring, 2013 Reading

Spring, 2014 Reading, Math

In each of these sections our school received a “NR” rating on the Dashboard.  Nevertheless, our school requires all students to complete the PHLOTE.  Students who self-qualify will be administered the ELL assessment (AZELLA) to determine if students qualify for the program.  Students who qualify would then receive ELL services.

All certified personnel must have completed SEI training (45 hours).  This training provides teachers with instructional tools which will utilized in the classroom.

		SEI Training Certificate







		11. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?



		Our school focuses on early assessment of students experiencing academic problems and provide that data to teachers. The professional development plan provides training for teachers who work with free/reduced lunch students.  The training includes ways to help teachers:

-Focus learning time.

-Set goals for learning.

-Structure learning time.

-Present academic vocabulary.

-Give time to practice new knowledge.

-Give appropriate and authentic feedback to students.

Professional Development is on-going as teachers meet weekly during common planning time and discuss student progress.

		Professional Development Plan

Professional Development Agenda and sign-in sheets













		12. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of students with disabilities?



		We have a full-time special education teacher who attends trainings related to special education, including but not limited to:

Individual Education Programs, Multidisciplinary Evaluation Team, Behavior Management, and Intervention Techniques.

The Principal and Assistant Principal monitor the special education program to ensure compliance with special education rules and regulations, as well as, program modifications for students.

Each year, professional development is presented to the teachers/administration regarding SPED policies, procedures, requirements, and ways to differentiate the curricula for students with special needs.

		Professional Development Plan

Professional Development Agenda and sign-in sheets

SPED Training Certificates



















Area VI: Graduation Rate (if applicable)

		Ensuring Students in Grades 9-12 Graduate On Time



		1. How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow up on student progress toward completing courses to meet graduation requirements?  



		It is the goal of Tucson Preparatory School, as articulated by its Governing Board policies, to enroll and actively engage students who have been cast aside by other schools for a variety of issues, including failure to make timely or satisfactory academic progress toward graduation.

The typical Tucson Preparatory School student is over aged and under credited at the time of first enrollment.  This average student has a transcript that illustrates poor attendance and low achievement in one or more Arizona high schools prior to entering Tucson Prep.  It is commonplace for incoming students to be "categorically unable" to meet graduation timelines without extraordinary efforts or, frequently, not at all.  As an indication of historic patterns, more than 45 percent of Tucson Prep students can be labeled as "super seniors," those who have not met graduation requirements by their intended graduation date.  A high school junior with only two credits, or a "super senior" with ten credits toward graduation are far from unusual occurrences at Tucson Prep.  

The first step in graduation intervention consists of a thorough analysis of past educational performance.  An administrator carefully interviews incoming students and contacts every previously attended school or program to identify high school credits that may have been overlooked or forgotten, including out-of-date Special Education plans.  

The ECAP is a check list of graduation requirements with point-in-time academic progress noted.  It includes test score histories, pertinent student data and student goals, and serves as a master planning document for high school graduation.   An ECAP is created for every incoming student and the plan is reviewed regularly --often monthly -- to identify problems promptly and intervene as needed.  Should a problem be identified, an intervention strategy is developed and set in motion  

As students move toward completing their high school requirements, they are added to a Graduation Watch List.  The watch list shows testing status in each category and shows classes/credits still needed to graduate.  The watch list is used during PLC staff meetings in order to gauge progress and needs of the students on the list.  This also gives teachers information they need to be supportive of students nearing graduation.  The watch list is updated regularly so timely information is available to staff and teachers.

		Governing Board policies

ECAPs 

Graduation Watch List

Meeting notes







		2. How does the Charter Holder identify students that are not successfully progressing through required courses?



		Student progress is monitored on an on-going basis in several complimentary processes:

· Monitored by the teacher in each class; problems reported and discussed in staff meetings.

· Placement tests are administered within days after enrollment.

· Monitored by subgroup in the staff meetings,( i.e., students in SPED, free/reduced lunch program, in the bottom 25%quartile, and ELL).

· Utilizing student management software, administrative staff reviews student progress each time grades and credits are posted, as class schedules are revised and at quarterly intervals. 

Meeting weekly helps teacher in identifying students that are not progressing through their required courses.  This collaboration assists staff in providing remediation/interventions for students who are having a difficult time in class.  Remediation may involve intervention strategies such as tutoring ,class changes, and/or accommodated workloads that will help students achieve competency. 

The assistant principal also monitors credits gained by student body and makes student schedules.  This allows for close scrutiny of students that do gain credit in each of their classes.

As students get closer to completing their high school requirements, they are added to a Graduation Watch List.  The watch list shows AIMS status in each category and shows classes/credits needed to graduate.  The watch list is used during staff meetings in order to determine progress and needs of the students on the list.  This also gives teachers information they need to be supportive of students nearing graduation.  The watch list is updated regularly so timely information is available to staff and teachers.

		Governing Board policies

ECAPs 

Graduation Watch List

Meeting notes









		3. How does the Charter Holder provide additional academic supports to remediate academic problems for struggling students?



		[bookmark: _GoBack]Tucson Preparatory School helps struggling students through tutoring, accommodated workloads, and class changes that will build strong academic foundations.  Summer school is offered for students to take classes toward graduation.

		Tutoring time and effort logs

Skill building classes – syllabi

Summer School sign-in, schedule



		4. What data can the Charter Holder provide to demonstrate that these strategies are effective?



		The effectiveness of our program has increased due to a passing rate in “Academic Persistence”.

-FAY AiMS Median Growth percentile, Bottom 25% quartile Reading data indicates a 50% increase from 2013 to 14.

- FAY AiMS  Improvement for Math data indicates students FFB decreased 5%, and students Approach increased by 5% from 2013 to 14.

- FAY AiMS  Improvement for Reading data indicates students Approach increased by 67% from 2013 to 14.

- FAY AiMS  Subgroup FRL for Reading data indicates an additional 10 students moved from FFB to Approach from 2013 to 14.

- FAY AiMS  subgroup disabilities Reading data indicates  2 students moved to Approach and 1 student moved to Meets from 2013 to 14.

- High School graduation rate from 2013 to 14 when from 9% to 30%.

		Dashboard

Student AIMS data

Credits for Graduation











Area VII: Academic Persistence (if applicable)

		System for Keeping Students Motivated and Engaged in School



		1. How does the Charter Holder identify students who are at risk of dropping out or failing?   



		Answer (suggested word count is 400 words):

		List documents that serve as evidence of implementation of this process:











		2. What strategies does the Charter Holder utilize to address student challenges to completing/continuing their education?



		Answer (suggested word count is 400 words):

		List documents that serve as evidence of implementation of this process:











		3. How does the Charter Holder evaluate these strategies to determine effectiveness?



		Answer (suggested word count is 400 words):

		List documents that serve as evidence of implementation of this process:



















2013	mSGP -Math Only	23	2014	mSGP -Math Only	19	mSGP

2013	mSGP - Read Only	20	2014	mSGP - Read Only	12	mSGP

2013	Graduation Rate	3	2014	Graduation Rate	3	Math - Bottom 25%

2013	Graduation Rate	4	2014	Graduation Rate	8	Reading - Bottom 25%

FFB	2013	2014	36	34	A	2013	2014	5	8	M	2013	2014	4	4	Percentage of Students

FFB	2013	2014	2	2	A	2013	2014	15	25	M	2013	2014	11	9	Percent of Students

2013	Math Only	8.8888888888888906E-2	2014	Math Only	8.695652173913046E-2	Math Passing Percent

2013	Read Only	0.3928571428571429	2014	Read Only	0.25	Reading Passing Percentage

FFB	2013	2014	0	0	A	2013	2014	0	0	M	2013	2014	0	0	Math 

Number of  ELL Students

FFB	2013	2014	0	0	A	2013	2014	0	0	M	2013	2014	0	0	Reading 

Number of  ELL Students

FFB	2013	2014	36	34	A	2013	2014	5	8	M	2013	2014	4	4	Math

Number of FRL  Students

FFB	2013	2014	2	2	A	2013	2014	15	25	M	2013	2014	11	9	Reading 

Number of FRL Students

FFB	2013	2014	5	6	A	2013	2014	0	0	M	2013	2014	0	0	Math 

Number of  SPED Students

FFB	2013	2014	0	1	A	2013	2014	3	5	M	2013	2014	1	2	Reading 

Number of  SPED Students

2013	Graduation Rate	9.0000000000000011E-2	2014	Graduation Rate	0.30000000000000004	Graduation Rate
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Demonstration of Sufficient Progress

DSP Evaluation

Charter Holder Name: Tucson Preparatory School
School (s): Tucson Preparatory School
Site Visit Date: March 23, 2015
Purpose of Demonstration of Sufficient Progress:
Annual Monitoring
L1 Interval Review
L1 Renewal
U] Failing School
[ Expansion Request
Academic Dashboard Year:
FY2013
FY2014

Evaluation Overview:
The following serves as an evaluation of the Demonstration of Sufficient Progress process and includes:

e Anoverall rating for each area of Curriculum, Monitoring Instruction, Professional Development, Assessment, and Data, and Graduation Rate.
o Whether questions were sufficiently answered at the site visit
o Whether documents provided by the Charter Holder serve as sufficient evidence of implementation of described processes






School Name: Tucson Preparatory School

Area |I: Data

Data for All Applicable Measures and Subgroups

1. What year-over-year comparative data demonstrates improved academic performance? Describe and provide data for each measure that
does not meet the Board’s standards in the relevant Academic Dashboards. Clearly label all data to demonstrate which measure(s) it

addresses.
. Insufficient Data Does Data Does Not
Measure b D.ata Data Required Comparaflve Comparative Demonstrate Demonstrate
AR pataliicyesd Data Provided | Improvement Improvement
1a. Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) — Math O O O
1a. Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) — Reading O O O
1b. Improvement — Math O Ol O
1b. Improvement — Reading OJ | O
2a. Percent Passing — Math OJ | O
2a. Percent Passing — Reading OJ | O
2b. Subgroup, ELL — Math OJ
2b. Subgroup, ELL — Reading Ol
2b. Subgroup, FRL — Math O ] U
2b. Subgroup, FRL — Reading O ] U
2b. Subgroup, students with disabilities — Math O Ol Ol
2b. Subgroup, students with disabilities — Reading O O O
4a. High School Graduation Rate O O O

4b. Academic Persistence

X

O






DATA OVERALL RATING

Evaluation of DSP Report

Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below
[l ]

The area of Data is evaluated as Falls Far Below. The Charter Holder failed to provide data and analysis generated from valid and reliable assessment
sources, sufficient comparative data and analysis for one or more required measures and has provided data that demonstrates comparatively declining
academic performance year-over-year for the two most recent school years for one or more of the required measures.

Data provided does not demonstrate improved academic outcomes for the following required measures:

1a. Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) — Math
la. Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) — Reading
1b. Improvement — Math

1b. Improvement — Reading

2a. Percent Passing — Math

2a. Percent Passing — Reading

2b. Subgroup, FRL — Math

2b. Subgroup, FRL — Reading

2b. Subgroup, students with disabilities — Math

2b. Subgroup, students with disabilities — Reading
4a. High School Graduation Rate






Area ll: Curriculum

Evaluating Curriculum

1. What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating curriculum? How does the Charter Holder evaluate how effectively the curriculum enables

students to meet the standards?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

2. How does the Charter Holder identify gaps in the curriculum?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

Adopting/Revising Curriculum

3. What is the Charter Holder’s process for adopting or revising curriculum based on its evaluation processes?

] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

4. Who is involved in the process for adopting or revising curriculum?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

5. When adopting curriculum, how does the Charter Holder evaluate curriculum options to determine which curriculum to adopt?

(] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.






Implementin

g Curriculum

6. What is the Charter Holder’s process for ensuring consistent implementation of the curriculum across the school(s) operated by the Charter Holder?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

7. What tools exist that identify what must be taught and when it must be delivered? How does the Charter Holder ensure that all grade-level standards

are covered within the academic year?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

8. What is the expectation for consistent use of these tools? How are these expectations communicated?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

9. What evidence is there to demonstrate usage of these tools in the classroom and alignment with instruction?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as

insufficient.

Alignment o

f Curriculum

10. How does the Charter Holder know the curriculum is aligned to standards?

(] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.






Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

11. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the

needs of non-proficient students?

] Not a

pplicable

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

12. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the

needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?

Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

13. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the

needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[J Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

14. How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum addresses the

needs of students with disabilities?

1 Nota

pplicable

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[J Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.






CURRICULUM OVERALL RATING

DSP Report Evaluation

Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below
O X O

The area of Curriculum is evaluated as Does Not Meet. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has consistently
implemented a limited curriculum approach. At the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder sufficiently demonstrated the following components of these required
elements:

e addressing the curriculum needs of relevant subgroup populations

However, at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder failed to sufficiently demonstrate the following components of these required elements:

e evaluating curriculum, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating curriculum? How does the Charter Holder evaluate how effectively the curriculum enables
students to meet the standards?
o How does the Charter Holder identify gaps in the curriculum?

e adopting/revising curriculum, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o What is the Charter Holder’s process for adopting or revising curriculum based on its evaluation processes?
o Who is involved in the process for adopting or revising curriculum?
o When adopting curriculum, how does the Charter Holder evaluate curriculum options to determine which curriculum to adopt?

e implementing curriculum, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o What is the Charter Holder’s process for ensuring consistent implementation of the curriculum across the school(s) operated by the Charter Holder?
o What tools exist that identify what must be taught and when it must be delivered? How does the Charter Holder ensure that all grade-level
standards are covered within the academic year?
o What is the expectation for consistent use of these tools? How are these expectations communicated?
o What evidence is there to demonstrate usage of these tools in the classroom and alignment with instruction?

e ensuring curriculum is aligned with Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to
address:
o How does the Charter Holder know the curriculum is aligned to standards?






Area lll: Assessment

Assessme

nt System

1. What types of assessments does the Charter Holder use?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

2. What was the process for designing or selecting the assessment system?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

3. How is the assessment system aligned to the curriculum and instructional methodology?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

4. What intervals are used to assess student progress? How does the asse

ssment plan include data collection from multiple assessments, such as

formative and summative assessments and common/benchmark assessments?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as

insufficient.

Analyzing Ass

essment Data

5. How does the assessment system provide for analysis of assessment data? What intervals are used to analyze assessment data?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

6. How is the analysis used to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness?

(] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

7. How is the analysis used to adjust curriculum and instruction in a timely manner? What intervals are used to adjust curriculum and instruction?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

State
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Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

8. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of non-proficient students?

] Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

9. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?

Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

10. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[J Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

11. How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of students with disabilities?

1 Nota

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.






ASSESSMENT OVERALL RATING

DSP Report Evaluation

Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below
O O X

The area of Assessment is evaluated as Falls Far Below. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has
implemented no efforts or fragmented, ad hoc efforts to assess student performance on expectations for student learning, and to evaluate and adjust
curriculum and instruction based on analysis of student assessment data. The efforts lack intentionality and/or prior planning, and are not consistently
implemented.

At the DSP site visit the Charter Holder failed to sufficiently demonstrate the following components of these required elements:

e assessing student performance based on clearly defined performance measures aligned with the curriculum and instructional methodology using
data collection from multiple assessments, such as formative and summative assessments, and common/benchmark assessments, because the
Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:

o What was the process for designing or selecting the assessment system?

o How is the assessment system aligned to the curriculum and instructional methodology?

o What intervals are used to assess student progress? How does the assessment plan include data collection from multiple assessments, such
as formative and summative assessments and common/benchmark assessments?

e analyzing assessment data to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to
address:

o How does the assessment system provide for analysis of assessment data? What intervals are used to analyze assessment data?
o How is the analysis used to evaluate instructional and curricular effectiveness?
e adjusting curriculum and instruction in a timely manner based on assessment results, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence

to address:
o How is the analysis used to adjust curriculum and instruction in a timely manner? What intervals are used to adjust curriculum and
instruction?

e addressing the assessment needs of relevant subgroup populations, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of non-proficient students?
o How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment needs of students with disabilities?






Area IV: Monitoring Instruction

Monitoring the Integration of Standards

1. What is the Charter Holder’s process for monitoring the integration of standards into classroom instruction? How does the Charter Holder monitor
whether or not instructional staff implements an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

2. How does the Charter Holder monitor the effectiveness of standards-based instruction throughout the year?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

Evaluating Instructional Practices

3. What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating the instructional practices? How does this process evaluate the quality of instruction?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[J Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

4. How does this process identify individual strengths, weaknesses, and needs?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

Providing Analysis and Feedback to Further Develop Instructional Quality

5. How does the Charter Holder provide feedback on strengths, weaknesses, and learning needs based on the evaluation of instructional practices?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

6. How does this Charter Holder analyze this information? What does the data about quality of instruction tell the Charter Holder? What has the

Charter Holder done in response?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

L] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.
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Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

7. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of non-proficient students?

] Not applicable

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

8. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meetin

g the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?

Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

9. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meetin

g the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

Not a

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[J Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as

insufficient.

10. How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meetin

g the needs of students with disabilities?

1 Nota

pplicable

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.
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MONITORING INSTRUCTION OVERALL RATING

DSP Report Evaluation

Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below
O X O

The area of Monitoring Instruction is evaluated as Does Not Meet. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder
has consistently implemented a limited instructional monitoring approach.

At the DSP site visit the Charter Holder sufficiently demonstrated the following components of these required elements:
e evaluating instructional practices
e providing analysis and feedback to further develop instructional quality and standards integration

However, at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has failed to sufficiently demonstrate the following components of these required elements:

e monitoring the integration of Arizona’s College and Career Ready Standards into instruction, because the Charter Holder did not provide
sufficient evidence to address:

o What is the Charter Holder’s process for monitoring the integration of standards into classroom instruction? How does the Charter
Holder monitor whether or not instructional staff implements an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity?

o How does the Charter Holder monitor the effectiveness of standards-based instruction throughout the year?

e evaluating instructional practices targeted to address the needs of relevant subgroup populations, because the Charter Holder did not provide
sufficient evidence to address:

o How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is meeting the needs of students with disabilities?

13





Area IV: Professional Development

Professional Development System

1. What is the Charter Holder’s professional development plan?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

2. How was the professional development plan developed?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

3. How is the professional development plan aligned with instructional staff learning needs?

[J Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

4. How does this plan address areas of high importance?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

Supporting High Quality Implementation

5. How does the Charter Holder support high quality implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

6. How does the Charter Holder provide the resources that are necessary

for high quality implementation?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

Monitoring Implementation

7. How does the Charter Holder monitor the implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions?

[] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

State
é@s“ﬁ 006

14






8. How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow-up with instructional staff to support and develop implementation of the strategies learned in

professional development?

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

9. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of non-

proficient students?

] Not applicable

[1 Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

10. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of English

Language Learners (ELLs)?

Not applicable

] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

11. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of Free and

Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

Not applicable

(] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

12. How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs of students

with disabilities?

] Not applicable

L] Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERALL RATING

DSP Report Evaluation

Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below
O O X

The area of Professional Development is evaluated as Falls Far Below. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter
Holder has implemented no efforts or fragmented, ad hoc efforts to provide professional development that is aligned with instructional staff learning
needs, focuses on areas of high importance, addresses the needs of relevant subgroup populations, and supports high quality implementation; and

monitoring follow-up to support and develop implementation of the strategies learned. The efforts lack intentionality and/or prior planning, and are not
consistently implemented.

At the DSP site visit the Charter Holder failed to sufficiently demonstrate the following components of these required elements:

e Providing professional development that is aligned with instructional staff learning needs and focuses on areas of high importance, because the
Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o What is the Charter Holder’s professional development plan?
o How was the professional development plan developed?
o How is the professional development plan aligned with instructional staff learning needs?
o How does this plan address areas of high importance?
e supporting high quality implementation of the strategies learned in professional development, because the Charter Holder did not provide
sufficient evidence to address:
o How does the Charter Holder support high quality implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions?
o How does the Charter Holder provide the resources that are necessary for high quality implementation?
e monitoring and providing follow-up to support and develop implementation of the strategies learned in professional development, because the
Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o How does the Charter Holder monitor the implementation of the strategies learned in professional development sessions?
o How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow-up with instructional staff to support and develop implementation of the strategies
learned in professional development?

e Providing professional development that addresses the needs of relevant subgroup populations, because the Charter Holder did not provide
sufficient evidence to address:

o How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs
of non-proficient students?

o How does the professional development plan ensure that instructional staff receives the type of development required to meet the needs
of students with disabilities?
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Area VI: Graduation Rate

Ensuring Students in Grades 9-12 Graduate On Time

1. How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow up on student progress toward completing courses to meet graduation requirements?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[] Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

2. How does the Charter Holder identify students that are not successfully progressing through required courses?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[1 Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

3. How does the Charter Holder provide additional academic supports to remediate academic problems for struggling students?

Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

[J Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

4. What data can the Charter Holder provide to demonstrate that these strategies are effective?

[J Documents presented serve as detailed evidence of implementation of each
of the relevant described processes, and thus are evaluated as sufficient.

Documents presented do not demonstrate evidence of implementation of
processes to address the required elements, and thus are evaluated as
insufficient.

GRADUATION RATE OVERALL RATING

DSP Report Evaluation

Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below

O X

O

The area of Graduation Rate is evaluated as Does Not Meet. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has
consistently implemented a limited approach to ensure students in grades 9-12 graduate on time.
At the DSP site visit the Charter Holder sufficiently demonstrated the following components of these required elements:
e individual student plans for academic and career success which are monitored, reviewed and updated annually
However, at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder failed to sufficiently demonstrate the following components of these required elements:

e strategies to address early academic difficulty, because the Charter Holder did not provide sufficient evidence to address:
o What data can the Charter Holder provide to demonstrate that these strategies are effective?
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Evaluation Summary

Area

Evaluation of DSP

Meets

Does Not Meet

Falls Far Below

Data

Curriculum

Assessment

Monitoring Instruction

Professional Development

Graduation Rate

OgiojOo|ojb

X OXOX| O

OXIOXOX
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AGENDA ITEM: Academic Performance Reviews — DSP Demonstrating Fragmented Systems

l. Issue

Tucson Preparatory School, a non-profit organization that operates Tucson Preparatory School, failed to
demonstrate sufficient progress toward the Board’s Academic Performance Expectations and is not in
compliance with its charter.

Background Information

A.R.S. § 15-183.R requires the Board to ground its action in evidence of the charter holder’s
performance in accordance with the Performance Framework, which includes the Academic
Performance Expectations of the charter school and the measurement of sufficient progress toward the
Academic Performance Expectations. The Board’s Academic Performance Framework and Guidance
document includes an Academic Intervention Schedule that requires the submission of required
documents when the charter holder fails to meet the Board’s academic expectations.

Charter holders that failed to meet the Board’s academic performance standards based on FY2014
performance data and who operate one or more schools that were assigned a FY2014 letter grade of D
as reported by the Arizona Department of Education were required to submit a Demonstration of
Sufficient Progress (DSP) on January 7, 2015 and complete a DSP site visit. A DSP is used by the Board to
determine whether a charter holder that fails to meet the Board’s academic expectations has
demonstrated sufficient progress toward the Academic Performance Expectations. Through the DSP
Report and site visit, Tucson Preparatory School has failed to demonstrate it is making sufficient
progress toward meeting the Board’s the Academic Performance Expectations.

A.R.S. § 15-183.1.3 states, in part, that the Board may revoke a charter at any time if the charter school
fails to meet or make sufficient progress toward the Academic Performance Expectations set forth in the
performance framework.

| II. Performance Summary

Area Acceptable Not Acceptable
Academic Framework O
Financial Framework O
Overational Framework Not Yet Rated Not Yet Rated
P See Section VIII See Section VI

Tucson Preparatory School was required to submit a Performance Management Plan with its Charter
Renewal application because Tucson Preparatory School operated by the Charter Holder did not meet
the academic expectations set forth by the Board. Upon reviewing the academic performance in
subsequent years, in accordance with the Board’s academic intervention schedule, the Charter Holder
did not meet the Academic Performance Expectations of the Board as set forth in the Performance
Framework and was required to submit a Demonstration of Sufficient Progress. The Charter Holder was
unable to demonstrate the school is making sufficient progress toward the Board’s expectations through
the submission of the required information or evidence reviewed during an on-site visit. In the most
recent fiscal year for which there is State assessment data available, Tucson Preparatory School received
an overall rating of “Does Not Meet” the Board’s academic standards.
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The Charter Holder did not meet the Financial Performance Expectations of the Board as set forth in the
Performance Framework and was required to submit a Financial Performance Response.

The Charter Holder does have compliance matters, which are described in the “Adherence to the Terms
of the Charter” section of this report.

| 111, Profile

Tucson Preparatory School operates one school, Tucson Preparatory School, serving grades 9-12 in
Tucson. Tucson Preparatory School is designated as an alternative school. The graph below shows the
Charter Holder’s actual 100" day average daily membership (ADM) for fiscal years 2011-2015.

Tucson Preparatory School
Total Charter Enrollment FY2011 -
FY2015
200
180
160 152.56 145.853
M

140

153.988 150.197 146.939
120
100

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

The academic performance of Tucson Preparatory School is represented in the table below. The
Academic Dashboard for the school can be seen in the portfolio: c. Academic Dashboard.

School Name Ovened Current 2012 Overall | 2013 Overall | 2014 Overall
P Grades Served Rating Rating Rating
Tucson Preparatory School 08/17/1998 9-12 58.75/ C-ALT | 49.58 / D-ALT | 42.5/D-ALT

The Charter Holder’s stated mission is “To offer homeless, chronically truant and otherwise troubled
youth who have experience academic/school failure with an individualized course of instruction that not
only focuses upon academic corrections and remediation, but engenders self worth and prepares them
educationally and socially for a productive future.”

The website for Tucson Preparatory School further states that the school was “conceived as an
educational oasis for students that do not fit into a traditional high school setting” and uses “a holistic
approach to education that addresses serious issues that interfere with achievement and success in all
facets of a student’s life”.

The Charter Holder’s program of instruction states that instruction occurs through “an integrated
curriculum by utilizing individualized instruction, self-paced learning and student directed education”.
Additionally the program of instruction states that “each student will have a learning plan based on
entrance testing placement” and that the learning plan “will consist of long-term goals for the entire
school year or a single term”, while “short term goals will be established for each week”.

It is unclear whether the program of instruction as described in the contract aligns with the program as
it is being implemented at the school.The Charter Holder indicated that students are placed into self-
paced courses based on the results of assessment results and that was the sole purpose for the use of
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assessment data at the school. However, no long term or short term goals were evident in a review of
curricular and instructional materials or data. Additionally, the curricular and instructional materials did
not demonstrate the use of self-paced learning and student directed education.

The demographic data for Tucson Preparatory School from the 2014-2015 school year is represented in
the charts below.!

Tucson Preparatory School
2014-2015 Demographic Breakdown

2%

u White

m African American

Hispanic
m American Indian

Multi Racial
65%

The percentage of students who were eligible for Free and Reduced Lunch, classified as English
Language Learners, and classified as students with disabilities in the 2014-2015 school year is
represented in the table below.?

Category Tucson Preparatory School
Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) 97%
English Language Learners (ELLs) *
Special Education 24%

| IV. Additional School Choices

Tucson Preparatory School is located in Tucson near E. Prince Road and N. Stone Avenue. The following
information identifies additional schools within a five mile radius of the school and the academic
performance of those schools.

There are 9 public alternative schools serving grades 9-12 within a five mile radius of Tucson Preparatory
School. The table below provides a breakdown of those schools. Schools are grouped by the A - F letter
grade assigned by the ADE. For each letter grade, the table identifies the number of schools assigned
that letter grade, the number of those schools that are charter schools, the number of the charter
schools that are meeting the Board’s academic performance standard for FY14, and the number of
schools serving a comparable percentage of students (+ 5%) in the identified subgroups.’

! Information provided by the Research and Evaluation Division of the ADE.

% Information provided by the Research and Evaluation Division of the ADE. If the percentage of students in a non-ethnicity-
based demographic group is not reported to ADE, or is 0% or 100%, the percentage for that demographic group is redacted.
® Information provided by the Research and Evaluation Division of the ADE. If the percentage of students in a non-ethnicity-
based demographic group is not reported to ADE, or is 0% or 100%, the percentage for that demographic group is redacted.
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Tucson Preparatory School

*

Letter Within Charter Meets Board’s | Comparable | Comparable | Comparable
Grade 5 miles Schools Standard FRL (+ 5%) ELL (+ 5%) SPED (+ 5%)
B-ALT 3 2 1 0
C-ALT 6 5 2 3

V. Success of the Academic Program \

Since FY2012 the academic performance of Tucson Preparatory School has declined each year. The
Overall Rating points have decreased from 4.25 points below being evaluated as “Meets” the Board’s
academic performance standards in FY2012, to 3.5 points away from being evaluated as “Falls Far
Below” the Board’s academic performance standards in FY2014. For FY2014 the school’s performance
for individual measures shows that 6 out of 11 measures for which data was available are evaluated as
Falls Far Below.

The following is a timeline of activities that have occurred related to the academic performance of
Tucson Preparatory School:

December, 2011: Tucson Preparatory School was notified that the Charter Holder was required to
submit a Performance Management Plan as part of the Charter Renewal application because Tucson
Preparatory School, a school operated by the Charter Holder, did not meet the Academic Expectations
set forth by the Board.

March, 2012: Tucson Preparatory School timely submitted a Performance Management Plan as part of
the Charter Renewal application (portfolio: g. Prior Academic Intervention Submission and Evaluations —
i. PMP).

June, 2012: The Board denied Tucson Preparatory School’s request for charter renewal and voted not to
grant a renewal contract to Tucson Preparatory School based on Tucson Preparatory School’s failure to
provide a learning environment that improved pupil achievement in accordance with the obligations of
its charter contract and A.R.S. § 15-181(A).

August, 2012: The Charter Holder submitted a Notice of Appeal and Request for Hearing.

September, 2012: Based on information provided to the Board at the June 11, 2012 meeting and
additional information provided at the September 10, 2012 meeting, the Board reversed its previous
decision and approved the renewal application for Tucson Preparatory School and granted the renewal
of the charter incorporating the Performance Management Plan into the contract.

February, 2013: The Board released FY2012 Academic Dashboards; Tucson Preparatory School received
an overall rating of “Does Not Meet” the Board’s academic standards and Tucson Preparatory School did
not meet the Board’s Academic Performance Expectations. In accordance with the Board’s academic
framework intervention schedule at that time, the Charter Holder was waived from any specific
monitoring requirements.

September, 2013: The Board released FY2013 Academic Dashboards; Tucson Preparatory School
received an overall rating of “Does Not Meet” the Board’s academic standards. Therefore, Charter
Holder Name did not meet the Board’s Academic Performance Expectations. The Charter Holder was
assigned a DSP as part of an annual reporting (portfolio: g. Prior Academic Intervention Submissions and
Evaluations —ii. FY2014 DSP Submission).
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February, 2014: Following a preliminary evaluation of the FY2014 DSP, Board staff conducted a site visit
on February 14, 2014 to meet with the school’s leadership and review all evidence provided by the
Charter Holder.

September, 2014: The Board released FY202014 Academic Dashboards; Tucson Preparatory School
received an overall rating of “Does Not Meet” the Board’s academic standards. Therefore, Tucson
Preparatory School did not meet the Board’s Academic Performance Expectations.

December, 2014: Board staff completed a final evaluation (portfolio: g. Prior Academic Intervention
Submissions and Evaluations —iii. FY2014 DSP Final Evaluation) of the Charter Holder’s FY2014 DSP and
made the evaluation available to the Charter Holder. In that final evaluation of the FY2014 DSP, Board
staff determined that the Charter Holder’s Demonstration of Sufficient Progress was not acceptable in
all areas. In areas that were evaluated as not acceptable, Board staff provided the Charter Holder with
technical guidance. The findings contained in the final evaluation of the FY2014 DSP were grounded in a
limited evaluation of the school’s evidence.

The Charter Holder was notified of its requirement to submit a FY2015 DSP by January 7, 2015.

\ VI. Demonstration of Sufficient Progress

Tucson Preparatory School timely submitted a FY2015 DSP Report January 7, 2015 (portfolio: f. FY2015
DSP Submission). The Charter Holder was provided a copy of the initial evaluation of the DSP Report
prior to the site visit and informed that areas initially evaluated as not acceptable must be addressed
with additional evidence and documentation at the time of the visit.

Following a preliminary evaluation of the DSP, staff conducted a site visit to meet with the school’s
leadership, as selected by the school, to confirm evidence of the processes described in the DSP and
review additional evidence to be considered in the final evaluation of the Charter Holder’s DSP
submission. The following representatives of Tucson Preparatory School were present at the site visit:

Name Role
Patrick J. Peatrowsky Il Teacher
Joseph Lechuga Principal
Toren Lockermann Special Education Director
Efrain Romero School Board Member

At the site visit, Board staff completed a document inventory for all evidence presented by the Charter
Holder (portfolio: e. DSP Site Visit Inventory Forms). The Charter Holder was provided a copy of the
document inventory at the end of the site visit. Following the site visit, Board staff completed a final
evaluation of the DSP (portfolio: d. FY2015 DSP Final Evaluation). The following is a summary of the final
DSP Evaluation:

Evaluation Summary

Evaluation of DSP
Meets Does Not Meet Falls Far Below

Area

Data
Curriculum

Assessment

Monitoring Instruction

Professional Development

X|O|X || X |

Qigjioo|o|im
OXOXKOX

Graduation Rate
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After considering information in the DSP Report and evidence provided at the time of the site visit, the
Charter Holder did not demonstrate evidence of a sustained improvement plan that includes
implementation of a comprehensive curriculum system, a comprehensive assessment system, a
comprehensive instructional monitoring system, a comprehensive professional development system,
and a system for ensuring students in grades 9-12 graduate on time. Additionally, the data provided by
the Charter Holder failed to show improvement year-over-year for the two most recent school years in
12 out of the 12 measures required by the Board, and demonstrated declines in academic performance

in some of those measures.

Based on the findings summarized above and described below, staff determined that the Charter Holder
did not demonstrate sufficient progress towards meeting the Board’s Academic Performance

Expectations.

Data

The area of Data is evaluated as Falls Far Below. As evidenced at the DSP site visit, the data provided by
the Charter Holder failed to show improvement year-over-year for the two most recent school years in
12 out of the 12 measures required by the Board, and demonstrated declines in academic performance
in some of those measures. For more detailed analysis see Curriculum Inventory (portfolio: e. DSP Site

Visit Inventory Forms, i. Site Visit Inventory — Data).

Comparative

Valid Data Comparative Document
Question I, provided for Data Inventory
Reliable Demonstrates
Data .Current Growth Item
Fiscal Year
Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) - Math Yes No No D1
Student Median Growth Percentile (SGP) - Reading Yes No No D2
Improvement - Math Yes Yes No D3
Improvement - Reading Yes Yes No D4
Percent Passing - Math Yes Yes No D5
Percent Passing - Reading Yes Yes No D6
Subgroup, ELL - Math N/A N/A N/A D7
Subgroup, ELL - Reading N/A N/A N/A D8
Subgroup, FRL - Math Yes Yes No D9
Subgroup, FRL - Reading Yes Yes No D10
Subgroup, students with disabilities - Math Yes Yes No D11
Subgroup, students with disabilities - Reading Yes Yes No D12
High School Graduation Rate Yes No No D13
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Curriculum

The area of Curriculum is evaluated as Does Not Meet. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at the
DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has consistently implemented a limited curriculum approach. At the
DSP site visit, the Charter Holder sufficiently demonstrated some of the components of these required
elements, but failed to sufficiently demonstrate all of the components of the required elements. For
more detailed analysis see Curriculum Inventory (portfolio: e. DSP Site Visit Inventory Forms, ii. Site Visit
Inventory — Curriculum).

. Sufficient Document
Question .
Evidence Inventory Item
Evaluating Curriculum
What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating curriculum?
How does the Charter Holder evaluate how effectively the No Cc1
curriculum enables students to meet the standards?
How does the Charter Holder identify gaps in the curriculum? No C2
Adopting/Revising Curriculum

What is the Charter Holder’s process for adopting or revising No c3
curriculum based on its evaluation processes?
Who is involved in the process for adopting or revising

: ” No c4
curriculum?
When adopting curriculum, how does the Charter Holder evaluate No s

curriculum options to determine which curriculum to adopt?

Implementing Curriculum

What is the Charter Holder’s process for ensuring consistent
implementation of the curriculum across the school(s) operated No c6
by the Charter Holder?

What tools exist that identify what must be taught and when it
must be delivered? How does the Charter Holder ensure that all No c7
grade-level standards are covered within the academic year?

What is the expectation for consistent use of these tools? How

are these expectations communicated? No c8
What evidence is there to demonstrate usage of these tools in the No 9
classroom and alignment with instruction?
Alignment of Curriculum

How does the Charter Holder know the curriculum is aligned to

No C10
standards?

Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum Yes c11
addresses the needs of non-proficient students?
How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum N/A c12
addresses the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?
How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum N/A c13
addresses the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?
How has the Charter Holder ensured that the curriculum Yes c14

addresses the needs of students with disabilities?”
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Assessment

The area of Assessment is evaluated as Falls Far Below. As demonstrated by the evidence provided at
the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has implemented no efforts to assess student performance on
expectations for student learning, and to evaluate and adjust curriculum and instruction based on
analysis of student assessment data. For more detailed analysis see Assessment Inventory (portfolio: e.
DSP Site Visit Inventory Formes, iii. Site Visit Inventory — Assessment).

. Sufficient Document
Question .
Evidence Inventory Item
Assessment System

What types of assessments does the Charter Holder use? Yes Al
What was the process for designing or selecting the assessment No A2
system?
How is the assessment system aligned to the curriculum and No A3
instructional methodology?
What intervals are used to assess student progress? How does the
assessment plan include data collection from multiple No Al
assessments, such as formative and summative assessments and
common/benchmark assessments?

Analyzing Assessment Data
How does the assessment system provide for analysis of
assessment data? What intervals are used to analyze assessment No A5
data?
How is the analysis used to evaluate instructional and curricular No AG

effectiveness?

How is the analysis used to adjust curriculum and instruction in a
timely manner? What intervals are used to adjust curriculum and No A7
instruction?

Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment

needs of non-proficient students? No A8
How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment N/A A9
needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?

How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment N/A A10
needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

How is the assessment system adapted to meet the assessment No ALl

needs of students with disabilities?
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Monitoring Instruction

The area of Monitoring Instruction is evaluated as Does Not Meet. As demonstrated by the evidence
provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has consistently implemented a limited instructional
monitoring approach. At the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder sufficiently demonstrated the some of the
components of these required elements, but failed to sufficiently demonstrate all components of these
required elements. For more detailed analysis see Monitoring Instruction Inventory (portfolio: e. DSP
Site Visit Inventory Forms, iv. Site Visit Inventory — Monitoring Instruction).

Sufficient Document

uestion .
Q Evidence Inventory Item

Monitoring the Integration of Standards

What is the Charter Holder’s process for monitoring the
integration of standards into classroom instruction? How does the

Charter Holder monitor whether or not instructional staff No M1
implements an ACCRS-aligned curriculum with fidelity?
How does the Charter Holder monitor the effectiveness of No M2

standards-based instruction throughout the year?

Evaluating Instructional Practices

What is the Charter Holder’s process for evaluating the
instructional practices? How does this process evaluate the Yes M3
quality of instruction?

How does this process identify individual strengths, weaknesses,

and needs? Yes M4

Providing Analysis and Feedback to Further Develop Instructional Quality

How does the Charter Holder provide feedback on strengths,
weaknesses, and learning needs based on the evaluation of Yes M5
instructional practices?

How does this Charter Holder analyze this information? What
does the data about quality of instruction tell the Charter Holder? Yes M6
What has the Charter Holder done in response?

Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is

meeting the needs of non-proficient students? ves M7
How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is N/A M8
meeting the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?

How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is N/A M9
meeting the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

How does the Charter Holder monitor instruction to ensure it is No M10

meeting the needs of students with disabilities?
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Professional Development

The area of Professional Development is evaluated as Falls Far Below. As demonstrated by the evidence
provided at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has implemented fragmented, ad hoc efforts to
provide professional development that is aligned with instructional staff learning needs, focuses on
areas of high importance, addresses the needs of relevant subgroup populations, and supports high
quality implementation; and monitoring follow-up to support and develop implementation of the
strategies learned. The efforts lack intentionality and prior planning, and are not consistently
implemented. For more detailed analysis see Professional Development Inventory (portfolio: e. DSP Site
Visit Inventory Forms, v. Site Visit Inventory — Professional Development).

. Sufficient Document
Question .
Evidence Inventory Item
Professional Development System
What is the Charter Holder’s professional development plan? No P1
How was the professional development plan developed? No P2
How is the professional development plan aligned with No p3

instructional staff learning needs?

How does this plan address areas of high importance? No P4

Supporting High Quality Implementation

How does the Charter Holder support high quality
implementation of the strategies learned in professional No P5
development sessions?

How does the Charter Holder provide the resources that are

. - . N P6
necessary for high quality implementation? °
Monitoring Implementation
How does the Charter Holder monitor the implementation of the No p7

strategies learned in professional development sessions?

How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow-up with
instructional staff to support and develop implementation of the No P8
strategies learned in professional development?

Adapted to Meet the Needs of Subgroups

How does the professional development plan ensure that
instructional staff receives the type of development required to No P9
meet the needs of non-proficient students?

How does the professional development plan ensure that
instructional staff receives the type of development required to N/A P10
meet the needs of English Language Learners (ELLs)?

How does the professional development plan ensure that
instructional staff receives the type of development required to N/A P11
meet the needs of Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) students?

How does the professional development plan ensure that
instructional staff receives the type of development required to No P12
meet the needs of students with disabilities?
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Graduation Rate

The area of Graduation Rate is evaluated as Does Not Meet. As demonstrated by the evidence provided
at the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder has consistently implemented a limited approach to ensure
students in grades 9-12 graduate on time. At the DSP site visit, the Charter Holder sufficiently
demonstrated the some of the components of these required elements, but failed to sufficiently
demonstrate all components of the required elements. For more detailed analysis see Graduation Rate
Inventory (portfolio: e. DSP Site Visit Inventory Forms, vi. Site Visit Inventory — Graduation Rate).

Question

Sufficient
Evidence

Document
Inventory Item

Ensuring Students in Grades 9-12 Graduate On Time

How does the Charter Holder monitor and follow up on student

progress toward completing courses to meet graduation Yes Gl
requirements?
How does the Charter Holder identify students that are not

. . Yes G2
successfully progressing through required courses?
How does the Charter Holder provide additional academic
supports to remediate academic problems for struggling Yes G3
students?
What data can the Charter Holder provide to demonstrate that No ca

these strategies are effective?
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| VII. Viability of the Organization

The Charter Holder was required to submit a Financial Performance Response because it did not meet
the Board’s Financial Performance Expectations, as reflected in the table below which includes the
Charter Holder’s financial data and financial performance for the last three audited fiscal years.

Financial Data

Statement of Financial Position

Cash $132,596 $81,633 $200,934

$186,007

Unrestricted Cash $105,220 $81,633 $194,342
Other Liquidity - -

Total Assets $1,240,902 $1,201,564 $1,354,713
Total Liabilities $569,898 $576,289 $636,689
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt &

Capital Leases $529,155 $35,781 $183,174

Net Assets $671,004

$625,275 $718,024
Statement of Activities
Revenue $1,276,361 $1,200,296 $1,229,510
Expenses $1,230,632 $1,293,045 $1,230,635
Net Income $45,729 ($92,749) ($1,125)
$45,729 ($92,749) ($1,125)

Change in Net Assets

Financial Statements or Notes

Depreciation & Amortization Expense $48,676 $50,513 $50,358
Interest Expense $36,512 $38,607 $43,441
$46,804 $42,868 $12,227

Financial Performance

| om 2013 2012__|3-yr Cumuiative

Lease Expense

Going Concern No No No N/A
Unrestricted Days Liquidity* 31.21 23.04 57.64 N/A
Default No No No N/A
Net Income $45,729 ($92,749) ($1,125) N/A
Cash Flow $50,963 ($119,301) $14,927 ($53,411)
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio 0.29 0.33 0.44 N/A

*Forfiscal year 2012, the field reflects the charter holder's performance under the financial framework's
previous "Unrestricted Days Cash" measure.

The Charter Holder’s Financial Performance Response has been provided in the meeting materials
(portfolio: i. Supplemented Financial Response).* Staff’s final evaluation of the Financial Performance
Response resulted in zero “Acceptable” and two “Not Acceptable” determinations (portfolio: h. Financial

* On March 3, 2015, Board staff emailed a copy of staff’s initial evaluation and provided a deadline by which the Charter Holder
could supplement its financial performance response to address areas evaluated as “Not Acceptable”. By the deadline, the
Charter Holder submitted supplemental information.
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Response Evaluation). An analysis of the Charter Holder’s financial performance, focusing on those
measures where the Charter Holder failed to meet the Board’s target and using information from the
Charter Holder’s Financial Performance Response and related documents, is provided below.

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (FCCR)

The Charter Holder maintains a debt structure that consists of a note payable for the Charter Holder’s
school building and a related party note. In past years, the Charter Holder maintained a relatively small
current portion of long-term debt (a part of the debt due to be paid in the next 12 months), while the
majority of the debt was not factored into the FCCR. This had the effect of minimizing the impact of the
Charter Holder’s debt on the FCCR. However, both the building and related party notes matured which
resulted in all remaining debt balances of approximately $530,000 to be accounted for as current debt in
2014. This was a main factor that led to a declining FCCR in 2014.

Subsequent to June 30, 2014, the Charter Holder amended the building promissory note. The
promissory note amendment dated July 11, 2014 extends the maturity date and the date of the final
balloon payment (the remaining balance) until after fiscal year 2015. This effectively shifts
approximately $320,000 of the 2014 current portion of long-term debt identified in the table above to
long-term debt, thus excluding it from the Board’s FCCR ratio. Had the promissory note amendment
been disclosed in the audit, it would have been considered in Board staff’s evaluation and the FCCR ratio
would have improved from 0.29 to 0.62.

The Charter Holder intends to obtain a bank loan prior to the July 30, 2015 final balloon payment to pay
off the entire balance of the building note, as well as notes due to related parties. Obtaining the bank
loan will have the effect of significantly reducing the Charter Holder’s current portion of long-term debt
in 2015 and subsequent years. The Charter Holder also indicated that any cash remaining after paying
off the building and related party debt will be used “to build a solid cash reserve”. Failure to obtain the
bank loan (or other financing or restructuring of the current mortgage loan) will put the Charter Holder
in a position of having approximately $41,000 in cash at the end of fiscal year 2015 to pay a final balloon
payment of approximately $320,000 in July 2015. The Charter Holder indicated that it has met with a
banker and is in the process of completing the required information requested by the bank.

Cash Flow

The Charter Holder indicated that the reason for a negative three-year cumulative cash flow in 2014 was
the result of unexpected legal expenditures and a required debt payment of approximately $70,000
toward principal on the mortgage in 2013. The Charter Holder projected two cash flow scenarios for
2015 predicated on whether it can successfully obtain the bank loan described above. If the Charter
Holder is successful in obtaining the bank loan, it projects total cash of $100,939 in 2015, according to
the Cash Flow Analysis. If the Charter Holder is not successful in obtaining the bank loan, it projects total
cash of $40,939. In either scenario, the Charter Holder will not meet the measure’s target in 2015 due to
negative cash flows in 2013 and 2015, and a negative three-year cumulative cash flow.

| VIII. Adherence to the Terms of the Charter

Does the delivery of the education program and operation reflect the essential terms of the educational
program as described in the charter contract?

Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder’s education program, in operation, reflects the essential terms as described in the
charter contract.
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Does the Charter Holder adhere with applicable education requirements defined in state and federal
law?

Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder adheres with applicable education requirements defined in state and federal law.

Do the Charter Holder’s annual audit reporting packages reflect sound operations?

Yes. As reported in the current fiscal year, the Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and provisions of the charter contract relating to the fiscal year 2014 annual audit reporting
package.

Is the Charter Holder administering student admission and attendance appropriately?

Yes. Based on the available information and as reported in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current
fiscal year, the Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the
charter contract relating to administering student admission and attendance.

Is the Charter Holder maintaining a safe environment consistent with state and local requirements?
Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to maintaining a safe environment.

Is the Charter Holder transparent in its operations?

Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to transparency of operations.

Is the Charter Holder complying with its obligations to the Board?

Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to its obligations to the Board.

Is the Charter Holder complying with reporting requirements of other entities to which the Charter
Holder is accountable?

Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to operational requirements monitored by other entities to which the Charter Holder is
accountable.

Is the Charter Holder complying with all other obligations?

Yes. Based on the available information in fiscal years 2013 and 2014 and the current fiscal year, the
Charter Holder complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and provisions of the charter contract
relating to all other obligations.

IX. Board Options

Option 1: The Board may vote to issue a Notice of Intent to Revoke the Charter Holder’s charter
contract unless the Charter Holder enters into a Consent Agreement to restore the charter to acceptable
performance. Staff recommends the following language provided for consideration: | move that, having
considered the statements of the representatives of the Charter Holder today and the academic
performance, the fiscal compliance, and legal and contractual compliance of the Charter Holder, the
Board has sufficient basis to issue a Notice of Intent to Revoke the charter of Tucson Preparatory School
on the grounds that the Charter Holder failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward the Academic
Performance Expectations set forth in the Performance Framework as reflected in the Staff Report, the
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Inventory Documents, and the DSP Final Evaluation. Data and analysis provided by the Charter Holder
does not demonstrate improved academic performance based on data generated from valid and reliable
assessment sources. Additionally, the Charter Holder was unable to provide evidence that it has
consistently implemented a sustained improvement plan that includes a comprehensive curriculum
system, a comprehensive assessment system, a comprehensive monitoring instruction system, a
comprehensive professional development system, and a comprehensive system for ensuring students in
grades 9-12 graduate on time.

All that taken into consideration, the Board directs staff to work with Tucson Preparatory School to
create a Consent Agreement for the purpose of restoring the charter to acceptable performance using
the Consent Agreement Template contained in the portfolio. The terms of the consent agreement to be
negotiated include only the terms concerning the data that will be reported to the board and the
methodology used to calculate that data. All other terms contained in the template must be accepted.
Among other terms, these terms require that the Charter Holder shall complete and submit a
Performance Management Plan that Meets the Board’s evaluation criteria no later than June 30, 2015.

| further move that if the terms of a Consent Agreement cannot be reached by June 30, 2015 the Board
issue a Notice of Intent to Revoke the charter for the reasons previously stated and that:

e  Within 48 hours of receipt of the Notice the charter operator shall notify staff and
parents/guardians of registered students of the Notice of Intent to Revoke and the Notice of
Hearing and provide a school location where the copy may be reviewed;

e Within 20 days of receipt of the Notice the charter operator shall provide copies of all
correspondence and communications used to comply with the preceding provision; and

e  Within 20 days of receipt of the Notice the charter operator shall provide the Board with the
names and mailing addresses of parents/guardians of all students registered with the school.

Option 2: The Board may vote to implement heightened monitoring of this Charter Holder. The
following language is provided for consideration: | move that, having considered the statements of the
representatives of the Charter Holder today and the academic performance, the fiscal compliance, and
legal and contractual compliance of the Charter Holder, the Board has sufficient basis to issue a Notice
of Intent to Revoke the charter of Tucson Preparatory School on the grounds that the Charter Holder
failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward the Academic Performance Expectations set forth in
the Performance Framework as reflected in the Staff Report, the Inventory Documents, and the DSP
Final Evaluation. Data and analysis provided by the Charter Holder does not demonstrate improved
academic performance based on data generated from valid and reliable assessment sources.
Additionally, the Charter Holder was unable to provide evidence that it has consistently implemented a
sustained improvement plan that includes a comprehensive curriculum system, a comprehensive
assessment system, a comprehensive monitoring instruction system, a comprehensive professional
development system, and a comprehensive system for ensuring students in grades 9-12 graduate on
time.

All that taken into consideration, the Board directs staff to implement heightened monitoring of Tucson
Preparatory School. Specifically, the Charter Holder shall 1) submit a revised PMP that Meets the
Board’s evaluation criteria no later than June 30, 2015, using a template provided by Board staff and 2)
submit evidence of the implementation of a sustained improvement plan that includes implementation
of a comprehensive curriculum system, a comprehensive assessment system, a comprehensive

instructional monitoring system, a comprehensive professional development system, and a system for
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ensuring students in grades 9-12 graduate on time along with data and analysis to demonstrate changes
in academic performance at quarterly intervals (September 15, December 15, March 15, June 15) until
the Charter Holder’s Academic Dashboards demonstrate improved academic performance or until
further consideration of the Charter Holder’s academic performance by this Board. If Tucson
Preparatory School does not submit an acceptable PMP, does not submit evidence of the
implementation of comprehensive systems at the quarterly monitoring, or if the academic performance
of the school operated by the Charter Holder does not improve as reported at quarterly monitoring or
through the Academic Dashboard, the Board will again review the performance of this Charter Holder
and may impose disciplinary action at that time.

Option 3: The Board may vote to continue monitoring the Charter Holder through the Academic
Intervention Schedule as set out in the Academic Performance Framework and Guidance document.
The following language is provided for consideration: | move that the board direct staff to continue
monitoring Tucson Preparatory School through the Academic Intervention Schedule as set out in the
Academic Performance Framework and Guidance document. If the academic performance of the school
operated by the Charter Holder, as reported on the Academic Dashboard, does not improve, the Board
will again review the performance of this Charter Holder and may impose disciplinary action at that
time.
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CONSENT AGREEMENT

This Consent Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between [Charter Holder
Name] (“[Charter Holder Name]”) and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (“Board”),
collectively referred to herein as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

1. Charter schools are established to provide a learning environment that will
improve pupil achievement. A.R.S. 88 15-101(4) and 15-181(A).

2. [Charter School(s) Name(s)](“the School(s)”) is/are (a) charter school(s)
authorized to operate under the sponsorship of the Board. The School(s) operate(s) pursuant to a
charter between [Charter Holder Name] and the Board.

3. The School(s) is/are currently authorized to serve students in grades [identify
grades the school(s) is/are authorized to serve].

4, The Board is charged by Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 15-183(R) with
exercising oversight and administrative responsibility for the charter schools it sponsors.

5. In implementing its oversight and administrative responsibilities, the Board
grounds its actions in evidence of the charter holder’s performance in accordance with the
performance framework adopted by the Board. A.R.S. § 15-183(R). The Academic
Performance Framework adopted by the Board defines its academic performance expectations
for the charter schools it sponsors.

6. Under its Academic Performance Framework, the Board annually compiles
Academic Dashboards for charter schools sponsored by the Board. A school can earn an Overall
Rating of Exceeds, Meets, Does Not Meet, or Falls Far Below the Board’s academic standard. A

Charter Holder that operates one or more charter schools that have received an Overall Rating of
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Does Not Meet or Falls Far Below the Board’s academic standard in the current or prior year
does not Meet the Board’s academic performance expectations.

7. A Charter Holder that does not Meet the Board’s academic performance
expectations and that operates a charter school that has received an Overall Rating of Does Not
Meet or Falls Far Below the Board’s academic standard in the current year must submit required
information pursuant to the Board’s Academic Intervention Schedule. The Board uses this
required information to determine whether the Charter Holder can demonstrate it is making
sufficient progress toward the academic performance expectations set forth in the Board’s
Academic Performance Framework.

8. The Board may revoke a charter at any time if the Board determines that the
charter holder has failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward the academic performance
expectations set forth in the Board’s Academic Performance Framework. A.R.S. § 15-
183(1)(3)(a).

9. In [Month Year], [Charter Holder Name] was assigned a Performance
Management Plan (“PMP”) as an academic intervention because one or more schools operated
under its charter did not meet the Board’s level of adequate academic performance.

10. In October 2014, the Board released the FY2014 Academic Dashboards. The
School(s) earned an Overall Rating of Does Not Meet the Board’s academic standard for fiscal
year (“FY”) 2014 (July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014). In December 2014, the Charter Holder
was notified of the requirement to submit a Demonstration of Sufficient Progress (“DSP”) as the

required information under the Academic Intervention Schedule.
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11. Based on the information presented during the DSP review, [Charter Holder
Name] failed to meet or make sufficient progress toward the academic performance expectations
set forth in the Board’s Academic Performance Framework.

12.  Atits meeting on April 13, 2015, the Board determined that there is sufficient
basis to issue a Notice of Intent to Revoke the charter of [Charter Holder Name] on the basis of
[Charter Holder Name]’s failure to meet or make sufficient progress toward the academic
performance expectations set forth in the Board’s Academic Performance Framework. The
Board, however, directed its staff to work with [Charter Holder Name] to reach a consent
agreement prior to June 30, 2015 for the purpose of restoring the charter holder to acceptable
performance under the terms and conditions set by the Board.

AGREEMENT

13. In consideration of the Parties foregoing their option to proceed with charter
revocation proceedings, it is in the best interest of the Board and [Charter Holder Name] to
mutually resolve this matter.

14. In settlement of matters relating to the revocation of [Charter Holder Name]’s
charter, the Parties have agreed to the following terms and conditions:

A. [Charter Holder Name] amends its current charter contract to add the following
provision: Beginning no later than July 1, 2015, [Charter Holder Name] shall implement the
action steps identified in the Performance Management Plan (attached at Attachment A to this
Agreement) and any additional steps necessary to implement a comprehensive improvement plan
(as identified in the evaluation and technical guidance provided to [Charter Holder Name] on
February 2, 2015 and attached at Attachment B to this Agreement), and shall submit

documentary evidence to the Board of [Charter Holder Name]’s implementation of the action
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steps identified above in this paragraph at quarterly intervals (“quarterly report’) on the
following dates: October 1, 2015, January 1, 2016, April 1, 2016, July 1, 2016, October 1, 2016,
January 1, 2017, April 1, 2017, and July 1, 2017.

B. The Charter Holder shall provide internal benchmarking data disaggregated by
math and reading from [identify the source of the data e.g., Renaissance Learning, Galileo,
AIMS Web, textbook based assessments, district created assessments, etc.] for the School’s
administrations of [identify the months benchmark assessments are administered] benchmark
assessments. All data shall be provided to the Board with the corresponding quarterly report. For
each of these benchmark assessment administrations the Charter Holder shall provide data
analysis and underlying support data aligned to the subject specific measures® used by the Board
in its Academic Dashboard as follows:

Q) Student Growth Percentile (“SGP”) [1.a.]° — for all students who

[describe any reasonable limitations on data that will be provided - this may include

limiting data to students who will be identified as FAY because they have been enrolled

since the beginning of the year, or identifying that data will be disaggregated for

“persistent” students and “non-persistent” students. ], the data shall demonstrate

[describe the information that will be provided from the data that speaks directly to this

measure (i.e., the amount of growth the school gets within a school year from its

students). In this case some examples include “the percentage of students scoring high
growth on the Galileo Growth and Achievement Report” or “the average change in

years of growth since the beginning of the school year” or “the median change in

' The “subject” references either Math or Reading. Each subject is considered a separate “measure” on the Board'’s
Academic Performance Dashboard.

? References provided in brackets identify the subject specific measures on the Board’s Dashboard that aligns with
the data to be provided.
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Students’ scores from the first benchmark assessment”. The data identified for this
measure must speak directly to growth within the year.]; and

(i) SGP Bottom 25% or Improvement® [1.b.] — for all students who
[describe any reasonable limitations on data that will be provided - this may include
limiting data to students who will be identified as FAY because they have been enrolled
since the beginning of the year, or identifying that data will be disaggregated for
“persistent” students and “non-persistent” students. In measures like this one that are
specific to “subgroups” this should also define the subgroup. In this case some
examples include, “all students who scored FFB on the prior year state assessment”,
“all students who scored FFB on the first benchmark assessment”, or “all 11 " and 12"
grade students who have not passed the AIMS ], the data shall demonstrate [describe
the information that will be provided from the data that speaks directly to this measure
(i.e., the amount of growth the school gets within a school year from its students). In
this case some example may be “the percentage of students scoring high growth on the
Galileo Growth and Achievement Report” or “the average change in years of growth
since the beginning of the school year” or “the median change in students’ scores from
the first benchmark assessment”. The data identified for this measure must speak
directly to growth within the year.]; and

(iii)  Percent Passing [2.a.] — for all students who [describe any reasonable
limitations on data that will be provided - this may include limiting data to students
who will be identified as FAY because they have been enrolled since the beginning of

the year, or identifying that data will be disaggregated for “persistent” students and

* I the School is classified as an Alternative School at any point, the reporting of this data shall align to the
“Improvement” measures in the Board’s Academic Performance Framework.
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“non-persistent” students. ], the data shall demonstrate [describe the information that
will be provided from the data that speaks directly to this measure (i.e., how many
students are meeting grade-level expectations). In this case some examples include “the
percentage of students meets or exceeds according to the Galileo Aggregate Multi-Test
with Benchmark Performance Level” or “the percentage of students performing at
grade level”. The data identified for this measure must speak directly to how students
are performing in relation to grade-level expectations.]; and

(iv) Percent Passing ELL [2.c.] — for all students identified as English
Language Learners (“ELL”) who [describe any reasonable limitations on data that will
be provided- this may include limiting data to students who will be identified as FAY
because they have been enrolled since the beginning of the year, or identifying that
data will be disaggregated for “persistent” students and “non-persistent” students. In
measures like this one that are specific to “subgroups” this should also define the
subgroup (i.e., students who have been identified as ELLS).], the data shall demonstrate
[identify the information that will be provided from the data that speaks directly to this
measure (i.e., how many students are meeting grade-level expectations). In this case
some examples include “the percentage of students meets or exceeds according to the
Galileo Aggregate Multi-Test with Benchmark Performance Level” or “the percentage
of students performing at grade level” or “the percentage of students reclassified as
Fully English Proficient”. The data identified for this measure must speak directly to
how students are performing in relation to grade-level expectations.]; and

(v) Percent Passing FRL [2.c.] — for all students identified as free and

reduced-price lunch (“FRL”) eligible who [describe any reasonable limitations on data
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that will be provided - this may include limiting data to students who will be identified
as FAY because they have been enrolled since the beginning of the year, or identifying
that data will be disaggregated for “persistent” students and “non-persistent” students.
In measures like this one that are specific to “subgroups” this should also define the
subgroup (i.e., students who have been identified as Free or Reduced Lunch Eligible).],
the data shall demonstrate [describe the information that will be provided from the data
that speaks directly to this measure (i.e., how many students are meeting grade-level
expectations). In this case some examples include “the percentage of students meets or
exceeds according to the Galileo Aggregate Multi-Test with Benchmark Performance
Level” or “the percentage of students performing at grade level”. The data identified
for this measure must speak directly to how students are performing in relation to
grade-level expectations.]; and

(vi)  Percent Passing SPED [2.c.] —for all students identified as students with
disabilities (“SPED”) who [describe any reasonable limitations on data that will be
provided this may include limiting data to student who will be identified as FAY
because they have been enrolled since the beginning of the year, or identifying that
data will be disaggregated for “persistent” students and “non-persistent students. In
measures like this one that are specific to “subgroups” this should also define the
subgroup (i.e., students who have an 1EP).], the data shall demonstrate [describe the
information that will be provided from the data that speaks directly to this measure
(i.e., how many students are meeting grade-level expectations). In this case some
examples include “the percentage of students meets or exceeds according to the Galileo

Aggregate Multi-Test with Benchmark Performance Level ” or “the percentage of
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students performing at grade level” or “the percentage of students meeting their IEP

goals” or “the median percentage of IEP goals met”. The data identified for this

measure must speak directly to how students are performing in relation to grade-
level/student expectations.].

C. The internal benchmarking data identified in paragraph 14(B)(i-vi) and
disaggregated by math and reading from [identify the source of the data e.g., Renaissance
Learning, Galileo, AIMS Web, textbook based assessments, district created assessments, etc.]
for the School’s administrations of [identify the months benchmark assessments are
administered] benchmark assessments shall demonstrate improved academic performance as
defined below:

(i)(@) SGP Math [1.a.] —the data shall not demonstrate any decline in academic
performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the prior
year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than 10 percentage points from
the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the prior year; and

()(b) SGP Reading [1.a.] —the data shall not demonstrate any decline in
academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in
the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than 10 percentage
points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the prior year;
and

(if)(a) SGP Bottom 25% or Improvement Math [1.b.] — the data shall not
demonstrate any decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark

assessment administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of
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no less than 10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year; and

(if)(b) SGP Bottom 25% or Improvement Reading [1.b.] —the data shall not
demonstrate any decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark
assessment administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of
no less than 10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year; and

(iii)(a) Percent Passing Math [2.a.] — the data shall not demonstrate any decline
in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration
in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than 10 percentage
points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the prior year;
and

(iii)(b) Percent Passing Reading [2.a.] — the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the
prior year; and

(iv)(a) Percent Passing ELL Math [2.c.] — the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the

prior year; and

[Charter Holder Name]





10

(iv)(b) Percent Passing ELL Reading [2.c.] — the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the
prior year; and

(v)(a) Percent Passing FRL Math [2.c.] — the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the
prior year; and

(v)(b) Percent Passing FRL Reading [2.c.] — the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the
prior year; and

(vi)(a) Percent Passing SPED Math [2.c.] — the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the
prior year; and

(vi)(b) Percent Passing SPED Reading [2.c.] — the data shall not demonstrate
any decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment

administration in the prior year and the data shall demonstrate an increase of no less than
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10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the

prior year.

15. If [Charter Holder Name] fails to timely provide the evidence identified in
paragraph 14(A) or fails to provide the data that meets the requirements to demonstrate
improved academic performance identified in paragraphs 14(B)(i-vi) and 14(C)(i-vi) for any of
the schools operated under this agreement, [Charter Holder Name] shall terminate its operation
of that school at the end of the corresponding fiscal year.

16. [Charter Holder Name] shall terminate its operation of the School at the end of the
corresponding fiscal year if upon release of the FY 2015 or FY2016 Academic Dashboard for the
School, with sufficient data and weighting to calculate an Overall Rating (Overall Rating does
not equal NR), the School does not meet at least one of the following conditions:

I.  Receives a performance level of either Meets or Exceeds standard in the
Composite School Comparison measure [2.b.] or Improvement measure [1.b.]
for both subjects (reading and math); or

Ii.  Receives a performance level of either Meets or Exceeds standard in the SGP
measure [1.a.] for both subjects (reading and math); or

iii.  Shows no decline in performance level in any subject specific measure [1.a.,
1.b, 2.a, 2.b., and 2.c. for all subgroups] to Does Not Meet or Falls Far
Below standard from the prior year’s Academic Dashboard and reflects an
increase in the performance level for at least 50% of the subject specific
measures containing data and that were rated Does Not Meet or Falls Far

Below standard in the prior year’s Academic Dashboard.
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17. If upon release of the FY 2015 or FY2016 Academic Dashboard for the School, the
School’s performance level ratings in any of the subject specific measures identified on the
Academic Dashboard and in paragraphs 14(B)(i-vi) and 14(C)(i-vi) are a “Meets” or
“Exceeds”, the [Charter Holder Name] will not be subject to the requirement to “demonstrate an
increase of no less than 10 percentage points from the corresponding benchmark assessment
administration in the prior year” for the subject area that “Meets” or “Exceeds.” [Charter
Holder Name] shall remain subject to all other terms of paragraphs 14(C)(i-vi), including the
requirement that “the data shall not demonstrate any decline in academic performance from the
corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the prior year,” for all subject specific
measures identified on the Academic Dashboard and in the subsections of paragraphs 14(B)(i-
vi).

18. If upon release of the FY 2015 or FY2016 Academic Dashboard for the School, the
School’s Overall Rating is a “Meets” or “Exceeds”, the [Charter Holder Name] will not be
subject to the requirement to “demonstrate an increase of no less than 10 percentage points from
the corresponding benchmark assessment administration in the prior year” for the subject area
that “Meets” or “Exceeds.” [Charter Holder Name] shall remain subject to all other terms of
paragraphs 14(C)(i-vi), including the requirement that “the data shall not demonstrate any
decline in academic performance from the corresponding benchmark assessment administration
in the prior year,” for all subject specific measures identified on the Academic Dashboard and in
the subsections of paragraphs 14(B)(i-vi).

19. If the School meets the terms required under this Agreement to continue operating
after FY2017, the School’s continuing academic performance will be monitored in accordance

with the Board’s Academic Intervention Schedule.
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20. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the Parties hereby represent and
guarantee that they have been authorized to do so, on behalf of themselves and the entity they
represent.

21. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be modified or amended except by written
instrument, signed by each of the Parties hereto.

22. Each party is responsible for its own legal fees and costs in this matter.

ARIZONA STATE BOARD FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS

By: Janna Day
President, Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Date:

[CHARTER HOLDER NAME], INC

By: [Charter Representative Name]
Charter Representative, [Charter Holder Name]
Date:
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